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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRI^"' ' ' - ' 9 kCU

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

Lori A. Wmvpt 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
IiCerim Commissioner 603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4501

Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Patricia M. Tilley www.dhhs.nh.gov

Director

February 28, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Northern Human
Services (VC #177222-8004), Conway, NH, to continue providing activities for the North Country
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families program that conducts trainings
for staff who provide Home Visiting Services to young children and families, as well as direct
services to families, by increasing the price limitation by $50,000 from $630,000 to $680,000, and
by extending the completion date from June 30,2023 to June 30, 2024, effective upon Governor
and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 19, 2019, item
#78B, as amended on October 7, 2020, item #9. and amended on April 21, 2021, Item #19, and
amended on Decembers, 2021, item #14, and most recently amended on March 9, 2022, item
#19.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
previously approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. In addition, the Department is
seeking to extend the contract completion date with no remaining renewal options, and add
funding. Northern Human Services is uniquely qualified to continue providing these services due
to its experience providing a wide array of services, and its network of partners In the region,
including the Coos Coalition for Young Children and Families (Coos Coalition), the coordinating
body in Coos and northern Grafton Counties for child maltreatment prevention, which is the only
coalition in Coos and northern Grafton counties whose primary purpose is to promote the optimal
social and emotional development of children from birth through eight (8) years of age.

The purpose of this request is for the Department to allow the Contractor to continue
providing activities for the North Country Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve
Families program by adding funding, and extending the contract completion date by one (1) year.
Funding supports the Social and Emotional Learning Coaching System In Coos County as part of
the strategy to support and maintain a high quality workforce focused on early childhood
development.

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.

3Z



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3B7E4D67wiFAA-47ED-A2B2-D928FA8F5C64

His Excellency, Governor Chrrstopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

The Contractor will continue providing evidence-based, universal home visiting services
to families with young children. In addition, the Contractor will continue to provide coaching to
home visiting staff who provide services to children, and provide consistent parent engagement
opportunities for families to connect with one another to build resource networks and increase
parentirig skills.

Approximately 500 overburdened families, caregivers with substance misuse, and families
with children eight (8) years of age or younger who are.at risk of child abuse or neglect, and other
adverse childhood experiences will be served through June 30, 2024.

The Department will continue to monitor contracted senrices to ensure:

•  Families with children from birth to five (5) years of age will receive home visiting
services;

•  There is an increase in the number of early childhood practitioners in Coos County
trained in evidence-based social emotional practices;

•  Children five (5) years of age or younger in Coos County receive annual Ages and
Stages Questionnaire (ASQ) and/or ASQ-social emotional development screenings;

•  The rate of families with complex needs served by collaborative teams who report
they received effective care coordination is 50% higher than the state average; and

•  Quarterly reports specify the number and proportion of new, expanded or existing
partnerships mobilized to address barriers to accessing Healthcare, Chtldcare,
Mental Health and Substance Misuse supports, food and economic supports; and
other services that alleviate health disparities and inequities.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, home visitors who provide
services to caregivers with substance abuse, as well as families with young children at risk of
child abuse and neglect may not receive appropriate evidenced-based training and follow-up
coaching activities, which are imperative to teaching positive parenting and family structure to
those in need.

,  Area served: Coos County and northern Grafton County

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 93.391, FAIN NH750T000031.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Pr-

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner
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North Country Cpmmunity Collaboration to Strengthen & Preserve Families
Amendment #5 - SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A05

Fiscal Detail Sheet

05-95-042-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD-FAMILY
SERVICES (100% GENERAL FUNDS)

State .

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

, Job
Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 643-504191

Contracts

for

Prog Svc
42105756 $100,000 $0 $100,000

2020 643-504191

Contracts

for

Prog Svc
42105756 $0 $0 $0

2021 643-504191

Contracts

for

Prog Svc
42105756 $200,000 $0 $200,000

Subtotal $300,000 $0 $300,000

05-95-090-902010-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

ANDHUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV. COMMUNITY COLLABORATION (50%
Federal Funds and 50% General Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year '

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731

Contracts

for

Prog Svc

90070470 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2022 102-500731

Contracts

for Prog
Svc ■

90070471 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2023 102-500731

Contracts

for

Prog Svc

90070470 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2023 102-500731

Contracts

for Prog
Svc

90070471 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2024 102-500731

Contracts

for Prog
Svc

90070470 $0 $0 $0

2024 102-500731

Contracts

for Prog
Svc

90070471 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal $200,000 $0 $200,000
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North Country Community Collaboration to Strengthen & Preserve Families
Amendment #5 - SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A05

Fiscal Detail Sheet

05-95-090-901010-57710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF POLICY & PERFORMANCE, PH
COVID-19 HEALTH DISPARITIES (100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount'

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731

Contracts

for

Prog Svc
90577150 $73,000 $0 $73,000

2023 102-500731

Contracts

for

Prog Svc

90577150 $57,000 $50,000 107,000

2024 102-500731

Contracts

for

Prog Svc

90577150 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal $130,000 $50,000 $180,000

Total $630,000 $50,000 $680,000
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5

This Amendment to the North Country Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,^ Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and Northern Human Services ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019 (Item #78B), as amended on October 7, 2020 (Item #9), as amended on April 21, 2021
(Item #19). as amended on December 8, 2021 (Item #14), and most recently amended on March 9, 2022
(Item #19), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2024

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$680,000

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 2, to read:

2. This agreement is funded with:

2.1. 41% Federal Funds:

2.1.1. 26% Federal Funds from the Community Collaboration to Strengthen and
Preserve Families in NH: A Prevention, Public Health, Cross-Sector
Approach, as awarded on June 25, 2020 by the US Department of Health
and Human Services, Administration on Children, Youth & Families,
Children's Bureau. CFDA #93.670; FAIN 90CA1858: and

2.1.2. 15% Federal Funds from the NH Initiative to Address COVID-19 Health

Disparities: Activities to Support State, Tribal, Local and Territorial (STLT)
Health Department Response to Public Health or Healthcare Crises, as
awarded on May 27, 2021 by the US Department of Health and Human
Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, CFDA #93.391, FAIN
NH750T000031.

2.2. 59% General Funds.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4, Subsection 4.1., to
read:

4.1 Payment will be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and in accordance with the approved line items, as specified in
Exhibit B-1 through Exhibit B-8, Amendment #5, SFY 2023 Budget.

Northern Human Services A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

88-2019-DPH8-26-NORTH-01 -AOS Page 1 of 4 Date 3/^/2023
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6. Modify Exhibit B-8 Budget, Amendment #4, SPY 2023 Budget, by replacing it in its entirety with
Exhibit B-8 Budget. Amendment #5, SPY 2023 Budget, which Is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

Northern Human Services

33-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01 -AOS

A-3-1.3

Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date

-OS

3/2/2023
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date v\/ritten belo\A/,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

3/9/2023

■DocuStgn«d.by;

Date Name: Patricia M. TilTey
Title: Di rector

Northern Human Services
OoeuSJBn»d by:

3/2/2023 I Su/yUUtt
0«<)C60?OCO<HiOi..7-: tt"03te fsj3me:Su2anne Gaetjens-Oleson

Title: chief Executive Officer

Northern Human Services A-S-1.2

SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH^1-A05 Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuSignad by;

4/3/2023

Date ■ Nanie:

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Northern Human Services A-S-1.2

33-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A05 Page 4 of 4
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Exhibit Amendment #5, SFY 2023 Budget

New Hvnpshire Departmtnt of Heafth and Human Servicts

Contractor Namo; Nortttom Hum on Sfvte—

Profocl Tttlo; Nodti Country Communlly CeOsbefetlen to Stranghton and Proaarva Famllao

Sudoal Partod; SFY 2023 (July 1. 2022 • Juna 30. 2023)

Corld-19 CHspartlaa

Una Ram

Total Program Coat

Indlraet

Contractor Shara / Maldt Fundad by PHHS comraci aha^

1. Total SatafvWaaaa

2. £mployaa Banetita
3. Cenautanta

4. EotapmanL

Rental

Raoatf and Malntattanca

PurehatalPaeratiadon

5. Staaollaa:

Lao

7. Oeaoanev

8. Currant Erpanaaa

TatBpnena

Peataoa

Subaeriotlena

AiKMandlnoal

Board E»{ienaaa
SnRwafa

10. MnrttetliaVCommtaTlcalicna

It. Stati EdueaOen and TraininQ

12. Subcontracta/tVifaemants 97JI»J0 97J00.00 97.300 JO
ilOOwLigw FbeaJ Fee 9,700X0 9.700.00 9.700JO

•wmss107,000.00 TITBIW T
Indlraci Aa A Pareani of Direct

-03

NortPem Human Sarrica

SS-2019-OPHS-29-NORTH-OI-AOS

Exnui B4. Amendment «5, SFY 2023 Budgai
Page i o( i

Contractor Mtlati

c«, 3/2/2023
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NORTHERN HUMAN

SERVICES is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Coiporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on March 03, 1971.1

furtherccrtily that all fees and documents required by the Secretaiy of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 62362

Certificate Number: 0005748583

6^

T/1

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2022.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Slate
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Madelene Costello, hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Northern Human Services.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on January 3.2023, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED; That Suzanne Gaetjens-Oleson. CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duty authorized on behalf of Northem Human Services to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all docurnents.
agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, whirrfi may In his/her
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty
(30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it Is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 3.28.23

Signafure of Elected Officer
Name: Madelene Costello

Title: President

Rev; 03/24/20
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ACORD^ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DCVYYYY)

3/28/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIRCATE HOLDER. THIS '

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIRCATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementfs).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford, NH 03110

855 874-0123

Christine A Skehan

Ext): 855 874-0123

ADDRESS; Christine.Skehan@usi.eom
INSURER(S) AFFORDINO COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A Philadelphia Insurance Company 32204

INSURED

Northern Human Services, inc.

87 Washington Street

Gonway, NH 03818-6044

INSURER a

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIRCATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CUIMS.

INSR
LTR ' TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

INSR
5UBR

WVP POUCY NUMBER
POUCY EFF

(mm/dd/yyyy)
policy EXP

fMM/DD/YYYYI UMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY

£ 1 X| OCCUR
PHPK2399376 33/31/2023 03/31/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE s1.000,000

CLAIMS-MAC $100,000

MEO EXP (Any ona parson] $5,000

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY $1,000,000

GENV AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000

poucY 1 1 Sect I j LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG $3,000,000

$

AUTOMOBILE UABILfTY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

s

ANY AUTO

HEDULEO
rrOS
)N-OWNED

TOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par person) $

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SC
At

BODILY INJURY (Par ecddant) $

NC
At

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accidenH

s

$

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH (XCURRENCE $

AGGREGATE $

OED RETENTIONS $

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'UABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 1 j
0FFICERA4EMBER EXCLUDED?

(Mandatory In NH) .—'
II yas, deacdtM under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS t>alOw

N/A

PER OTH-
STATirrF FR

E.L EACH ACCIDENT $

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $

E.L. DISEASE ■ POLICY LIMIT $

A Enity Prof Liab

Physicians Prof

PHPK2399376

PHPK2399376

33/31/2023

33/31/2023

03/31/2024

03/31/2024

1,000,000/3,000,000

1,000,000/3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramarks Schadula, may ba attachad If mora apaca la raijuirad)

Evidence of insurance.

Aiiied Heaith staff share in the ilmits of Insurance of the Entity.

Physicians have their own separate $1 M^3M limits of insurance, and do not share in the entity Limits of

insurance.

"Evidence of insurance

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH Department of Heaith

and Human Services

129 Pieasant St

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#S39544887/M39544855

O1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
CASCA
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NORTHHUM

ACORD^ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DDfYYYY)

3/13/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITiONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endor8ement(s).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford, NH 03110

855 874-0123

Christine A Skehan

(Wil. Erti: 855 874-0123
ADDRESS: Christine.Skehan@usi.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICd

INSURER A NH Employers Insurance Company 13083

INSURED

Northern Human Services, Inc.

87 Washington Street

Conway, NH 03818-6044

INSURER B

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED'NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AODL5UBR
POUCV NUMBER

POUCY EFF
(MMAIOWYYY)

POLICY EXP
(mwdd/yyyy) UMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

CLAIMS-MADE n OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

^ISES lEa

MED EXP (Any one p<r»on)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY [" IJE^ I I LOC
GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • C0MPA3P AQG

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE UABILRY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per acddenl]

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accidenn

UMBRELLA LIAS

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS-UABILITY

ANY PROPRlETOR4»AflTNEIVEXECUTIVE|
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

(Mandatory In NH)
I' yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

'm

ECC60040004322022A 09/30/2022 09/30/2023
^ PER
X STATUTE

OTH-

£a_

N/A
E.L EACH ACCIDENT sSOO.OOO

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $500.000

E.L. DISEASE - POUCY UMIT $500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD101, AddHlonal Remarlcs Schedule, may be attached li more space la required)

"Evidence of Insurance

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH Department of Health

and Human Services

129 Pleasant St

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2018/03) 1 of 1
#S39370746/M37744131

e 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
CASCA
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Statement of Mission -

"To assist and advocate for people affected by mental illness, developmental disabilities and
related disorders in living meaningful lives."

Statement of Vision^

Everyone who truly needs our services can receive them, as we strive to meet ever-changing
needs through advocacy, innovation, collaboration and skill.
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To the Board of Directors of

Northern Human Services, Inc.

Conway, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northern Human Services, Inc. (a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as
of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of cash flows, and notes to the financial
statements for the years then ended, and the related statements of activities and functional
expenses for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of -these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial staternents based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether, due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used arid the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

«

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
. In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of .Northern Human Services, Inc. as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and its
cash flows for the years then ended, and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June
30, 2021 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

1
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Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited Northern Human Services, Inc.'s June 30, 2020 financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements in
our report dated January 20, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information
presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, is consistent. In all material
respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of functional revenues and expenses on pages 27 - 35 and
schedule of expenditures of federal awards on page 36, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 1, 2022, on our consideration of Northern Human Services, Inc.'s internal control over

financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Northern Human
Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Northern Human Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

March 1,2022
North Conway, New Hampshire
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents, undeslgnated

Cash and cash equivalents, board designated
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $222,000 and

$311,000 for 2021 and 2020, respectively

Grants receivable

Assets, limited use

Prepaid expenses and deposits

Total current assets

2021

$  17.290,923

318,202

3,692,791

224,187

806,318

206,897

22.539,316

2020

$  13,898,376

318,202

2,431,296

515,878

724,596

193.859

18,082,207

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT. NET 193.904 261.407

OTHER ASSETS

Investments

Cash value of life insurance

2,524.860
470.832

2,064,316

452,278

Total other assets

Total assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Compensated absences payable

Other grants payable

Refundable advances

Deferred revenue

Refundable advances, maintenance of effort

Client funds held in trust

Due to related party

Total liabilities

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2,995.692

$  25,728,912

1,300,981

1,656,658

814,990

925,485

110,000

282,617

469,616

53,208

5.613.555

2,516,594

$  20,860.208

1,589,607

1,522,001

794,893

187,352

132,500

101,857

339,562

397,289

58,112

5,123,173

NET ASSETS

Net assets without donor restrictions

Undeslgnated

Board designated

Total net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

19,540,045

318,202

19,858,247

257,110

20,115,357

25.728.912

15,162,607

318.202

15,480,809

256,226

15.737,035

$  20,860,208

See Notes to Financial Statements
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

2021

Total

2020

Summarized

PUBLIC SUPPORT

State and federal grants
Other public support

Local and county support
Donations

2,897,159

967,136

635,427

13,262

2,897,159

967,136

635,427

13,262

$  2,169,389

591,205

405,607

22,671

Total public support 4,512,984 4.512,984 3,188,872

REVENUES

Program service fees
Production income

Other revenues

42,144,980

275,842
370,636

42,144,980

275,842

370,636

41,907,391

327,416

266,938

Total revenues

Total public support and revenues

42,791,458

47.304.442

42,791,458

47,304,442 45,690,617

EXPENSES

Program Services:
Mental health

Developmental services
11,535,421
25,138,884

11,535,421

25,138,884

11,370,057

25,786,386

Total program services

General management

Total expenses

36,674,305

6,763,823

43,438,128

36,674,305

6,763,823

43,438,128

37,156,443

6,271,198

43,427,641

EXCESS OF PUBLIC SUPPORT

AND REVENUES OVER EXPENSES 3,866,314 3.866,314 2,262,976

NON-OPERATING INCOME

Investment return

Gain on sale of property

Change in cash value of life insurance

Interest income

477,198

18,554

15,372 884

477,198

18,554

16,256

113,984

3,500

19,693

71,444

Total non-operating income

Change in net assets

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

511,124 884 512,008 208,621

4,377,438

15,480,809

$  19,858,247

884

256,226

257,110

4,378,322

15,737,035

$  20,115,357

2,471,597

13,265,438

$  15,737,035

See Notes to Financial Statements
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  4,378,322 $  2,471,597

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets •

to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation 121,923 181,884

Unrealized gain on investments (308,604) (9,790)

Realized gain on investments (125,748) (57,410)

Gain on sale of property - (3,500)

Change in cash value of life insurance (4,546) (6,288)

(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable (1,261,495) (465,305)

Grants receivable 291,691 (288,359)

Assets, limited use' (81,720) (222,685)

Prepaid expenses and deposits (13,038) 101,218

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (288,626) 1,099,424

Accrued payroll and related liabilities 134,657 15,285

Compensated absences payable 20,097 51,757

Other grants payable 738,133 75,170

Refundable advances (22,500) (64.517)

Deferred revenue 180,760 (329,484)
Refundable advances, maintenance of effort (339,562) (51,896)

Client funds held in trust 72,327 227,925

Due to related party (4.904) 9,689

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3,487,167 2,734,715

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property (54,420) (83,336)

Proceeds from sale of property . •8,000

Purchases of investments (449,324) (302,115)

Proceeds from sales of investments 465,978 318,669

Reinvested dividends (42,846) (46,784)
Change in cash value of life insurance (14.008) (13,405)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (94.620) (118,971)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,392,547 2,615,744

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 14,216,578 11,600,834

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $  17,609.125 $  14,216,578

See Notes to Financial Statements
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

TOTALS FOR ALL PROGRAMS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Mental Developmental General 2021 2020

Health Services Subtotals Manaoement Total Summarized

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages $ 7,775,256 $ 6,292,766 $ 14,068,022 $ 4,210,405 $ 18,278,427 $ 18,347,636

Employee benefits 1,475,632 1,690,124 3,165,756 839,253 4,005,009 4,312,503

Payroll taxes 566,611 474,631 1,041,242 249,281 1,290,523 1,259,813

Client wages 104,421 20,394 124,815 - 124,815 207,493

Professional fees 136,954 15,280,316 15,417,270 776,946 16,194,216 14.930.020

Staff development
and training 10,842 7,525 18,367 8,074 26,441 44,455

Occupancy costs 569,962 453,014 1,022,976 176,514 . 1,199,490 1,298,725

Consumable supplies 124,142 176,088 300,230 44,447 344,677 462,185

Equipment expenses 135,587 98,955 234,542 56,728 291,270 293,138

Communications 111,291 108,591 219,882 39,243 259,125 297,'725
Travel and transportation 109,925 307,696 417,621 13,415 431,036 867,152

Assistance to individuals 393 39,432 39,825 255 40,080 79,139

Insurance 69,257 65,306 134,563 34,882 169,445 152,963

Membership dues 30,928 7,033 37,961 89,176 127,137 128,466

Bad debt expense 295,875 116,542 412,417 - 412,417 616,701

Other expenses 18,345 471 18,816 225.204 244,020 129,527

Total expenses $ 11,535,421 $ 25,138,884 $ 36,674,305 $ 6,763,823 $ 43,438.128 $ 43,427,641

See Notes to Financial Statements
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

State Children

Non-Specialized Eligible Adult Outpatient and /

Outoatient Outoatient Contracts Adolescents

(PENSES

Salaries and wages $  313,129 $  999,108 $  262,348 $  961,490

Employee benefits 46,955 126,634 36,922 161,231

Payroll taxes 22,426 67,614 20,231 69.709

Client wages - - ■ -

Professional fees 6,729 14,954 4,615 28,017

Staff development and training 210 750 1,650 1,599

Occupancy costs 22,539 58,850 16,433 48,383

Consumable supplies 13,100 10,843 1,577 7,768

Equipment expenses 4,617 14,478 ' 3,973 12,635

Communications 7,558 10,686 2,043 9,291

Travel and transportation 79 609 1,848 12,919

Assistance to individuals 121 102 - 24

Insurance 3,329 10,298 2,866 9,061

Memt>ership dues 1,868 7,782 1,145 4,000

Bad debt expense 69,696 3 26,325

Other expenses 45 389 278 542

Total expenses $  .442.705 $  1,392,793 $  355,932 $  1,352,994

See Notes to Financial Statements
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Continued

NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Emergency

Services

Other

Non-BBH

Integrated

Health Grant

Bureau of

Drug & Alcohol

Services

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages $ 536,321 $ 281,990 $ - $ ' 144,308

Employee beneftts 83,172 67.005 -
22,609

Payroll taxes 37,790 20,287 - 10,566

Client wages -
- - -

Professional fees 7,873 6,777 - 1,500

Staff development and training 549 654 - 660

Occupancy costs 28,497 15,258 - 7,147

Consumable supplies 3,655 2,358 -
1,037

Equipment expenses 9,365 4,880 10,980 2,148

Communications 22,467 1,972 439 851

Travel and transportation 79 1.746 - 2

Assistance to individuals 22 •
- -

Insurance 5,404 2,660 ■
1,426

Membership dues 1,676 908 - 426

Bad debt expense 16,215 139 -
1,536

Other expenses

Total expenses

60 45 - 270

$ 753,145 $ 406,679 $ 11,419 $ 194,486

See Notes to Financial Statements
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NORTHERN HUMAN SPRVICES INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Continued

Drug

Court

Vocational

Services

Restorative

Partial

Hospital

Case

Management

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Client wages
Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs
Consumable supplies
Equipment expenses
Communications

Travel and transportation

Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues
Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

277,418

60,541

19,504

4,371

269

7,266

1,691

3,949

4,473

1,908

1,959

830

16,884

2,324

403,287

s 140,446 $ 47,116 $ 839,839

38,606 12,990 186,430

13,826 3,450 62.613

41,176 - -

2,713 581 12,316

214 5 568

10,242 2,537 41,715

2,114 442 7,558

2,299 754 11,528

10,446 160 10,508

8,291 118 26,180

- - 34

1,475 510 8,099

469 159 2,614

3,689 114 = 69.011

1,287 494 4.020

$ 277,293 $ 69,430 $ 1,283.033

See Notes to Financial Statements
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Continued

NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Supportive

Living

Community
Residences

Bridge
Grant

Victims of

Crime Act

Program

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Client wages
Professional fees

Staff development and training

Occupancy costs
Consumable supplies
Equipment expenses
Communications

Travel and transportation

Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

544,477

143,351

41,232

8,803

372

35,606

5,231

8,328

5,553

17,977

6,014

1,935

13,449

661

.811,624

196,885

59,908

4,050

95

44,115

"21,676
9,137

10,255

2,155

71

2,763

839

8,518

7,660

50,868

11,749

3,661

422

600

119,154

686

521

203

2,639

365

198

407,713

69,461

28,644

5,633

396

20,584

2,431

5,096

2,652

6

10

3,773

1.445

11,810

832,989 1,179,751 191,066 559,654

See Notes to Financial Statements
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Continued

Other Total

ACT Mental Health Mental Health 2020

Team Proa rams Proorams Summarized

IXPENSES

Salaries and wages $  980,105 $  176,956 $  7,775.256 S  7,256,309

Employee benefits 185,253 25,838 1,475,632 1,443,451

Payroll taxes 67,045 18,105 566,611 511,611

Client wages 7,152 56,093 104,421 108,499

Professional fees 26,246 1,354 136,954 206,342

Staff development and training 2,166 85 10,842 19,191

Occupancy costs 68,851 22,785 569,962 604,577

Consumable supplies 6,023 36,052 124,142 196,136

Equipment expenses 12,052 18,847 135,587 105,910

Communications 5,171 6,563 111,291 131,115

Travel and transportation 21,851 11,518 109,925 189,477

Assistance to individuals 9 - 393 1,961

Insurance 8,614 641 69,257 51,989

Membership dues 4,436 198 30,928 24,205

Bad debt expense 53,517 4,969 295,875 508,139

Other expenses - 270 '  18,345 11,145

Total expenses $  1,448,491 $  380,274 $  11,535,421 $  11,370,057

See Notes to Financial Statements
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Service

Coordination

School

District

Contracts

Day

Programs

Early

Supports

& Services

Independent

Living

Services

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Client wages
Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs
Consumable supplies
Equipment expenses

Communications

Travel and transportation
Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues
Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

473,259

97,243

35,771

471,423

285

44,849

9,129

5,103

4,848

3,678

4,655

9

$  1,150,252 $_

53,841

9,020

4,100

189

15

2,557

550

525

316

628

2

3.463

75,206

1,568,347

643,089

126,667

15,581

486,570

711

204,494

33,585

61,073

24,762

186,346

3,751

23,442

3,200

13,759
294

3,395,671

468,930

89,903

34,889

141,229

1,958

9,439

5,627

4,055

14,168

27,314

58

4,928

117

94,766

897,381

71,126

45,839

5,478

22,515

71

5,319

1,120

986

718

871

1

1,097

2

603

155,746

See Notes to Financial Statements
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Continued

NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Combined Day/ Individual Combined Day/

Family Residential Supported Consolidated Residential

Residence Vendor LIvlna Services Services

XPENSES

Salaries and wages $  2,184,896 $ $  266,429 S  776,126 $  18,924

Employee beneHts 627,726 - 76,555 129,796 4,112

Payroll taxes 163,381 ■ 19,780 50,841 1,451

Client wages 4,813 - - ■ •

Professional fees 3,587.226 1,798,547 1,293 1,674,606 1,639,235

Staff development and training 2.566 ■ 389 .  384 37

Occupancy costs 130,094 - 35,618 3,979 ,1,530

Consumable supplies 80,845 - 10,652 15,169 10,628

Equipment expenses 19,102 ■ 1,810 2,981 257

Communications 27,246 - 1,972 27,762 894

Travel and transportation 29,562 - 3,921 51,214 -

Assistance to individuals 29 - - 25,574 -

Insurance 20,734 - 2,476 3,002 254

Membership dues 450 - 4 ^844 -

Bad debt expense 3,951 ♦ - - -

Other expenses 98 - - 79 -

Total expenses $  ■6,782,719 $  1,798,547 $  420,899 $  2,764,357 $  , 1,677,322

See Notes to Financial Statements
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^ NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Continued

Acquired
Brain

Disorder

Other

Developmental

Services

Programs

Total

Developmental

Services

Programs

2020

Summarized

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Client wages

Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs
Consumable supplies
Equipment expenses

Communications

Travel and transportation

Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

30,797

13,783

2,237

64,016

51

1,086

292

327

427

401

337

1

380,091

53,058

30,036

5,393,465

1,058

14,049

8,491

2,736

5,478

4,389

10,019

3,753

404

6,292,766

1,690,124

474,631

20,394

15,280,316

7,525

453,014

176,088

98,955

108,591

307,696

39,432

65,306

7,033

116,542

471

7,288,247

2,018,023

505,954

98,994

13,952,776

19,969

510;258
206,721

141,286

118,675

646,801

77,038

73,139

16,785

108,562

3,158

Total expenses 113.757 5,907,027 25,138,884 25,786,386

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MORTHFRN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Northern Human Services, Inc. (the Organization), is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation, and
was created to develop and provide a comprehensive program of mental health, developmental
disabilities, and rehabilitative care to the residents of Northern New Hampshire.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of Northern Human Services, Inc. have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting and, accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables and other
liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications. The classes of net assets are determined by
the presence or absence of donor restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-

imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the
primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may be used at the
discretion of the Organization's management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by
donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature: those
restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Organization had net assets with donor restrictions and net
assets without donor restrictions.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for use without donor restrictions unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor for future periods or for
specific purposes are reported as support with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restrictions. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is
received, the Organization reports the support as without donor restrictions.

Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to activities
and a credit to a valuation allowance based on historical account write-off patterns by the payor,
adjusted as necessary to reflect current conditions. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the
valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The Organization has no policy for
charging interest on overdue accounts nor are its accounts receivable pledged as collateral.

It is the policy of the Organization to provide services to all eligible residents of Northern New
Hampshire without regard to ability to pay. As a result of this policy, all charity care write-offs are
recorded as reductions of revenue in the period in which services are provided. The accounts
receivable allowance includes the estimated amount of charity care and contractual allowances
included in the accounts receivable balances. The computation of the contractual allowance is
based on historical ratios of fees charged to amounts collected.

Property and Depreciation

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if contributed, at estimated fair value at the date of
contribution. Material assets with a useful life in excess of one year are capitalized. Depreciation
is provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the cost of the
assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Vehicles 5-10 years
Equipment 3 - 10 years

Costs for repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred and betterments are capitalized.
Assets sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, along with the related
accumulated depreciation, and any gain or loss is recognized.

Investments

Investments consist of mutual funds and interest-bearing investments and are stated at fair value
on the statements of financial position based on quoted market prices. The Organization's
investments are subject to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and overall market volatility,
which may substantially impact the fair value of such investments at any given time.

Accrued Earned Time

The Organization has accrued a liability for future compensated absences that its employees have
earned and which is vested with the employees.

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as revenue in
the period in which the related services are provided or costs are incurred.

Program Service Fee Revenue

The Organization has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the
Organization at amounts different from its established rates. Payment arrangements include
reimbursed costs, discounted charges, and per diem payments. Program service fee revenue is
reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from clients, third-party payors. and others for
services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements
with the third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are
determined.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Summarized Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but
not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a
presentation In conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020, from which the summarized information
was derived.

Functional Allocatioh of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature, such as salaries, rent, supplies,
etc. Functional expenses are classified by the type of activity for which expenses are incurred,
such as management and general and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function
using a reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on function and use. The costs
of providing certain program and supporting services have been directly charged.

Income taxes
The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. In addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable contribution .deduction
under Section 170(b)(1)(a) and has been classified as an organization that is not a private
foundation.

FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, establishes the minimum threshold for recognizing,
and a system for measuring, the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements, and is
effective for Northern Human Services' current year. Management has analyzed Northern Human
Services' tax positions taken on its information returns for all open tax years (three years), and has
concluded that no additional provision for income tax is required in Northern Human Services'
financial statements.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09 (Topic 606) - Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
The ASU and all subsequently issued clarifying ASUs replaced the most existing revenue
recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP. The ASU also requires expanded disclosures relating to the
nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue from cash flows arising from contracts with
customers. The Organization adopted the new standard effective July 1, 2020, the first day of the
Organization's fiscal year using the modified retrospective approach. The adoption did not result in
a change to the accounting for any of the applicable revenue streams: as such, no cumulative
effect adjustment was recorded.

Revenue Recognition

The Organization derives revenues from services provided to its clients. Service revenue is
reported at the amount that reflects consideration to which the Organization expects to be entitled
in exchange for providing services. These amounts are due from clients and third-party payers.
Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied.
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the
Organization and the contract with the client or third-party and are satisfied when the service is
performed.

The Organization determines the transaction price based on standard charges for goods and
services provided as well as the state contract rate with third-party payers.

2. AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents $  17,609,125 $  14,216,578

• Accounts receivable, net 3,692,791 2,431,296
Grants receivable 224,187 515,878
Assets, limited use 806,316 724,596
Investments 2,524,860 2,064,316
Cash value of life insurance 470.832 452.278

Total financial assets 25;328,111 20,404,942
Less amounts not available to be used within one year:

Cash and cash equivalents, board designated 318,202 318,202
Client funds held in trust 469,616 397,289
Net assets with donor restrictions ■ 257.110 256.226

Total amounts not available within one year 1.044.928 971.717

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures
over the next twelve' months $  24.283.183 $  19.433.225

The Organization's goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 120 days of operating
expenses (approximately $10,500,000).

3. ASSETS. LIMITED USE

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, assets, limited use consisted of the following:

Donor restricted cash

Client funds held in trust

Employee benefits

Total assets, limited use

2021

257,110
469,801
79.405

2020

256,226
397,253
71.117

$  806.3.16 $ 724.596
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

4. PROPERTY AND DEPRECIATION

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, property and equipment consisted of the following:

2021 2020

Vehicles $ 346,326 $ 633,548
Equipment 272.231 2.779.836

Total property and equipment 618,557 3,413,384
Less accumulated depreciation 424.653 3.151.977

Property and equipment, net $ 193.904 $ 261.407

Depreciation expense totaled $121,923 and $181,884 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

5. INVESTMENTS

The Organization's investments are presented in the financial statements in the aggregate at fair
value and consisted of the following as of June 30, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020

Fair Fair

Value Cost Value Cost

Money Market Funds $ 27,012 $ 27,012 $ 51,642 $ 51,642
Mutual Funds:

Domestic equity funds 952,660 651,802 721,852 649,349
International equity funds 438,861 335,741 305,407 298,585
Fixed income funds 1,091,079 1,064,166 949,227 900,785
Other mutual funds 15.248 14.386 36.188 39.192

Total $ 2.524.860 $ 2.093.107 $ 2.064.316 $ 1.939.553

Investments in common stock and U.S. government securities are valued at the closing price
reported in the active market in which the securities, are traded.' Management considers all
investments to be long term in nature.

2021 2020

Components of Investment Return:

Interest and dividends $ 42,846 $ 46,784

Unrealized gains on investments 308,604 9,790
Realized gains on investments 125.748 57.410

$  477.198 £ 113.984

Investment management fees for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 were $16,215 and
$15,350, respectively, and were netted with investment return.
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10 provides a definition of fair value which focuses on an exit price rather
than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally accepted accounting principles for
measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-
specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In
accordance with FASB ASC 820-10, the Organization may use valuation techniques consistent with
market, income and cost approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market
participant assumptions in fair value measurements, ASC Topic 820 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of
the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic 820 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in active
markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market prices in
active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting
date, and fair value can be determined through the use of models or other valuation
methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in situations
where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability and the reporting
entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the pricing of the asset or liability
including assumptions regarding risk.

The Organization's financial instruments consist of cash, short-term receivables and payables, and
refundable advances. The carrying value for all such instruments, considering the terms,
approximates fair value at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets at fair value. There
have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Mutual Funds: All actively traded mutual funds are valued at the daily closing price
as reported by the fund. These funds are required to publish their daily net asset
value (NAV) and to transact at that price. All mutual funds held by the Organization
are open-end mutual funds that are registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Life insurance: The surrender value of life insurance is valued at the cash value

guaranteed to the policyowner upon cancellation of the life insurance policy. The
surrender value is the value of investments less any surrender charges.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

The table below segregates all financial assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (at least annually) into the most appropriate level within
the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used to determine the fair value at the measurement date:

Money Market Funds
Mutual Funds

Domestic equity funds
International equity funds
Fixed income funds

Other funds

Cash Value of Life

Insurance

Total investments at

fair value

Money Market Funds
Mutual Funds

Domestic equity funds
International equity funds
Fixed income funds

Other funds

Cash Value of Life

Insurance

Total investments at

fair value

$

2021

Level 1

27.012 $

952,660

438,861
1,091,079

15,248

Level 2 Level 3

Level 1

470.832

S  2.524.860 $ 470.832

51,642 $

721,852

305,407
949,227
36,188

2020

Level 2 Level 3

-  $

452.278

Total

27,012

952,660
438,861

1,091,079
15,248

470.832

$  2.995.692

Total

51,642

721,852
305,407
949,227

36,188

'452.278

$  2.064316 $ 452.278

7. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a retirement plan for all eligible employees. Under the plan employees
can make voluntary contributions to the plan of up to 100% of pretax or after tax annual
compensation up to the maximum annual limit provided by the Internal Revenue Service. All
employees who work one thousand hours per year are eligible to participate after one year of
employment, as defined by the plan. During the year ended June 30, 2015, the Organization
implemented a 2% discretionary contribution allocated each pay period. During the year ended
June 30, 2020, the Organization'increased the discretionary contribution from 2% to 3%.
Contributions by the Organization totaled $744,597 and $422,993 for the years ended June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively.
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

8. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains cash balances that, at times, may exceed federally Insured limits. The
balances are Insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 for the
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Organization had cash
balances in excess of FDIC coverage'. However, In addition to FDIC coverage, the Organization
maintains a tri-party collateralization agreement with its primary financial institution and a trustee.
The trustee maintains mortgage-backed collateralization of 102% of the Organization's deposits at
Its financial Institution. The Organization has not experienced any losses in.such accounts and
believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these accounts.

9. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, approximately 87% and 86% of the total revenue
was derived from Medicald,- respectively. The future existence of the Organization Is dependent
upon continued support from Medicaid.

In order for the Organization to receive Medicaid-funding, they must be formally approved by the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community
Based Care Services, Bureau of Behavioral Health, and Bureau of Developmental Services as the
provider of services for Individuals with mental health illnesses and developmentally disabled
individuals, for that region. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Organization was reapproved
as a provider of mental health services with the Bureau of Behavioral Health through August 2021.

Medicaid receivables comprise approximately 90% and 87% of the total accounts receivable
balances at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

10. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Organization has entered into various operating lease agreements to rent certain facilities and
■ office equipment. The terms of these leases range from one to five years. Rent expense under
these agreements aggregated $1,018,093 and $1,030,701 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases as of June 30, 2021 is
$942,259 for the year ending June 30, 2022.

See Note 11 for information regarding lease agreements with a related party.

11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organization Is related to the nonprofit corporation Shallow River Properties, Inc. (Shallow
River) as a result of common board membership. Shallow River was Incorporated under the laws
of the State of New Hampshire on September 13, 1988, for the purpose of owning, maintaining,
managing, selling, and leasing real property associated with the provision of residential, treatment,
and administrative services for the clients and staff of the Organization.
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The Organization has transactions with Shallow River during its normal course of operations. The
significant related party transactions are as follows;

Due to/from Related Partv

At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Organization had a due to Shallow River balance in the amount of
$53,208 and $58,112, respectively.

Rental Expense

The Organization leases various properties, including office space, and properties occupied by the
Organization's clients from Shallow River under the terms of tenant at will agreements. The
Organization has the perpetual right to extend the leases. Total rental expense paid under the
terms of the leases was $770,034 for each of the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. The
Organization also leases space from a board member for $1,000 per month.

Management Fee

The Organization charges Shallow River for administrative expenses incurred on its behalf.
Management fee revenue aggregated $74,649 for each of the years ended June 30, 2021 and
2020.

Donation

Although not required by agreement between Shallow River and the Organization, Shallow River
generally donates the excess of its revenues over expenses to the Organization in order to
maintain its 501(c)(2) tax-exempt status with the Internal Revenue Service. At June 30, 2021 and
2020, Shallow River did not make a donation to the Organization but retained its surplus of
$604,102 and $254,448, respectively, due to future plans of acquiring a new building and for use in
future renovation projects and maintenance costs.

12. REFUNDABLE ADVANCES. MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT

The Organization maintains contracted arrangements with multiple Medicaid managed care
organizations (MCOs) that provide a set per member per month payment for health care services
provided. This system helps manage costs, utilization, and quality of services. The Organization is
paid prior to services being provided each month and is required to maintain certain levels of
performance. A reconciliation is calculated at year end between the Organization and the MCOs to
determine if the Organization has been overpaid compared to actual utilization and services
performed, which the Organization would then be required to repay. Due to suspensions of the
required maintenance of effort levels of performance as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic during
the year ended June 30, 2021, there was no outstanding capitated payment liability at June 30,
2021. At June 30, 2020, the outstanding capitated payment liability totaled $339,562.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives funding under various state and federal grants. Under the terms of
these grants, the Organization is required to use the money within the grant period for purposes
specified in the grant proposal. If expenditures for the grant were found not to have been made in
compliance with the proposal, the Organization' may be required to repay the grantor's funds.

23



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3B7E4D67-4FAA-47ED-A2B2-D928FA8F5C64

NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

Excess funds generated from state and/or Medicaid funded programs may be expended, at the
Organization's discretion, to increase or improve service delivery within the program. The excess
funds may not be used to increase spending for personnel, professional fees, fringe benefits, or
capital expenditures without prior written approval of the State of New Hampshire.

The Organization has contracts with certain third-party payers requiring specific performance to
supervise and document certain events relating to client treatment. These agencies periodically
audit the performance of the Organization in fulfilling these requirements. If the payments were
found not to have been made in compliance with the contracts, the Organization may be required
to repay the funds received under the contract.

The Organization ensures its medical malpractice risks on a claims-made basis under a policy,
which covers all of Its employees. The Organization intends to renew coverage on a claims-made
basis and anticipates that such coverage will be available.

Contracts with the State of New Hampshire and various federal agencies require that the
properties supported be used for certain programs and/or to serve specified client populations. If
Shallow River or the Organization should stop using the property to provide services acceptable to
these grantors, the grantors would be entitled to all or part of the proceeds from the disposition of
the property. These stipulations affect substantially all of the properties owned by Shallow River.
The affected amount and the disposition are determined by negotiation with the granting authority
at the time the property is sold.

14. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

At June 30, 2021 and 2020, net assets with donor restrictions consisted of the following:

2021 2020

Certificates of Deposit-Memorial Fund $ 252,417 $ 252,417
Dream Team Fund 2,963 2,962
Income earned on the Memorial Fund 1.730 847

Total net assets with donor restrictions

15. ENDOWMENT FUND AND NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

As a result of the June 30, 2006 merger of The Center of Hope for Developmental Disabilities, Inc.
(Center of Hope), with and into the Organization, the Organization assumed responsibility for
certain assets of Center of Hope that are subject to charitable restrictions and designated for
particular purposes, namely the Memorial Fund (the Fund).

The Fund was created by the Center of Hope In 1989 for the purpose of seeking out and funding
experiences that make life more interesting and full for people with disabilities. In or around 1992,
additional funds were added to the Fund as a result of a testamentary bequest of Dorothy M.
Walters, for the purpose of providing "maintenance funds" for programs for individuals with mental
and developmental disabilities. The Center of Hope interpreted the terms of this bequest as
consistent with the purpose of the Fund, and the bequest meets the definition of an endowment
fund.
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The Not-for-Profit Entities Topic of the FASB ASC (ASC 958-205 and subsections) intends to
improve the quality of consistency of financial reporting of endowments held by not-for-profit
organizations. This Topic provides guidance on classifying the net assets associated with donor-
restricted endowment funds held by organizations that are subject to an enacted version of the
Uniform Prudent Management Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). New Hampshire has adopted
UPMIFA. The Topic also requires additional financial statement disclosures on endowments and
related net assets.

The Organization has followed an investment and spending policy to ensure a total return (income
plus capital change) necessary to preserve the principal of the fund and at the same time, provide
a dependable source of support for life-enhancing activities of eligible individuals. The
Organization will only distribute income generated by the fund, leaving the original corpus intact.

In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, the Organization only invests the fund in
certificates of deposits, which ensures that a majority of the balance of the Fund is covered by the
FDIC. The Organization has taken a risk adverse approach to managing the Fund in order to
mitigate financial market risk such as interest rate, credit and overall market volatility, which could
substantially impact the fair value of the Fund at any given time.

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the endowment was entirely composed of net assets with donor
restrictions.

Changes in endowment net assets (at fair value) as of June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020 were as
follows:

2021 2020

Certificates of deposit, beginning of year
Interest income

Withdrawals

Certificates of deposit end of year

$ 252.417
883

(8831

$ 252,417
631

(6311

$  252:417 ^ 252.417

16. LONG TERM CARE STABILIZATION PROGRAM

In response to.COVID-19, in April 2020, the State of New Hampshire established the Long Term Care
Stabilization (LTCS) Program to provide stipends to certain front line Medicaid providers.- The
program was developed to incentivize these direct care workers to remain in or rejoin this critical
workforce and continue to provide high quality care to vulnerable persons during the pandemic. Under
the program, the New Hampshire Department of Employment Security (NHES) would distribute $300
per week in stipends to full time qualifying front line workers and $150 per week in stipends to part
time qualifying front line workers. The funding for the LTCS Program was provided through the
Coronavirus Relief Fund.

During the year ended June 30. 2021. the Organization received and expended grant revenue of
$931,371 under the grant through payroll and subcontractor expenses. During the year ended June
*30, 2020. the Organization received and expended grant revenue of $792,055 under the grant
through payroll and subcontractor expenses. During its Initial implementation, the program ran from
April 2020 through July 31, 2020. In November 2020, the program was reinstated through December
2020.
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17. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were reclassified to enhance
comparability with the current year's financial statements.

18. OTHER EVENTS

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent Its spread are affecting the
Organization. The significance of the Impact of these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse
impact on the Organization's financial and operational results, will be dictated by the length of time
that such disruptions continue and, in tum, will depend on the currently unknowable duration of the
COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that might be imposed In response
to the pandemic. The COVID-19 impact on the capital markets could also impact the Organization's
cost of borrowing. There are certain limitations on the Organization's ability to mitigate the adverse
financial impact of these items. Due to the measures put in-place to prevent the spread of COVID-19
we are unable to estimate the future performance of the Organization.

19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are, events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial position
date, but before financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized subsequent events
are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the
statement of financial position date, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing
financial statements. Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that date.
Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 1, 2022, the date the June 30, 2021
financial statements were available for issuance.
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

TOTALS FOR ALL PROGRAMS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Mental Developmental

Health Services Subtotals

REVENUES.

Program service fees:
Client fees $  305,713 $  14,803 $  320,516

Residential fees 64,198 213,811 278,009

Blue Cross 208,955 33,579 242,534

Medicaid 13,063,543 27,042,822 40,106,365

Medicare 649,861 - 649.861

Other insurance 433,282 45,782 479,064

Local educational authorities - 36,511 36,511

Vocational rehabilitation - 1,350 1,350

Other program fees 960 ■ 960

Production/service income 248,100 27,742 275,842

Public support:

Local/county governrhent 411,211 32,667 443,878

Donations/contributions 7,881 200 8,081

Other public support 330,627 - 330,627

Bureau of Developmental Services

and Bureau of Behavioral Health 1,771,962 156,326 1,928,288

Other federal and state funding:

HUD - - -

Other - - -

Private foundation grants 306,674 306,674

Other revenues 192,359 70,417 262,776

Total revenues 17,995.326 27,676,010 45,671,336

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages $ 7,775,256 $ 6,292,766 $ 14,068,022

Employee benefits 1,475,632 1,690,124 3,165,756

Payroll taxes ' 566,611 474,631 1,041,242

Client wages 104,421 20,394 124,815

Professional fees 136,954 15,280,316 15,417,270

Staff development and training 10,842 7,525 18,367

Occupancy costs 569,962 453,014 1,022,976

Consumable supplies 124,142 176,088 300,230

Equipment expenses 135,587 98,955 234,542

Communications 111,291 108,591 219,882

Travel and transportation 109,925 307,696 417,621

Assistance to individuals 393 39,432 39,825

Insurance 69,257 65,306 134,563

Membership dues 30,928 7,033 37,961

Bad debt expense 295,875 116,542 412,417

Other expenses 18,345 471 18,816

Total expenses 11,535,421 25,138,884 36,674,305

General 2021 2020

Manaoement Total Summarized

$  23 $  320,539 $  597,740

- 278,009 290,389

- 242,534 219,130

29,707 40,136,072 39,753,270
- 649,861 527,140

80 ' 479,144 377.932

- 36,511 128,424
- 1,350 12,777

- 960 589

-
275,842 327,416

191,549 635,427 405,607

5,181 13,262 22,671

316,330 646,957 312,719

2,250 1,930,538 1,186,973

75,565

966,621 966,621 906,851

13,505 320,179 278,486

107,860 370,636 266,938

1,633,106 47,304,442 45.690.617

S 4,210,405 $ 18,278,427 $ 18,347,636

839,253 4,005,009 4,312,503

249,281 1,290,523 1,259,813

- 124,815 207,493

776,946 16,194,216 14,930,020

8.074 26,441 44,455

176,514 1,199,490 1,298,725

44,447 344,677 462,185

56,728 291,270 293,138

39,243 259,125 297,725

13,415 431,036 867,152

255 40,080 79,139

34,882 169,445 152,963

-  89,176 127.137 128,466

- 412,417 616,701

225,204 244.020 129,527

6,763,823 43,438,128 43,427,641

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER.EXPENSES $ 6.459.905 $ 2.537.126 $ 8,997,031 $ (5.130.717) $ 3.866.314 $_ 2,262,976
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES
MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Non-Specialized

Outpatient

REVENUES

Program service fees:
Client fees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Locai educational authorities

Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support:
Locai/county government

Donations/contributions

Other public support
Bureau of Developmental Sen/ices
and Bureau of Behavioral Health

Other federal and state funding:

HUD

Other

Private foundation grants

Other revenues

Total revenues

118,377

7,881

1,500

103,228

State

Eligible Audit
Outpatient

70,994 $

75,992

158,184

138,636

160,144

834,936 2.645,519

Outpatient
Contracts

81,041 $

50,653

1,890,740

428,320

194,765

553,261

390

9,713

Children

and

Adolescents

46,185

69,317

3,152,146

61.719

563,364 3,329,367

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages $  313,129 $  999,108 $ 262,348

Empioyee benefits 46,955 126,634 36,922

Payroil taxes 22,426 67,614 20,231

Client wages - -
-

Professional fees 6,729 14,954 4,615

Staff development and training 210 750 1,650

Occupancy costs 22,539 58,850 16,433

Consumable supplies 13,100 10,843 1,577

Equipment expenses 4,617 14,478 3,973

Communications 7,558 10,686 2,043

Travel and transportation 79 609 1,848

Assistance to individuals 121 102 -

Insurance 3,329 10,298 2,866

Membership dues 1,868 7,782 1,145

Bad debt expense - 69,696 3

Other expenses 45 389 278

Total expenses 442,705 1,392.793 355,932

KCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
207.432OVER EXPENSES $  392,231 $  1,252,726 $

961,490

161,231

69,709

28,017

1,599

48,383

7,768

12,635

9,291

12,919

24

9,061

4,000

26,325
542

1,352,994

$  1,976,373
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Continued

NORTHERN HUMAN SFRViCES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES

Program service fees:
Client fees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medlcaid

Medicare

Other.insurance

Local educational authorities

Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support:
Local/county government
Donations/contributions

Other public support

Bureau of Developmental Services
and-Bureau of Behavioral Health

Other federal and state funding:
HUD

Emergency

Services

15,872

8,267

96,140

9,663

10,122

Other

Non-BBH

747

628

394,184

Integrated
Health Grant

98,304

Bureau of

Drug & Alcohol
Services

1,595

994

14,468

4,033

1,229

Other -
- - -

Private foundation grants -
V 210,000 -  ' -

Other revenues • - - 103

Total revenues 238,368 605,559 22,422

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages. $  536,321 $  281,990 $ - $  144,308

Employee benefits 83,172 67,005 - 22,609

Payroll taxes 37,790 20,287 -
10,566

Client wages - -
- -

Professional fees 7,873 6,777 - 1,500

Staff development and training 549 654 660

Occupancy costs 28,497 15,258 - 7,147

Consumable supplies 3,665 2,358 - 1,037

Equipment expenses 9,365 4,880 10,980 2,148

Communications 22,467 1,972 439 851

Travel and transportation 79 1,746 - 2

Assistance to individuals 22 -
- -

Insurance 5,404 2,660 -
1,426

Membership dues 1,676 908 - 426

Bad debt expense 16,215 139 -
1,536

Other expenses

Total expenses

60 45 - 270

753,145 406,679 11,419 194,486

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENSES $  (514,777) $  198,880 $ (11,419) $  (172,064)
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Continued

NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

. FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Drug
Court

REVENUES

Program service fees:
Client fees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Local educational authorities

Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support:.
Local/county government

Donations/contributions

Other public support

Bureau of Developmental Services

and Bureau of Behavioral Health

Other federal and state funding:
HUD

Other

Private foundation grants
Other revenues

Total revenues

48,028

570

292.834

42.280

Vocational

Services

138.039

29,761

Restorative

Partial

Hospital

92

Case

Management

$  35,347

1,849,201

189

566

24,601

383,712 167,800 92 1.909,904

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Client wages

Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs
Consumable supplies
Equipment expenses
Communications

Travel and transportation

Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES

277,418

60,541

19,504

4,371

269

7,266

1,591

3,949

4,473

1,908

1,959

830

16,884

2,324

403,287

140,446

38,606

13,826

41,176

2,713

214

10,242

2,114

2,299

10,446

8,291

1,475

469

3,689
1,287

277,293

47,116

12,990

3,450

581

5

2,537

442

754

160

118

510

159

114

494

69,430

839,839

186,430

62,613

12,316

568

41,715

7,558

11,528

10,508

26,180

34

8,099

2,614

69,011

4,020

1,283,033

$  (19,575) $ (109,493) $ (69,338) $ 626,871
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Continued

NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Supportive Community Bridge Victims of

Livlna Residences Grant Crime Act

REVENUES

Program service fees:
Client fees $  6,369 $  5,249 $ $  8,399

Residential fees -" 41,170 - -

Blue Cross - - - 1,871

Medicaid 1,917,620 1,280,517 - 129,687

Medicare - - - 10,965

Other insurance - - - 3,538

Local educational authorities - - - -

Vocational rehabilitation ■ - - -

Other program fees - - -
-

Production/service income - - -
-

Public support;

Local/county government - - - -

Donations/contributions - - -
-

Other public support - ■ -
320,914

Bureau of Developmental Services
and Bureau of Behavioral Health - 86,250 182,847 -

Other federal and state funding:
HUD - - - -

Other - - - -

Private foundation grants - - - -

Other revenues - 1,251 7,984 -

Total revenues 1,923,989 1,414,437 190,831 475,374

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages $  544,477 $  811,624 $  50,868 $  407,713

Employee benefits 143,351 196,885 11,749 69,461

Payroll taxes 41,232 59,908 3,661 28,644

Client wages - - - -

Professional fees 8,803 4,050 422 5,633

Staff development and training 372 95 600 396

Occupancy costs 35,606 44,115 119,154 20,584

Consumable supplies 5,231 21,676 686 2,431

Equipment expenses 8,328 9,137 521 5,096

Communications 5,553 10,255 203 2,652

Travel and transportation 17,977 2,155 2,639 6

Assistance to individuals - 71 - 10

Insurance 6,014 2,763 365 3,773

Membership dues 1,935 839 198 1,445

Bad debt expense 13,449 8,518 - 11,810

Other expenses 661 7,660 - -

Total expenses 832,989 1,179,751 191,066 559,654

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES $  1,091,000 $  234,686 $  (235) $  (84,280)
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

MENTAL HEALTH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Continued

REVENUES

Program service fees:
Client fees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Local educational authorities

Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support:

Local/county government

Donations/contributions

Other public support
Bureau of Developmental Services
and Bureau of Behavioral Health

Other federal and state funding:
HUD

Other

Private foundation grants
Other revenues

Total revenues

ACT

Team

33,915

23,028

963

1,438,380

58,055

1,199

1,285,167

2,840,707

Other

Mental Health

Programs

Total

Mental Health

Programs

448,945 17,995,326

2020

Summarized

. $  305,713 $  572,870

. 64,198 69,223

270 208,955 182,887

2,856 13,063,543 12,177,461

- 649,861 527,140

-
433,282 315,887

5,500

- 960 589

218,339 248,100 194.429

411,211 403,207

- 7,881 2,810

-
330,627 312,719

119,394 1,771,962 890,611

. 75,565

. - 109,947

95,174 306,674 273,486

12,912 192,359 89,605

16,203,936

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Client wages

Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs

Consumable supplies

Equipment expenses

Communications

Travel and transportation
Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

$  980,105 $ 176,956 $  7,775,256 $  7,256,309

185,253 25,838 1.475,632 1,443;451

67,045 18,105 566,611 511,611

7,152 56,093 104,421 108,499

26,246 1,354 136,954 206,342

2,166 85 10,842 19,191

68,851 22,785 569,962 604,577

6,023 36,052 124,142 196,136

12,052 18,847 135,587 105,910

5,171 6,563 111,291 131,115

21,851 11,518 109,925 189,477

9 - 393 1,961

8,614 641 69,257 51,989

4,436 198 30,928 24,205

53,517 4,969 295,875 508,139
. 270 18,345 11,145

1,448,491 380,274' 11,535,421 11,370.057

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENSES $  1.392,216 68,671 $ 6,459,905 $ 4,833,879
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES
DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Service

Coordination

REVENUES

Program service fees:
Client fees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Local educational authorities

Vocational rehabiiitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support:

Locai/county government

Donations/contributions

Other public support

Bureau of Developmental Services
and Bureau of Behavioral Health

Other federal and state funding:

HUD

Other

Private foundation grants
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Client wages
Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs
Consumable supplies

Equipment expenses
Communications

Travel and transportation

Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES

School

District

Contracts

Day

Programs

Early

, Supports

& Services

Independent

Living

Services

$ $ - $ - $  14,803 $ -

. 33,579 .

1,024,103 -
3,175,257 925,568 185,552

. 45,782 -

• 36,511 - - -

- -
1,350 - -

- -
22,299 ■ ■

. 32,667 -

- - 200 -
"

- - ■
81,792 -

51,191 2,478 2,036

-

1,075.294 36,511 3:234.251 1,103,560 185,552

$  473,259 $ 53,841 $ 1,568,347 $  468,930 $ 71,126

97,243 9,020 643,089 89,903 45,839

35,771 4,100 126,667 34,889 5,478

- - 15,581 - -

471,423 189 486,570 141,229 22,515

285 15 711 1,958 71

44,849 2,557 204.494 9,439 5,319

9,129 550 33,585 5,627 1,120

5,103 525 61,073 - 4,055 986

4,848 316 24,762 14,168 718

3,678 - 186,346 27,314 871

. - 3,751 58 1

4,655 628 23.442 4,928 1,097

9 2 3.200 117 2

. 3,463 13,759 94,766 603

- - 294 - -

1,150,252 75,206 3,395,671 897,381 155,746

$  (74.956) $ (38,695) $ (161.420) $ 206.179 $ 29,806
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND.EXPENSES

DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Continued

REVENUES

Program service fees:
Client fees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medlcaid

Medicare

Other Insurance

Local educational authorities

Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support:

Local/county government
Donations/contributions .

Other public support

Bureau of Developmental Services
and Bureau of Behavioral Health

Other federal and state funding:

HUD

Other

Private foundation grants
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Client wages
Professional fees'

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs
Consumable supplies
Equipment expenses

Communications

Travel and transportation

Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES

Family
Residence

166,041

7,745,381

5.443

13,112

Combined Day/

Residential

Vendor

1,833,352

Individual

Supported

Living

39,183

476,812

Consolidated

Services

2,910,705

Combined Day/

Residential

Services

2,049,449

7,929.977 1,833,352' 515,995 2,910,705 2,049,449

$ 2,184,896 $ $  266,429 $  776,126 $  18,924

527,726 - 76,555 129,796 4,112

163,381 - 19,780 . 50,841 1,451

4,813 . - - -

3,587,226 1,798,547 1,293 1,674,606 1,639,235

2,566 - 389 384 37

130,094 - 35,618 3,979 1,530

80,845 - 10,652 15,169 10,628

19,102 - 1,810 2,981 257

27,246 - 1,972 27,762 894

29,562 - 3,921 51,214 -

29 - - 25,574 -

20,734 - 2,476 . 3,002 254

450 - 4 2.844 -

3,951 - - • ■

98 - - 79 -

6,782,719 1,798,547 420,899 2,764,357 1,677,322

$ 1,147,258 $ 34,805 $  95,096 $  146,348 $  372,127
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Continued

REVENUES

Program service fees:
Client fees

Residential fees

Blue Cross

Medicaid

Medicare

Other insurance

Local educational authorities

Vocational rehabilitation

Other program fees
Production/service income

Public support:

Local/county government

Donations/contributions

Other public support

Bureau of Developmental Services
and Bureau of Behavioral Health

Other federal and state funding:
HUD

Other

Private foundation grants
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Client wages
Professional fees

Staff development and training
Occupancy costs

Consumable supplies
Equipment expenses
Communications

Travel and transportation
Assistance to individuals

Insurance

Membership dues

Bad debt expense

Other expenses

Total e)q>enses

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES

Other Total

Acquired Developmental Developmental

Brain Services Services 2020

Disorder Proarams Proarams Summarized

$ $ $  14,803 $  24,870

. 8,587 213,811 221,166

. - 33,579 36,243

426,019- 6,290,624 27,042,822 27,575,809

45,782 62,045

. - 36,511 128,424

■ ■
1,350 ■7.277

■ ■
27,742 132,987

, 32,667 2,400

- - 200 17,512

■
74,534 156,326 296,362

-

1,600 70,417 66,433

426,019 6,375,345 27,676,010 28.571.528

$  30,797 $  380,091 $  6,292,766 $  7,288,247
13,783 53,058 1,690,124 2,018,023
2,237 30,036 474,631 505,954

- • . 20,394 98,994

64,018 5,393,465 15,280,316 13,952,776
51 1,058 7,525 19,969

1,086 14,049 453,014 510,258
292 8,491 176,088 206,721
327 2,736 98,955 141,286
427 5,478 108,591 118,675
401 4,389 307,696 646,801

. 10,019 39,432 77,038
337 3,753 65,306 73,139

1 404 7,033 16,785
116,542 108,562

- 471 3,158

113,757 5,907,027 25,138,884 ■ 25,786,386

$  312.262 $ 468,318 $ 2,537.126 $ 2,785,142
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NQRTHgRM HUMAN SFRVieeS IWC

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

ASSISTANCE

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ UST1NG

PROGRAM TITLE tjyMSgfi

U.S. Departnwnt of Ju«tic»

Crime VIcJim Assistance 16.575

Total U.S. Department of Justice

U.S. Deoeftment of Treasury

Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019

Total U.S. Department of Treasury

U.S. Depenment of Education

Special Education Grants for Infants and
Families 64.181A

Total U.S. Department of Education

U.S. Deeartment of Health & Human Services

Provider Relief Fund 93.498

Emergency Grants to Address Mental and
Substance Use Disorders During COVID-19 93.665

Medlcald Ctusler

Medical Assistance Program 93.778

Medical Assistance Program 93.778

Rural Health Care Services Outreach and Rural

Health Networlt Development Program 93.912

Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services

TOTAL

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME

New Hampshire Department of Justice

State of NH Governor's Office of Emergency
Relief and Recovery C0V1D-19 Long Term

Care Stabilization Program

State of NH Department of Health and

Human Services. Division of Long Term

Supports and Services

Direct Award

State of NH Department of Health and
Human Services. Division for Behavioral

Health

State of NH Department of Health and

Human Services, Division for Behavioral

Health

State of NH Department of Health and
Human Services, Division for Behavioral

Heatm

North Country Health Consortium

' PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NUMBER

2016VOCA1. 2016VOCA2

N/A

05-95-93-930010-78S2

05-95-92-922010-1909

05-95-92-922010-4121

05-95-49-490510-2985

Unknown

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

5.000

43.251

312.719

312.719

$  931.371

$  931.371

S  34.700

$  34.700

46,564

70.916

48.251

54.963

$  220.694

S 1.499,484

See Notes to Schedule of Expertdltures of Federal Awards
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards {the Schedule) includes
the federal award activity of Northern Human Services, Inc. under programs of the
federal government for the year ended June 30, 2021. The information in this Schedule
is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,~and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents
only a selected portion of the operations of Northern Human Services, Inc., it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash
flows of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein,certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Northern Human Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent de minimis indirect
cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. \KC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Northern Human Services, Inc.
Conway, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,' the financial
statements of Northern Human Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of
activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 1, 2022.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Northern
Human Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing audit procedures- that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Northern Human Services, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Northern Human Services, Inc.'s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination' of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, niaterial weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify a deficiency in
internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
iterh 2021-001 that we consider to be a material weakness.

38



DocuSign Envelope ID; 3B7E4D67-4FAA-47ED-A2B2-D928FA8F5C64

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Northern Human Services, Inc.'s
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance'
with which could have a direct and material effect on the financier statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no. instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Northern Human Services. Inc.'s Response to Findings

Northern Human Services, Inc.'s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Northern Human Services, Inc.'s
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

March 1, 2022
North Conway, New Hampshire
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NORTHERN HIJMAM SERVICES. INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Northern Human Services, Inc.
Conway, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Malor Federal Program
We have audited Northern Human. Services, Inc.'s (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization)
compliance .with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Northern Human Services, Inc.'s
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. Northern Human Services, Inc.'s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibilitv
Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Northern Human Services,
Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of corripliance requirements referred
to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America: the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Title
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and
the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Northern Human Services, Inc.'s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Northern Human
Services, Inc.'s compliance.

Opinion on Each Malor Federal Program
In our opinion. Northern Human Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Northern Human Services, Inc., is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Northern Human
Services. Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Northern Human Services, Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over corhpliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that were not identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal'control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

March 1. 2022
North Conway, New Hampshire
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of
Northern Human Services. Inc. were prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. One material weakness disclosed during the audit of the financial statements is reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance, material to the financial statements of Northern Human
Services, Inc. which would be required to be reported inv accordance with Government
Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies In internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Northern
Human Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)
are reported in this Schedule.

7. The program tested as a major program was: U.S. Department of the Treasury: Coronavirus
Relief Fund, ALN 21.019.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Northern Human Services, Inc. was determined not to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS ■ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

2021-001 - Reconciliation process and month end close

Criteria: Internal controls should be in place to ensure that all cash accounts are reconciled
between the general ledger and bank statements every month in a timely manner.

Condition: Significant entries were required for cash as timely reconciliations were not
being kept as part of the financial statement close process each month and at year end.

Cause: Internal controls were not in place to ensure that monthly bank reconciliations are
prepared in a timely manner each month.

Effect: Financial statement information utilized by management in making decisions may
not be timely or accurate; errors found in preparing bank reconciliations that required
significant journal entries were not found until several months after year end.
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Recommendation: Procedures should be Implemented to ensure that- monthly
reconciliations for all cash accounts are being performed in a timely manner.

Views of Responsible Officials: Up until last fiscal year, the Organization has always had
a process in place to perform the bank reconciliations in a timely manner.

The main reason these were not done timely is due to some staff turnover (retirements)
NHS has had, as well as COVID. NHS had a long term staff accountant retire. She was
responsible for the bank reconciliations in addition to many other duties as it relates to
month end closings, and backup for the payroll associate. NHS had trouble recruiting for
that position and ultimately the department got behind in trying to cover that part of her
duties. There was also another staff accountant position that retired and due to COVID,
NHS had trouble recruiting for that position as well, further delaying the reconciliations.

Going forward, the bank reconciliations will be done monthly during each month end
closing process. This will be reviewed by the CFO or deslgnee to ensure adherence to this
procedure.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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NORTHERN HUMAN SERVICES. INC.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

2020-001 - Reconciliation process and month end close

Condition: Significant entries were required for cash as timely reconciliations were not
being kept as part of the financial statement close process each month and at year end.

Recommendation: Procedures should be implemented to ensure that monthly
reconciliations for all cash accounts are being performed in a timely manner.

Current Status; The finding was repeated during the year ended June 30. 2021.
Subsequent to June 30, 2021, NHS completed catching up on all reconciliations, and these
are now being completed timely.
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Northern Human Services Board of Directors

Officers: Madelene Costello,'President
Dorothy Borchers, Vice President
James Salmon, Treasurer

Staff: Suzanne Gaetjens-Oleson, CEO
-Shawn Bromley, CFO
Susan Wiggin, CEO Assistant
Kassie Eafrati, COO, Mental Health
Liz Charles, COO, Developmental Services

The Mental Health Center

3 Twelfth St., Berlin 03570

Term Communitv Services Center

Expires 69 Willard St., Berlin 03570

'25 Margaret McClellan,
'23 *Stephen Michaud,
'23 *Dorothy Borchers,

Donald Bazzell

Director of BH

Lynn Johnson
Director of DS

Office

447-8137

447-8022

447-8018

752-7404

447-8010

752-7404

752-1005

Home Term

10.20- 10.22

10.20-10.22

10.17 - 10.23

6/01

11/02

05/17

The Mental Health Center

25 W. Main St., Conway 03818
70 Bay St., Wolfeboro 03894
New Horizons (also Tamworth)
626 Eastman Rd., Ctr. Conway 03813

'24 *Maddie Costello^
'23 *Carrie Duran,
'24 James Salmon,

'24 Julie Bosak,

The Mental Health Center

55 Colby St., Colebrook 03576
69 Brooklyn St., Groveton 03582
Vershire Center

24 Depot Street, Colebrook, NH 03576

Valeda Cerasale 447-2111

Director of BH

569-1884

Shanon Mason 356-6310

Director ofDS

Stacey Smith
Director ofBH

Lynn Johnson
Director of DS

237-4955

636-2555

237-5721

9/06 ,

1/17

11/03

11/21

'23

'25

'25

White Mountain Mental Health Amy Finkle
29 Maple St., Box 599, Littleton 03561 Director of BH
Common Ground (also Littleton, Woodsville) Mark Vincent
24 Lancaster Rd., Whitefield 03584 Director of DS

Annette Carbonneau,

Paul J. Smith,

Troy Memer,

444-8501

837-9547

11/20

5/22

5/22

Executive Committee: S. Michaud, M. McClellan, J. Salmon, M. Costello, D. Borchers, S. Gaetjens-Oleson, Shawn Bromley
Finance Committee J. Salmon, M. McClellan, S. Michaud, D. Borchers, M. Costello, Shawn Bromley, S. Gaetjens-Oleson
Program Committee: M. McClellan, M. Costello, C. Duran, L. Charles, K. Eafrati

•Member representing consumer with developmental disability/NOTE: Bylaws state that a minimum of? meetings, including the Annual Business Meeting, must t)e held.

IMPORTANT: Send updated listing to AG's Office / Fax to Provider lntegrit>' (see Rose's 4.8.21 email in Outlook Inbox BOD)

l..ast revised: 12/19,4/20,5/20,9/20, 10/20, 11/20,2/21,7/21,8/21, 12/21, 1.19.22,2.23.22,3,16.22,3.28.22.4.21.22,6.13.22,8.1.22
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Mollie White

strategic and resourceful executive with a talent.for using collaborative, process-driven approaches
to achieve transformational change. History of quantifiable success in relationship building, program
coordination, and grants management which produce measurable outcomes.

Qualified for program leadership and strategic planning roles, 20* years of business management
experience. Passionate about working for a learning organization that actively seeks quality
improvement in order to positively impact people's lives.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

• Multi-Project Management • Budget Management
• ■ Problem Solving • Entrepreneurial Development
•  Strategic Planning • Small Business Planning
• Grant Writing • Relationship Building

Volunteer Development • Community Outreach

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Executive Manager - Coos Coalition for Young Children & Families 2018 > Present

Executive Director-Littleton Regional Chamber of Commerce 2016-2017
Business Ftesource Manager - Northern Community Investment Corporation 2011 - 2016

•  Lender - Managed $9 million loan portfolio comprised of 120 businesses. Originated $1.2
million in new lending in 2014.

•  Resource Coordinator - Worked with small businesses to help them find solutions and
resources for business challenges.

• Grant Writing - Successfully wrote and managed two Community Development Block Grant
applications which were funded by Community Development Finance Authority.

•  Relationship Building - Built strong relationships with local bankers, business service providers
and small business owners.

Community Executive, Health Initiatives - AMERICAN CANCER SOCIETY 2004 - 2011

Recruited to service, five rural hospitals with ACS programs and resources, then assigned to the
largest cancer center in New Hampshire, Norris Cotton Cancer Center, to expand and strengthen
working relationship. During ACS' transition from community-based outreach to a hospital systems
focus, asked to build strategies to increase active referrals within priority hospital systems.
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PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE - Continued

•  Used change management principles to facilitate Health Initiatives team's transition resulting in
107% increase in newly diagnosed served within the first year of implementation and an
additional 65% increase in year two.

• Asked to facilitate five annual Health Initiatives planning retreats to develop strategies for
reaching New England Business Plan goals and provide motivational focus to the coming
year's work.

• As State lead for Nutrition and Physical Activity prevention, used Organizational Development
Process model with rural school district resulting in School Board adoption of Nutrition policy, a
standing H&W Committee, hiring of a H&W Coordinator, and a plan for comprehensive school
health education K-12.

President - MWHITE CONSULTING 2001 - 2004

Non-profit organizational development company, specializing in board development, strategic
planning and program development. Designed, Implemented and evaluated community-based
programs for clients such as United Way. Family Resource Center, TechLink NH. and Parent
Information Center

Director, Maine Service Corps - COASTAL ENTERPRISE INC. 1999 - 2001
Managed $750,000 grant budget and completed 7 housing rehab projects with a 25 member
AmeriCorps member crew.

Executive Director ■ LANCASTER MAIN STREET PROGRAM 1997 -1999

Built comrriunity. collaborations to implement downtown revitalization strategies. Provided technical
assistance to businesses including facade improvernent, window design, marketing, customer
service, and financing options. Secured federal grants for relocation and,development of Welcome
Center, a River Walk and snowmobile bridge totaling over $100,000.

State Commission Director - NEW HAMPSHIRE AMERICORPS 1994 - 1996

Co-Founder - WOMEN'S RURAL ENTREPRENEURIAL NETWORK (WREN) 1994

EDUCATION

Bachelors Degree Springfield College - Human SeK/ices 1994

Associate Degree Husson University - Business Management' 1985

M. White - page 2
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REFERENCES

Veronica Francis

President

Notchnet Web Services

Littlelon. NH 03561

Mary Lou Krambeer
Principal

MLK & Company
Littielon, NH 03561

More references can be furnished upon request

M. White-page 3
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Contractor Name: Northern Human Services

Kev Personnel Sheet

Name: • " ' Job^Title Salary Amount Paid
'from this Contract

Mollie White Systems Strategy Manager $66,300.00

'
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OmSiON OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER yiCES

Lorl A. Shlblnetic 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301'
ComniUsioD«r 603-271^501 I-800-852-334S Ext. 4S0I

Fax: 603-271-4827 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 -
Pifricla M. Tllley wwv.dhhs.hh.gov'

Director

February 23, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
„ ̂  REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize -the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services.,'.to-amend an existing contract with Northern Human Services (VC#177222-B004),
Conway, NH, to expand the North Countiy Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve
Families by developing a regional health plan to address barriers 16 accessing resources that
support families with young children, experiencing complex stressors, by increasing, the price
limitation by $30,000 from $600,000 to $630,000 with no change to the contract completion dale
of June 30, 2023, effective upon Governor and Council approval. lOOVo Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 19, 2019, item
#76B, amended on October 7, 2020, item #9, amended on April 21, 2021, item #19, and most
recently amended on December 8, 2021, item #14.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line iterps within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to develop and implement a regional health plan, titled
"North Country Early Childhood Strategy Map and Performance Scorecard," which focuses on
addressing the barriers to families accessing resources .that may include food, healthcare, mental
health, and childcare, by leveraging the existing Regional Early Childhood network. In addition,
this request corrects a scrivener's error in the budget documents attached to the current contract.

The regional health plan aligns with NH's Early Childhood strategic plans. The expanded
services will increase local and regional coordination of services and local assessments within
the North Country in order to implement strategieis to address families' needs.

The Contractor will engage new and existing regional and.state partners in the
development of the North Country Early Childhood Strategy Map and Performance Scorecard.
the Contractor will mobilize a minimum of ten (10) partnerships with Early Childhood Regional.
Lead Agencies and Public Health Networks that focus on addressing health disparities, support
the Early Childhood Region to develop strategies to identify families' needs. Families' needs may
include, but are not limited to mental health services; substance.use disorder services; health and
developmental supports; and economic supports." Once families' needs are identified, the

The Deporhnenl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join eommiinilies and families
in providing opportunities for eilisens to achieve health and independence.
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His Excellency. Goyemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2 , "

Contractor will assist with connecting families to appropriate assistance programs based on
identified needs.

The population served Is overburdened families, caregivers with substance misuse, arid
families with children eight (8) years of age or yoiinger who are at risk of child abuse or neglect
and other adverse childhood experiences. The regions served include Coos County and Northern
Gratton County. Approximately 500 children and their families will be served through June 30
2023. ■

The Department will continue to monitor services to ensure:

•  85% of families with children birth to five (5) years of age receive home visiting
services.

•  The number of early.childhood practitioners in Coos County trained iri evidence-
based social emotional practices increases by 10%.

•  85% of children five (5) years of age or younger in Coos County receive Ages and
Stages Questionnaire (ASQ) and/or ASQ-social emotional development
screenings at least once per year.

•  The rate of families with complex needs served by collaborative teams w/ho report
they received effective care coordination is 50% higher than the state average.

•  The Contractor provides quarterly reports specifying the number and proportion of
new expanded or existing partnerships mobilized to address barriers to accessing

" Healthcare, Childcafe. Mental Health and Substance MisUse supports, food and.
economic supports; and other services that alleviate health disparities and
i'nequities.-

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, regional health planning in
NH's North Country may become fragmented and less coordinated without alignmerit across
programs, which may resulfiri increased barriers to families trying to access needed supports in
Coos and Grafton Counties.

Area served:. Coos County and Northern Grafton County

Source of Federal Funds:- Assistance Listing Number #93.391, FAIN NH75pT000031

In the event the Federal Funds-become no longer,available, additional General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

OoeuSlfln*^ by:

V—}40AS37E08EB48S..

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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North Country Community Collaboration to Strengthen & Preserve Families
SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A04

Fiscal Detail Sheet

05-95-042-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD-FAMILY
SERVICES (100% GENERAL FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 643-504191

Contracts
for

Prog Svc
42105756, $100,000- $0 $100,000

2020 643-504191

. Contracts

for

Prog Svc
42105756 $0 $0 $0

'2021 643-504191

Conlracts

for

Prog Svc

42105756 $200,000 $0 $200,000-

Subtotals $300,000 $0 $300,000

05-95-090-902010-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
ANDHUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, COMMUNITY COLlABORAtlON

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

■  Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731

Contracts

■  fOF'

Prog Svc

90070470 ■  $50,000 $0 $50,000

2022 102-500731

Contracts

for Prog
■ Svc

90070471 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2023 102-500731

Contracts

for

Prop Svc

90070470 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2023 ,102-500731
Contracts

for Prog
■Svc

90070471 $50,000 ■ $0 $50,000'

Subtotals $200,000 $0 $200,000

Page 1 of 2
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North Country Community Collaboration to Strengthen & Preserve Families
88-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A04

Fiscal Detail Sheet.

05-95-090-901010-57710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HNS:. PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF POLICY & PERFORMANCE, PH
COVID-19 HEALTH DISPARITIES (100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-506731

Contracts

for

Prog Svc

90577170 $50,000 ■  $23,000 $73,000

2023 102-500731

Contracts

'  for

Prog Svc

90577170 $50,000 $7,000 $57,000

Subtotal $100,000 $30,000 $130,000

Totals $600,000 $30,000 . $630,000

Page 2 of 2
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4

This Amendment to the North Country Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and Northern Human Services ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") apprpved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item #78B), as amended on October 7, 2020 (Item #9). as amended on April 21, 2021,
(ltem'#19) and most recently Amended on December 8. 2021 (Item #14), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain-services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and In
consideratiori of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form l='-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to Increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services.to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE. in consideration of the foregoing and.the niutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$630,000.

2. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #3, Scope of Services by adding Subsections 2.18 through 2.23, to
.  read:

2.18 The Contractor shall develop North Country Early Childhood StrMegy Map and
Performance Score'cards, which are regional health.equity plans, utilizing the outcome"
performance tracking tool.

2.19 The Contractor shall engage new and existing regional and state partners to create
Strategy Maps and Performance Scorecards.

2.20 The Contractor shall mobilize a minimum of 10 partnerships with Early Childhood Regional
'Lead agencies and Public Health Networks that focus on addressing health disparities and
inequities.

2.21 The Contractor shall support the North Country Early Childhood Regions to develop
strategies to identify needs at. the local level and manage the Strategy Maps and
Performance Scorecards by region to ensure early childhood families have information and
referral support to access services that-include, but are not limited to:

'  2.21.1 Healthcare.

2.21.2 Childcare.

2.21.3 Mental health services.

2.21.4 Substance use disorder supports.

2.21.5 Food and economic supports.

2.22 The Contractor shall facilitate strategic plans that align with NH's early childhood strategies,
objectives and outcome measures focusing on reducing health Inequities in vulnerable
populations of young children and families.

2.23 The Contractor shall support activities that assist North Country Early Childhood Regions
to identify and implement strategies to monitor outcome performance measures at regional
and local program levels in an online software platform.

Northern Human Services A-S-1.2 Contractor Inltlajs I
SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A04 PagelOfS Date 2/23/2022
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3. Modify Exhibit A. Amendment #3. Scope of Services, Section 3, Reporting by adding Subsection
3.7, to read:

3.7 The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports that specify the number and proportion of
new, expanded or existing partnerships rnobilized to address barriers to accessing
resources that may-include, but are not limited to:

3.7.1 Healthcare.

■ 3.7.2 ■ Childcare.

3.7.3 , Mental health services.

3.7.4 Substance use disorder supports.

3.7.5 Food and economic supports.

.  3.7.6 Other services that contribute to alleviating health disparities and Jnequities.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Prepedent to Payinent, Section 2, to read: .

2. This agreement is funded with:

2.1. 37% Federal Funds:

2.1.1. 16% from the Community Collaboration to Strengthen and Preserve Families in
NH: A Prevention. Public Health, Cross-Sector Approach, as awarded oh June
25, 2020 by the" US Department of Health and Human Services, Administration
on Children, Youth & Families, Children's Bureau, CFDA #93.670; Federal
Award Identification Number (FAIN) 90CA1858; and

2.1.2. 21% from the NH Initiative to Address COVID-19 Health Disparities: Activities to
Support State, Tribal, Local and Terrltorial (STLT) Health Department Response
to Public Health or Healthcare Crises, as awarded on May 27, 2021 by the US
Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention) CFDA 93.391. FAIN NH75qT00a031. "

2.2. 63% General Funds.

5. Modify Exhibit B, -Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4. Subsection 4.1. to
read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement in accordance with Exhibit A, Amendment 3, Scope of Services,
as amended by this Amendment and:

4.1.1. Exhibit B-1, Budget Sheet;

4.1.2.' Exhibit B-2, Amendment#! Budget; and ■

4.1.3. Exhibit B-5, Amendment #4, SFY 2022 Budget through Exhibit B-8, Amendment #4,
SFY 2023 Budget.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4, to add Subsection
4.6, to read:

4.6. The Contractor must provide supporting documentation of authorized expenses incurred in
the previous month, that may include but is not-limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

—08

Northern Human Services ' A-S-1.2 . . Contractor Initiais I

SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A04 Page 2 of 5 Date 2111/2012
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7. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Gonditions Precedent to Payment. Section 4. to add Subsection
4.7, to read:

4.7. The Contractor shall ensure each invoice is completed, dated and submitted to' the
Department with the supporting documentation as specified in 4.6, in order to initiate

•  payment.

8. Delete Exhibit B-3 Budget - Ameridment #2 (SPY 2022).in its entirety, to correct.a scrivener error.

9. Delete Exhibit B-2, Amendment #3, SPY 2022 Budget in its entirety, to correct a scrivener error.

10. Delete Exhibit B-3i Amendment #3. SPY 2023 Budget in its entirety.

11-. Delete Exhibit B-4 Budget - Arriendment #3 (SPY 2023) in its entirety.

12. Add Exhibit B-5, Amendment #4. SPY 2022 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

13. Add Exhibit B-6. Amendment #4. SPY 2023 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

14. Add' Exhibit B-7, Amendment #4, SPY 2022 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
•  reference herein.

15. Add Exhibit B-8, Amendment #4. SPY 2023 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Northern Human Services A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials ,

SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH.01-A04 Page 3 of 5 Date 2/23/2022
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2/23/2022

Date

•DocuSlgnM by:

A^. TAlcy
Name; m. Ti 1 ley

Director

2/23/2022

Date 5
Northern Human Services

OoeuSign*« by.

Gaetjens-Oleson

chief Executive officer

Northern Human Services

SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A04

A-S-1.2

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

CDocueigntd by:
Date Name: ROttyn cuanno . .

Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of.meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Northern Human Sennces A-S-1.2
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Exhtbft B-7, Amendment #4, SPY 2022 Budget
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Exhibn B-e, Amendment «4. SPY 2023 Budget
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION Of PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

L«flA.SMUocli« 2»HAZeNDRlVe,C0NC0RD,NH 03301
Ceamiuleicr . 603-27I^S01 l40O4S2>334S Cit 4S01

Fei: 603-2714827 TDDAcmr 1-800-735-2964
Pt»rtd»M.TTU«r www.dhh».ph.|ov

Dlrtcior

November 17.2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Seoidces, Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing contract with Northern Human Services (VC#177222-B004},
Conway, NH, to ex^nd collaborative approaches to supporting families with young children
experiencing complex stressors. and modify the scope of services to include additional,
populations, to further support staff training activities for Home Visiting Services to children and
families in the North Country Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families'
program by increasing the price limrtation by $200,000 from $400,000 to $600,000 with no charige
to the contract completion date of June 30.2023. effective upcri Governor and Council approval.
50% Federal Funds. 50% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 19. 2019. Item
#768, amended on October 7. 2020. Item #9. and most recently amended on April 21.2021, item

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 arxl 2023, upon
the availability and continued appropriation of funds in. the future operating budget, with the
authority to adjust budget line items within the price-limitation and encumbrances between state
fiscal years through the Budget Office, rf needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to add funds and expand to additional target populations
such as families experiencing parental incarceration and families experiencing complex stressors
like loss of employment or substance use and that can create a higher.risk for child maltreatment.
The expanded services will increase home visiting services and supports to families wtth young
childreri who are experiencing complex stressors who could benefit from a higher level of support
through a collaborative team of providers working together such as mental health, school districts,
chiidcare centers, health providers end head start. Additionally, the North Country Community
Collaborations to Strengthen ar^d Preserve Families initiative will continue providing training end
coaching session activities for staff who provide Home Visiting .Services in the North .Country
Region.

. Since 2020. families with young children in Coos County have been negatively impacted
by the COVID-19 pandemic and are experiencing an Increase in food Insecurity, economic and
housing instability, stressors of social isolation, depression, end substance misuse. Funds.will be
used to increase and promote the timely screening for maternal and caregiver depression and -

77m Dtpertmenl 0/ HtaliK ond Human Struicet' Mission is to join conmuniOts and fomilitt
.in providittg opporiunitiu for cUiwis lo ocAi'cm heollS ond indtpendtna.
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His ExoeOency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable CouncS

Pege 2 of 2
j  . . .

developmiental screening for children 0-5. Pr^ogram staff will connect families to identified supports
needed such as mental health, substance use. health and developmental supports and ̂ so
provide economic supports navigation by connecting (hem to state l)ertefits such as medical
coverage, child care coverage end SNAP. Coaching will be provided to a minimum of twenty-four
(24) home visiting staff from the Family Resource Center, Northern Human Services* Infant Mental
Health and Early Supports and Services programs. Head Start and Response: Domestic and
Sexual Violence Support Centers to maintain a strong early childhood worlcforce responsive to
family needs.

The target pppulation served is overturdened families, careglvers with substance misuse,
and families with children eight ($) years of age or younger who are at risk of child abuse or
neglect and other adverse childhood experiences. The geographic region served includes all of
Coos County arid Grafton Counties north of Franconia Notch. Approximately 500 children and
their families will be served during State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023.

The Department will rnonltor contracted services to ensure:

•  85% of families with children birth to age five (5) years of age wni receive home
visiting services.

•  The number of early childhood practitioners In Cops County trained In evidence-
based social emotional practices will increase by 10%.

•  85% of children five (5) years of age or younger In Coos County will receive Ages
and Stages Questionnaire (ASQ) and/or ASQ-sodaj emotional development
screenings aUeast once per year.

•  The rale of families with complex needs served by collaborative teams who report
they received effective care coordination will be 50% higher than the state average.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, home visiting staff who
provide services to caregivers with, substance abuse, to farnilies .experiencing parental
incarceration, and to families vvith young children at risk of child abuse and neglect may not
receive appropriate evidence-based training end follow-up coaching activities, which are
imperative to teaching positive parenting and family structure to .those in need of services.

Area served: Coos County and Northem Grafton County north of Franconia Notch

■ Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.391, FAIN *WH750T000031

-  In the event that the Federal Funds become, no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

RespectCQlly submitted.

/<7
Lcri A. Shiblnette

Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL OETAILS'SHEET

05-95-042^2lOlO-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES OIV, CHILD
PROTECTION. CHILD-FAMILY SERVICES (100* GENERAL FUNDS)'

State Fiscal
Class / Account Class Title Job N'umtMr ' Current Amount

Increase.

■  (Decreasel
. Revised Amount

2019 643^504191 Contracts lor Proaram Services ' 42105756 S1QO.OOO.OO $0.00 $100,000.00

■  2020 643-504191 Coniracts tor Proaram Services 42I0S7S6 50.00 $0.00 $0.00

2021 •643-504191 Contracts (or Prooram Services •42105758 5200.000.00 $0.00 5200.000.00

Sub Total
-

5300.000.00 50.00 $300,000.00

05-95-090-902010-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV,
COMMUNITY COLLABORATION (100% GENERAL FUNDS)

Slate Fiscal Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase . Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 Contfocts lor Proaram Services 90070471 SO.OO $50,000.00 $50,000.00

2023 102-500731 Contracls lor Prooram Servicos 90070471 $0.00 SSO.OOO.OO $50,000.00

Sub Total SO.OO $100,000.00 $100,000.00

05-95090-902010-7047000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS; PUBLIC HEALTH DIV,
COMMUNITY COLLABORATION (100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

Siale Fiscal Class/Account -Class Title Job Numt)er Current Amount '  Increase Revised Amouni

2022 102-500731 • Contracts lor Proaram.Servtces 90070470 $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00

2023 ■102-500731 Contracls lor Proaram Services 90070470 $50,000.00 SO.OO $50,000.00

Sub Total' $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

05-95090-901010-57710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH OlV, BUREAU
OF POLICY A PERFORMANCE, PH COVIO-.lS HEALTH.DISPARITIES (100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

Stale Fiscal
Year •

•Class/ Acoount Class Tille ' Job Number- Currenl Amount
Increase

(Docreeso)
Revised Amount

2022 102-500731 • Coniracts for Proaram Services 9057.7170 SO.OO ' $50,000.00 $50,000.00

2023 102-500731 Contracls lor Proaram Services 90577170 SO.OO $50,000.00 $50,000.00

' Sub Tola) -  $0.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00

I  Overell Totnl| ' $4D0,000.00| $200,000.00[ ' $600.00.0.(X)|

Governor and Council Letter Attachment
Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
. Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the North Country Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families
contract 4S by and between the State-of New -Hampshire. Deparlment of Health and Human Services
("State'''cr "Department") and Northern Human Services ("the Contractor^.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19. 2019. (Item #788). as amended on October 7. 2020, (Item #9). as amended on April 21. 2021.
(Item #19). the Contractor agr^eed to perform certain sen/ices- based upon the terms and conditions
speciHed in the Contract arid in consideration of.certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1. Paragraph 2, the
Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P«37, General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$600,000.

2. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit A. Arpendment #3.
Scope of Services, which is attached hef^eto and Incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit 6*2. Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B-2. Amendment #3. Budget,
which Is attached hereto an incorporated by reference herein. •

4. Modify Exhibit 8-3, Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B-3. Amendment #3. Budget. .
which Is attached hereto ah incorporated by reference herein.

ilialsw—SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A03 Northern Human Ser^ces Contractor Initials
«  , .n « . 11/22/2021
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AH'terms and conditions, of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,, the" parlies have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/22/2021

Date 6
Oocv»»iwi »r.

■Title: Ann. La'ndryOdhhs. nh.g'ov

11/22/2021

Date

' Northern Human Services

fyit JoltKSdit
Namel^^^c'lohnson ~
Title:" ceo

SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH-01-A03

A-S-1.0

Northern Human Sen/ices
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

J. AujtIwLL
Date" ^ ~

Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Slate of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting).

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date ' Name:
Title: •

SS-2019-DPHS-26-NORTH.01-A03 Northern Human Services
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
North Country Community Collaboration to Strengthen & Preserve Families

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persoris with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall ensure trainings are available to providers in Coos and
Northern Grafton Counties who provide services to the target populations.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure trainings and curricula focus on target populations
that include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1.0verburdened families. .

2.1.2:Caregivers struggling with substance abuse.

2.1.3. Families with children less than eight (8) years of age, who are at risk for
child abuse and neglect, and other adverse childhood experiences.

2.1.4. Families experiencing parental incarceration.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure all trainings are available to a minimum of twenty-
four (24) home visitors from the-following organizations:'

2.2.1. The Family Resource Center.

2.2.2. Northern Human Services' Infant Mental Health - Early Supports and
Services-programs.

2.2.3. Head Start.

2.2.4.Response: Domestic and Sexual Violence Support Center.

2.3. The Contractor shall conduct trainings and coaching sessions in order to
increase home visiting services to the target population. The Contractor shall:

2.3.1. Provide two,(2) trainings that Include: tuition; a trainer; travel, hotel, meal
costs associated with trainer; cost of the venue; materials; training
supplies: associated shipping; and a minimum of twenty (20) hours of
coaching per participant, as follows:

2.3.1.1. Growing Great Kids birth-36 months Tier 1 Certification Seminar
by Great Kids Inc., over four (4) days, and „

Northern Human Services Ejthiuii a Coniractor innimiT^
SS-20»9-OPHS-26-NORTM.AK)3 PafleiotS
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
North Country Community Collaboration to Strengthen & Preserve Families

.  Exhibit A

2.3.1.2. Growing Great Kids 3-5 years Trairiing by Great Kids Inc., over
four (4) days,

■  2.3.2.Provide a Motivational Interviewing (Ml) Training by North Country Health
Consortium over two (2) days, which Includes tuition; material and training
supplies: cost of the venue; and a minimum of five (5) hours of coaching
per participant.

2.4. The Contractor shall provide Ml and Boundary .Spanning Leadership (BSL)
training,, and follow-up coaching activities, by identifying and documenting
various partners engaged in these trainings.including. but are not limited to:

2.4.1.North Country Health Consortium.

. 2.4.2.Public Health Network.

2.4.3. Response: Domestic and Sexual Violence Support Center to Domestic
Vipience and Sexual Abuse Coalition.

2.4.4. Other Contractor network organizations as deemed appropriate and
agreed upon by the Department.

2.5. The Contractor shall conduct (BSL) training and activities Including, but not-
limited to:

2.5.1. Facilitation of BSL tools, exercises and activities.

2.5.2. Facilitation of assessrhent of team readiness in BSL toolkit and activities
in BSL toolkit, to include all network partners.

2.5.3. Facilitation of the use of the BSL toolkit activities, and coordinate network
definitions used In BSL toolkit to span boundaries.

2.5.4. Support, creation and operationalizing of transformation across the
network to arrive at shared improved outcomes for BSl. Network team..

2.5.5. Support and participate, in evaluating the outcomes of BSL training and
submit needed data and acliPns to the Department's Community
Collaborations Evaluation Contractor.

2.6. The Contractor shall support the evaluation of the BSL framework and of the
impact of services received by families completed by Department's Community
Collaborations Evaluation Contractor in Studies 1. 2, and 3 of the Cross Site-

■ Evaluation within.the Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve
, Families Project. .

2.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Deparlment to learn about and engage
in national promising practices of evidenced-based or evidence-informed
prevention of child abuse and neglect.

2.8. The Contractor shall provide evidence-based, culturally and linguistically
competent, prevention-focused prograrhs to the community, designed to:

2.8.1. Reduce child rnaltreatment.

Northern Human Services EKhlWtA • Conuactw inlUtir
11/22/2021
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Exhibit A

2.8.2. .Improve parent-child interaclions.

2.8.3. Improve skills for regulating behavior and coping adaptively.

2.8.4. Improve coordination of services and referrals for young families.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide a. variety of prevention services lo parents of
children up to eight (8) years of age, including but not limited to:

2.9.1. Home Visiting.

2.9.2. Parent education.

2.9.3. Family support services, Includlrig respite or crisis care.

2.9.4. Activities that promote Protective Factors', that include, but are not
limited to becoming providers of NH EASY, increasing parental
resilience through parental education, that show evidence of:

2.9.4.1. Promoting social connection.

2.9.4.2. Increasing access to. or provide, concrete support systems.

2.9.4.3. Increasing knowledge of parental development.

2.9.4.4. Increasing knowledge, awareness or skills that promote
resilience and increase the social and emotional competence of
children.

2.9:4.5. Increasing access and. connections to concrete supports such
as, referrals to economic supports, referrals to child care, health
insurance and food supports.

2.10. The Contractor shall lead efforts to improve lerliary support for families
experiencing complex stressors.

2.11. The Contractor shall provide a wraparound approach to engage and coordinate
multiple services, for a small percentage of families in Coos County experiencing

. complex stressors and those impacted by COVID-19 such as economic and
mental health.. '

2.12. The Contractor shall lead program-planning efforts, be present at. and
participate in Community Collaborations statewide meetings. .

2.13. The Contractor shall lead facilitation development of a Practice Profile outlining
the specific approaches to program implementation, as defined , by the
Department and the Community Collaborations Evaluation Contractor.

2.14. The Contractor shalj facilitate and lead a Community Implementation Team
(CIT) as defined by the Department's Community Collaborations Evaluation
Contractor. The CIT is a group of cross agency and program partners within that
community and this team can be made up of the 6SL training participants.

2.15. The Contractor shall draft, and finalize a CIT project work plan and establish a
logic model team, as defined by the Department and the Ccpmunity

Northnrn Human Services Exhibii A Conirecior initiaiil
11/22/2021
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Collaborations Evaluation Contractor.

2.16. The Contractor shall coordinate the network, the CIT data definition
establishment and data collection according to network-determined definitions
as defined by the Department's Community Collaborations Evaluation
Contractor.

2.17. The Contractor shall collaborate with CIT Partners to develop a rnodel using
expertise within the leadership group and pilot a tertiary team model in one
location as determined by the Contractor. The Contractor shall:

2.17.1. Utilize lessons learned to replicate efforts in additional locations In year
two (2) and determine additional locations after assessing environmental
stressors that are most prevalent based upon the Community Needs
Mapping and CIT partner service data.

3. Reporting

3.1.The Contractor, with the CIT, shall submit a Practice Profile to the Department.

3.2.The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports on process and outcome measures
for each area of study in order to determine quality, improvement and
recommendations upon Department request.

3.3. The Contractor shall establish a shared data and outcomes tracking system for
the Community Collaborations project.- using the tracking system for data
collection and analysis.

3.4.The Contractor shall provide the following information:

3.4.t. The Number and type of trainings provided to the Family Support
Specialists (FSS), Case Managers, and Community Health Workers
(CHW) staff;

3.4.2. Number of agency and CHW staff enrolled as providers of NH EASY in
order to support Individual connections to concrete supports such as
economic supports and referrals to minimize COVID-19 impacts;

3.4.3. Number of cases by CHW/F-SS and Number of encounters per
CHW/FSS; - ^

3.4.4. Number of encounters to provide communication about COVIO-19 risk
factors, mitigation and prevention; and

. 3.4.5. Number of other navigation and support services to address CpVID-19
risk factors (e.g.. employment, economic, child care, health care).

3.5.The Contractor shall review and utilize the NH'Division of Public Health Servides
Equity Review toolkit prior io implementing'programming; as agreed upon by both
parties. This toolkit will provide "guidance on ensuring equity, including Race,
Ethnicity and Linguistic (REAL) and Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity .
(SOGI) data collection as well as community engagement as core elements of the
work of the Deparlment grant-based work. .

Northern Human Services EihWjA Cor>trac>or
„ . 11/22/2021
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Exhibit A

3.6. The Contractor shall provide a quarterly summary of Protective Factors Survey-2
(PFS-2) completed for the Community Collaborations project. Surveys will show;

3.6.1. The percentage of tyijes of concrete needs identified for the families
served by race, ethnicity and language, when available.

3.6.2. The percentage of increased Protective Factors.

4. Perfornfiance Measures

4.1.The Cor^tractor shall minimally achieve the following outcomes by the end of
twenty-four (24) rrionths after contract implementation, which only relates to
agencies that participate in Ml and Evidence Based Practice (EBP) training.
Outcomes to be provided by June 30, 2023, include but are not limited to;

4.1.1. 85% of families with children birth to.age five (5) years of age will receive
home visiting ̂ rvices.

4.1.2. The number of early childhood practitioners In Coos County trained In
evidence-based social emotional practices will increase by 10%.

. 4.1.3. 85% Of children birth to age five (5) years of age In Coos County will
receive Ages and Stages Questionnaire (ASQ) and/or ASO-social
ennotional developriiental screenings at least once per year.

4.1.4. 85% of children birth to age five (5) yearsof age with needs identified
. through developmental screenings will receive needed services.

4.1.5.. 85% of caregivers of children birth to age five (5) years of age will
receive depression screenings at least once per year.

4.1.6. 85®/i of caregivers with needs identified through caregiver depression
screenings will receive needed services.

4.1.7. The rate of families served by tertiary teams who report they received
effective care coordination will be 50% higher than the state average.

4.1.8. Increase the number of home visitors who are trained and implementing
evidence-based parenting education into their work by ten (10). from 42
to 52.

AA.9. Increase the number of children actively receiving home visits by 47,
from 303 to 350.

4.1.10. Increase the number of caregivers actively receiving hpme visits by
twenty (20), from 164 to 184. ,

4.1.11. Improve on average parenting skills by 25% up from 2018 average of
18%.

Northern Human Services ExhWi a Coniraciof initials

„ . 11/22/2021
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DiyiStON OFPUBUCHEALTHSERyiC£S

79 HAZe>N DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
603'27MSOI l-IOO>05aJ>4S Ext. <1501

Fox: 603*27l<4$27 TOO A<(cit: l-000-73S'2M4
ww'w.d t>Xs. n h.c0V

March 15. 2021

His Excellency. Goverrwr Chrislopher T. Sununu
arid the Honorable Council

Slate House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

requested ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Divisip'n of Public Health
Services, te enier Into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Northern Human
Services (VC »177222-B004), Conway. NH. to continue activities for the North C^ntry
Community Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families program that conducts trainings
for staff who provide Home Visiting Services to young children and families as well as direct
senrices to families, by exercising a contract renewal opbon by increasing the price linriitatlon by
$100,000 from $300,000 to $400,000 and extending the completion date from June 30. 2021 to
June 30. 2023 effective July 1. 2021 or upon Goverrior and Council approval, whichever is later.
100% Federal Funds."

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 19,2019. Item #788
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on October 7,2020. itern #9.

Funds are anticipated to be available iri State Fiscal Years ̂ 22 and 2023, upon
availability and continued appropriation ol funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price llmiiaiion ar^ encumbrances between stale fiscal years
Ihrrwgh the Budget Office, if needed and justified.
05-95-042-421010-2958aOOO HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OERT OF H^LTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES QIV, CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD-FAMILY.

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/
Account

Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

.(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 643-504191
Contracts for

■Prog Svc
42105756 $100,000 $0 $100,000

2020 643-504191
Contracts for

Pr.og Svc
42105756 $0 $0 SO

2021 643-504191
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42105758 $200,000 SO 3200.000

Subtotals: $300,000 $0 $300,000

7?ic DtpoHmtnl <►/ Hrellh and Hiimon Sdviea' U19 Join eemmtmnU* and familict
in.providing opportuniliu /af eilixen# lo oehltut htoUh ond indtpcndcnec.
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05-95-090-902010-70470000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, COMMUNITY COLLABORATION (100% Federal

Slate

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

. Number

Current

Budget

Increased
(Decreased)
Amount

Revised
Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for
. Prog Svc

90070470 W $50,000 $50,000

2023 102-500731
.Contracts for

Prog Svc
90070470 $0 $50,000 ■  $50,000

SuWo/a/s: ■ $0 $100,000 $100,000

Totals; $300,000 $100,000 $400,000

EXPLANATION

This request Is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole source
and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be tabelled as sole source. Nort^rn
Human Services Is the Fiscal 4flent for the Coos CoaliUon for Youi^ Children and Families (Coos
Coalition), which Is the coordinating body in Coos and Northern Graflon .Counties (or child
maltreatment prevention utilizing evidence based practices. The Coos Coalition is Ihe only
coalition in Coos end Northern Grafton.couniies whose primary purpose is to promote the optimal
social and emoliorSal development of children from birth through eight (8) years of age.

The purpose of this request Is to continue the activities in the North Gentry Community
Collaborations to Strengthen and Preserve Families program by providing training (or staff who
provide Home Visiting Services in the North Country Region through the network and work of the
Coos Coalition.

Funds support the Social and Emotional Learning Coaching System In Coos Couhiry as
part of the strategy .to support and maintain a high quality early childhood serving workforce.
Coaching will be provided to a minimum of twenty-eight (28) home visiling staff from the Family
Resource Center. Northern Human Services Infant Mental Health and Early Supports and
Services programs and Head Start.

The Coos Coalition's leadership team will continue utilizing Boundary Spanning
Leadership practices to support the community Imprementation team further develop collective
Impact strategies to enhance Ihe early childhood system.

. The Contractor will continue utilizing fundlr>9 to Increase capacity to provide eviderwe
based universal home visiting services to families with young children; to deliver coaching to
homeiisiiing staff who provide services to children; and to provide consistent parent engagement
opportunities (or families to connect with one another to build resource networks and increase
parenting skills. The Contractor will collect data and outcomes data frpm the clients served to
support a program evaluation with the University of New Hampshire. The Department anticipates
linking ttie collected data wiih internal data to determine outcomes of families and children who
receive community coordination of services and to determine child maltreatnneni outcomes.

The target population served is overburdened families, careglvers with substance misuse
and young families with children eight (8) years of age or younger who are at risk of child abuse
or neglect and other adverse childhood experiences. The geographic region served Includes ell
of Coos County and North Grafton County above Franconia Notch. Approximately 500 children
end their families will be served from July 1.2021 to June 30. 2023.
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The Department will monitor ccntractert eervlcos to ensure:

The number o1 home vlsltora who are trained artd implementing evidence-baaed
parenting education In their wortt Is not less than 52.

The number of diildren ectively.receiving home viaita la hot less than 350.

•  The number of caregivers eetiveiy receiving home visits Is not less then 164.

• Protective Factors $urvey-2 Instruments that rheasure Increases In parenting skills
Oemonstrste increases no less than 25% upon families receiving servioes.

As referenced In Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Paragraph 2 of
the original contract, the parties have the option to extend ttie agreement for up to two (2)
eddltlonal years, contlngem upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
of the parties and Govemor and Council apprbvel. The Department is exercising its option to
renew services for two (2) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and'Coundl not authorize this request, home visiting staff who'
provide services to caregivers with substance abuse .83 well as famllias with young children at
risk of child^abuse and neglect may not receivo appropriate evidence-based training and follbw-
up coaching activities, which are imperstiva to teaching positive parenting and family structure to
those in need of services.

Area served:' Coos County and Northern Grafton County north of Franconia Notch
Source of Funds:.,CFDA#93.670. FA1NMCA1B58.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer availabla, addHionel Genera) Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully subm'itted.

Lorl A. ShiUnette
Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health iand Human Services

.  Amendment #2

This Amendment to the North C^ntry Community Collabofalion to Strengthen and Preserve Families
contract is by and between th^ State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services
("State' or"'Oeparlment") and Northern Human Senr'ces ("the Contractor").
WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the. "Contracr) approved by the Governor and Exebutive Council
on Juno 19.2019 (Item #780). as amended on October 7.2020 (item #9). the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and In
consideration of certain sums specified: end

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1. Paragraph 2. the
Corilract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and.
Executive Council; and - ' '

■ WHEREAS." the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limilatlon. or rnodlfy
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to arnend as follows;

t. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2023.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$400,000.

3. Modify Exhibit 8. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Paymenl. Section '2, to read:

2. This agreement is funded with:

2;1. 25% Federal Funds from the Community Collaboration to Strengthen and Preserve .
Families in NH: A Prevention. Public Heatlh. Cross-Sector Approach; as awarded on
June 25. 2020 by the US Department of Health and Human Services. Adminisiralion on

-  Children, Youth & Families. Children's Bureau; CFDA #93.670; Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) 90CA1058.

2.2. 75% General Funds.

4. Modify Exhibit B. ivielhods and Conditions Precedent to payment. Section 4. Subsection 4.1. to
read:

4.1 Payment shall be on a cost'reimbursernent basis for actual expenditures Incurred in the
futfillment of this Agreement In accordance with Exhibit A and Exhibit 6:1. Budget Sheet
through Exhibit B-4 Budget - Amendment #2.

5. Add Exhibit B-3 Budget - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

6. Add Exhibit 8-4 Budget - Amendment #2. which Is attached hereto and incprporated by reference
herein.

■  . . [5Northorn Human Services Amendment#? Contractor Initials , •—

SS-2019-0PHS-26-NORTH-01-A02 Pageiol3 Date ?/^3/2p21
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All terms end conditions of the Contract end prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1. 2021 or upon the date of Governor and
Executive Council approval, whichever is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, tho.panies have set their hands as of the date written below,

Stale of New Hampshire
Department of Health ar^ Human Services

J/30/2021

Date NameT** wrni —
Title: ofreccor. Division of Public Health srvcs;

3/2J/2021

Date-

Northern Human Sen/Ices

*^y^«BP»re-Jonnson
Tille: CEO

Nonhorn Human Servlcas

SS-20ie.DPHS-2S-NORTH-0i-A02

Amendmonl 02

Page 2 oi 3



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3B7E4D67-4FAA-47ED-A2B2-D928FA8F5C64

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 662807F4'7584-411C-A455-D05F1C057331

OocuSIgn Envelope ID; 16B1BA0E-ACA2^AAO-9CS(>gD7F7A15AFO9

.  OOGuSionEnve'epeiP:4e39eB4F-1AC7-48AE-B3DM>60tD2E38EeF

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by (his office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEV general

air

3/3i/2on .

OitS '
''"•i'®" Attorney

I hereby certify that the forepoir^g Amerutrnent was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Northern Human Services AmondmenI ttZ

$S.2019-DPHS.26-NORTH.01-A02 . Page 3 of 3
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state OP NEW HAMFSHIRI

' DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Djy/s/or/ Of PUBLIC healthseb y/cEs

4. W HAZEN drjve, concoro. NH ouoi
^eebltoMr eW-JIMSOl CiL 4MI

fai:46>.in4Slt TODArmi: 1A»>73S-)K4
- IteKHerrO wv«.4bte.Ah.|««

Olmiw

Soptfimber 16.2020.

His Excfilteficy. GovCfftOf Chrtslophef T. S«nunu
and th« Honorable Cound)

State Hoi/m
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTEO ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health end Hurnah. Services. Division of Public Heanh
Services, to emend an existing Sole Source contract vrlth Ndrthcm Human Servicee (Vendor
0177222-6004), Conway. NH to provide trainings In evidence based home visiting aervioes for
young, children end families'by Increasing the price limitation by'$200,000 from $100,000 to
$300,000 with no change to the contrad. completion date of June 30, 2021 effective upon
Governor and Council approval. 100% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by <3ovemof and Council on June 16. 2016. (Item
078B). ■ '

06.6S:D42.4210IO .26S8 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES

State

Flecel.

Year

Claae/

Account
Claoa Title

Job'
Number

Current

• Budget

Increased

(Docroaoed)
Amount.

Revleed

Budgot

2019 643-504191
Contnscts for
Program
.Services

4210S745 $100,000 M $100,000

2020 643.-504.iei
Contrects for

Program
Services

42105745 $0 SO $0

2021 64&-S04004

Contracts for

Program
Services

42105745 to $200,000 $300,000

>

Total $100,000 $200,000 $300,000

EXPLANATION

This request Is Sole Source because Iho contract was originally approved as oole source
and MOP'150 requires any.autTaequert] emendmenta to be labelled as qdIo aource. Northern
Human Services is the Fiscal Agent for the Coos Coalition for Young Children and Famllico. They
ere the coordinating body In Coos and Northern Grafton Counties for child matlreotment
prevention utii'izing evidence based practices. This Is-the only coalition In Coos end Northern

Th't Otpatiaitni ofHnlUt end Nuoion Stfvim'M!uieri i$ to pit rvm/n uniti'n ond fcmiUn
in prtvidintfipp^rtiinilin f«t otiant r»«rAi<w hnUS ond indiptndtMt.
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K)» EttoOency. Ooveme* Chrtatoptier T. 8«tfuiu
end Bw Henorebb Cainct

Pe^a 2 of 9

Grefton counliej wtiOM prtmaor purpoje I# to pfomoto the optimet sociel and emotionflt
development of children from birth through etgW (6) yeare of age. Since 2009, fnom than s d^n
•crose sectof orgentafltiDns including health ceniera. mental health pfovWere achooi diatrtcte.
childcare cenlem, Head Start end family euppod prbgrama have wortted to buiW e coordinated
and eltoned eyetem of eupporte for cWWren end their families living in Coo# end Northern Greflon
countlee. Coo# Coalition for Young Children end Famine# dontinuo to \m Boundary SpannpiQ
Laaderahlp practico# to owpport iho Community ImplemonlttHon Team as they develop future
et/atopio# to onhaneo Iho oarty.childhood ayotem.

Ttio purpoM of thi© requeei l» lo eomploment current oetlvftieft In the Community
Colloborotlon# lo Strengthen and Proaorye Femilio# Program by providing Iraihirtg (or etaff who
provide Home Vi#ltlng SeMcoa in the North Country Region through the nelworti end worti of
Coos Coalition, for Young ChBdrcn and Famillee. There ere currently no child<>oren!
psychotherapy trained practilidnera in the No*th Country. Ten (10) now child-pamnt
peychotherepy practiliono^ will-be trained. Addilenally. twelve (12) home visitor#, will be trained
In GGK.

The Community Cotlebdretions to Strengthen end Preserve Femilies Program provides
eervlcea to famine# with children up to eight (8) year# of age who may be et rhh of child abuao
end neglect end other adveree childhood expertancee. Tha Ccntrecior will u#e funding to Inaease
capadty to provide evidence based. univer#8l home visiting eervice# to families wtth your)9
children- to deliver cWlf^parent' psychotherapy trslnlng to mental haeHh dinioan# who provide
eervice# to children end lo provide coneistent parent engagement opportuniUee for famille# lo
connect wtth one another to build reeoorce nctworte end-increase parenting eMh. The vendor,
will be collecting data and outcomes date from the dient# served to aupport a prograrn evaluation .
with the University of New Hampdhire. The Oepertment plans to link the. collected dele vnth
Internal data to deieimlne outcomea of families end children who receive community coordination
' of eervice# and determine child maltreatment outcome#.

The ■ Oopartmenl will continue to monitor contracted services using the following
- performarwe.measures:

•  Increase the percentage of home visltoro In the North Country who are trained end.
•  Implementing evidenco-basod parenting education practices Into their wor^ lo BOH.

•  Increase the percentage of families wtlh young children. 8 years .old or younger, in
Coos County ecllvcty receiving home visits to 75%.

•  Inaease the number of caregiver# edivety receiving home visits by twenty (20) from
iW.to 184. ■

«  Improve on average parenting eWils by 50%. up from the 2019 average of 27%.
A# referenced In Eithlbll C-i, Revisions to Standard Contrad Language. Poragraph 2 of

the orfglnol contrad, the parties have the option to eirter«) the agreement (or up to two (2)
odditioriel year#, contingent upon satiefadory delivery of services, available funding, egreemcnt
of the parties end Goverrwr end Council approval. The Department la not ewrclsing Its option to
ronewet this time. .

• Should the Governor and Council not.authortio this requeat. home vtsitora y^o provide
eervices to careglver6.wih eubstance ebuse as well ae families with young children et risk of child
abuse and negled may not receive eppropriaie e>ddence based training and follow up coaching
DcUvltiee that ere Imperotlvo to leaching positive parenting and femily sirudure to Ihosb in need
of eervices.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 4E3MB4F-1AC748AE-B3D&Mpi02E3aESP

M« EfCeneney. Gov«mof Chrtilop^e/ T. Sunurv
ontf V« Honorgbie CotfieO

pege S of)

• Ared Mrve^ AU of-Cooft-County end Neithfim Grsfton County ebovc Frsnconia Notch.

Sourco of Funds; 100% Geneml Funds.

Reepoctfutly eubmitted.

Lcn A. Shioinotto

Commisslonor
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Now Hampshtro Oopartment of Health and Human $ervfcoa
Nbrth Countiy Cpmmun|ty Collaboration to Strengthen & Preaervo Fsmllloe

State of New Nempfihire
Oepertmanl of Hoofth eod Human Servtceo

Amendmem 01 to the North Country Community Co(tabor«t>on to Strengthen & Prosorvo
FemJIloo

TMa 1" Amendment to the North Country Community CoQebomtion to Strenothen 0 Pmaorvo FvnlOee
oomred (horebiaftor referred to ae 'Amendment 01*) l» by and between the State of New Hamoehtm.
Dopaftment of HeaSh end Human Servlon (hora^aftar refened to as the 'State* or 'OepartrrvnT) and
Northom Human Servtaee. (herelnaftar referred to ee *me Contractor*), a nonprnm corporation wttn e
plaCO of buelneia Ol 67 Wflihtngton Street. Corrway. NH.

WHEREAS, purtueni to en ogreement ((ho "Contracf) opprevod by the Governor end Executive Coundi
on Ame 19.2016. (nem 0766) the Contrector agreed to perform certain aorvloee.basod upon the Xtrrn
and oortdBbno epocdied in (ho Corrtrecl end in convderad^ o1 certain duma apedflod; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. Oenoret Provtsiona. Paregiaph 16. ertd Eidtlbli C-l, Peregmph 2. Ote
Contract may be emendod upon wrinan egreemem of the paniee and'approvel from the Governor arid
ExeeutNe CMrtcii; end

WHEREAS, the parbea agree b extend (ha term of the agreement, inc/eaee the price iimdation, or moddy
the ocope of eendcae b euppon oonttnued delivery of thoao aervtoes: and

NOW therefore, in oonalderBtbn ol (he foregoing and the mutual covenanta end ccndltbrv oontotned •
in the Contrad and eat forth herelrt. (he paittaa hereto egree b arnend o$ fofbwe;

1. Form P<37. General Provtalona. Blocfcl.8. Prico lAnltalton, to read:

SMO.OOO.

2. Exhibit 6; Methods end CondRlone Prededent b Payment, Section d. Subsection e.i..to read:

4.1 Poymeni ahall be on e oosi retmbuieemsni basis for ectua! oxpendituree Irtcurrod H (he
fuifUlnw.nt of (hh Agreement, end shell be In ecdonjance wiih the epproved line (lem. es epec^od
In Exhibit B'3 Amondment 01 Sudgai

3. Exhibit B. Methods and CondUons Pnecodortt.to Peymem. SecOon 4. SubaecOon 4.5. b read:

4.5 The Contractor el^jl submit en invoice tn s form aatlsfecbry to (he State by db twentieth (20*^)
vbrtdng day of each rhonih. whkh (dontiflos end requests reimbureament for euthortxed'expensas
incuRod In (he prior month.

4. Add Exhibit 6>2. Amendment 01 Budget.

rtarthcmHwnen Sovtos Amcndmirtet Commcio imieia.

SSr70l9OPHS-2OH0RTH41-A0l Poge(ol) ' Oao fi IP 30
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Naw Hompehlre Depaftnrwnt of NoaHh and Human Services
North Country Community Collaboration to Strengthen & Preserve Pamllles

AJ) terms end condltloni of the Conireci end prior emendmants not Inoonsiatont wtih this Amer^meni dt
remain In full fome and eftod ThIe amendmoni enafl be effedlve upon the data of Opvomor and ExecuUve
Coundl approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, tho paiSee heye Mt their hande ae of the date written-bobw.

State Of New'Hempshlft
Oepanmem of Heeoh and Humen Services

Date
& (Imcid

e.ie.20
Date

Na
-u•ntte:

Noflhem Humon Servloes

NaMo.ftfc^ohnscn
"lUe; rpo

Nonhem HtfTltn ScrrietD

SS-3010OPHS-ISNORTHe t• A01

A/nonOnoniai

PoB»2ef 3
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Ba

NowHampsMra Odpartment of Ho8fth end HumGn Sorvlcoa
North Country Community Collahorotlon to Strengthen & Presorvo Families

The p/ocedhg Amendment having been reviewed by Ihb offce. b eppmved es to form. 8ub9tar>ee ertf
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

06/2S/20 (ZaX/UAt^
Deto Name:

TIUo: Calhenne Pinos. Atiomey

I hereby certffy thai die (oregolno Amendment was approved by 9^ Oovemor ar«j Executive CoundJ of
the Stole of New Hampahhe at the Meeting on; (date ot. ireetlng).

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
TWe:

Norttwr/i Menen SerifceB AnftnO/nent Pi

ss-TotaoPHajeNORTrvei-AOi Poeescfs
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CmbUiImk*

• DlNtUr

state OF ww HAMPSHIRE

department of heautm andhuman services

DimiOM OF FUBLIC HFALTH SFR WCEF

» HAZCN ORIvk. COMCOAD. KH U30I
603-}1l'4»l l4fiMSZ.U<Seit.4)0l

r»i:eO>]7ia|2V TOD Ac«u: lAtt>>7)VlM4

•we.dhhs.nk|e»

June 3. 2019

Hii EiceHency. Govorrto/CNri$lopho/T. Sunonu . ' .
end the Honoreble Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTEO ACTION

(1) Authorize the Oepartmont of Health and Human Services. Division ol Public Health, lo enier into
a retroactive sole eource agreement vrtih Northern Human Services. Vendor » 232333-ROOI. 87
Waihiftflton s'ireel Conway NH 03818 fo provide irBinlngstn evidence-based home visiting cervices for
young children, and families in an artWuni not to exceed SiOO.OOO. effective retroactive to May 1. 2019
upon Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30.2021.100% General Funds.
(2) Contingent upon approval of Requested Adion (i), authorize the Department of Health and
Human Services to provide Northern Human Services, with an advance paymeni in an amount not to
exceed 1100.000. effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval for the provision
of start up costs for trainings in evidanco-based home visiting services. 100% General Funds.

Funds are available in the (oDovving accounifor Slate Fiscal Year 2019.
05-95-90^2.421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES OlV. CHILD PROTECTION; CHILDiFAMILY SERVICES

.Fiscal
Year

Class/Account- Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SPY 2019 643-504191 Contracts for Prog Svc 42105745 5100.000

SPY 2020 643-504191 Cdnlracls for Prog Svc 42105745 50

SFY 2021 643-504191 . Conlrads for Prog Svc 42105745 50

.  " . •• • .•

Total 5t00,000

EXPLANATION

This request,is retroactive because trainings are scheduled to lake place in May of 2019. Sole
■ source contract negoiiailons were not completed unlil the-bcginning ol May 2019. The fully executed
contract was not received from the vendor until May 29.2019.

This request is eolo source because Northern Human Services is Ihe Fiscal Agent for the Coos •



DocuSign Envelope ID; 3B7E4D67-4FAA-47ED-A2B2-D928FA8F5C64

DocuSlgn Envelope ID; 682B07F4.7584-411C-A4S$-D05F1CD57331

OocuSlgnEnvetepelO: t6BiBA8E-ACA2-4AAD-9CSO>907F7AlSAF06

OocuSign Envelece ID; 4E308&4F-iAC7-4dAE-63O^0eOiO?EUEef

Hit CxceVtnqf.tSMcmof CMtiophe* T. Sunvrv
OAd ine Kono'aPto Ccsfttf

Pa^2ol)

CoDlition for Young Children and Fomilies (CCYCF). They are ihe coordinating body ir^ Coos end
Northern Grafton Cour\ties for child maltre'aimer>t pr0ver\ticn utilizing evidence based practices. This is
the only coalition in Coos artd Northern Grafton counties whose prtmary purpose is to promote the optimal
social and emotional development for children birth through eight (6) years of age. Since 2009. rrtore
than a dozen cross sector organizations including health centers, menial heatlh providers, school
districts, cMldcare centers. HeM Stan and family support programs have worhed to build a coordinated
end aBgn^ system of suppoiis for children end iheir families living in Coos and Northern Grafton
counlles. •

The purpose of this corilract Is to Increase the ability of the CCYCF and Its agency partners to
facititate corhmunllyrbased. evidence-based paroniii ossistence programs in accordance wUh SB 592
(2016 Legislative Session). Programs are designed to reduce child maltreatment, improve parent-child
interaction^, improve skills for regulating behavior and coping adapUvely or^d faciHlale improved
coordination of services and referrals.

■CCYCF. under the Hscal ausiRces ol Northern Human Services, will train home; visitors arvd
community health wortiers in the evidence, based parent educeiion model. Growing Greef Kids and in
motivational interviewing, which is an evidence based practico. Additional training will be provided using
an oyldence-based fromowprk called Bounde/y Spsnnlng Leadership to existing and new CCYF^agency
partners in order to build partnerships and Increase Ihe CCYCF membership.

Services provided through this contract wit) target professionals including home visitors and
community health workers in CCYCF member agencies who provide home based services to families
and caregrvers.struggiing vinth substance abuse as weD as to young families with children less than eight
.(6) years of age vrho are at risk for child at^se and rtegied. - -
TrainirTg outcome measures of this corilract include, but are not limited to;

An Inerieaso of 20% In the parenting skills of families receiving home visits in ihe designated
service areas.

•  An ir>credse lo 90% of CCYCF agencies using evidence based parenting education such as
Growing Great Kids.

Requested Action (2). if approved, win enaWe Northern Human Services to fmancially support startup
costs for training in evidence-based home visiting services. The advanced payment represents cosis ihat
would pose a f(r\a/Kia) hardship to the organization to carry as credit pending reimbursement upon
conclusion of the trainmgs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-i of this contract, the Department reserves the right to extend
contracted se^ices for up to two (2) addilional years, contingent upon salisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of ihe parties and approval.of the Governor and Coundi.

Should the Governor end Executive Council not authorize this request, home visitors who provide
services to caregivers with substance abuse as well as famifies with young children at risk of child abuse
and neglect may not recelvo appropnate evidence based training and follow up coachmg ectiviiies that
are imperative to teaching positive parenting and family structure to those in need.
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Area served Coos Courity..n'orthem Grafiofl County north oJ !hc Franconia Notch.
Sourco o1 Funds: 100% General Funds

Resp^tfully submined.

reyA Meyers

rmmissioner-

T>u Ih>i>i9/I StftMa' itUftin fvtiftuAitiei ond/Qmilkl
la pf9vi61ni /#' tt MA'iwt rueW
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Subject: Wwth CoumnCnmmvnitv Co1libonn«en le Str^uh^fi ft ramll'afS5.7Ql9.DPHS.?g.NQRTMl

Notice: Thil •grcemcjii end oil of iu otioflimcAit (hill bceomc public upon lubniuien to Coxemef end
EiCA/iivc Council for tpprovil. Any Infoffnitien iKoi is pnvoie. confidcAtiol o* propricto/y muii
bcckedy identif'cdte'ihe t|Cfcy and a^ved is in umiing pnor lo ligning the oontnei.

ACRCEMtKr ~
Tbc'Siuc ofK^ Hempthireend tboCotfrecio' hcnby muiwilly sitvc os reHewx

CeNEHAL PROVIStOnS

I. iPiNTiytCAmw.

I.I Stoic Aicney Nam
HH Oepennteni ot Kulih and Hutntn Sa^4(o

Tj Suic A^encr Addfni
DP eiauaM Stran

CencQfd.KHO))OiOa97

I.) ConueuerHum
Honhcnt Human Scrvke

t.'e Cennuifti Ad^w

17 Wuhinsien Sifca
Con«ty.KMO]tll

1.9 CoAinetei Phone

Number

MV9IS-7070

1.6. AccoueiHumba

'0]-99^3-4}IOIO> 2991-64).

S04I9I

1.7 Cempla>on Osc

Jvw )0. 3021

i .1 Price Limiutlea

SI 09.000

1.9 Co«lftCiift)iOriiar (or Stoic Agency
Ntuhan D. White, Oifeiier

1.10 Suu A'gcneyTclephone Number
60)-31l-96>l

ttniii.tl Co 1.13 NamcondT.iilcofCofttmaorSii/ioiery

Eric Johnson. CEO

.CouAiyoi Conroui.l) Acknowlcds^ni: Suicof NH

On Juno 7. 2019 . before the undcropod ofTiccr, pcriarully Cppcwed'die pcrtonidauificd in block i.ll.or saiisfsctonly
ptvnn^QUnjifnmon whose name is signed in blo^'k 1.11, BftdKknowfedted ihtt cactuted this decamni in ihccopscliy
i. u„u!nArv2'4>.i 1

F^i^Puhlle or fuftiec «r the Pocc

\ I n
I £

or JiLOiu of CJCC

D..: (r/io/lj
1.19 Nune and Title orSiSieAierKySitnaiory

1.16 A^mvi) by tlKNil. Ocpanmeni of Adminisruion. Oi*iuon oTferionftcl

By:- Diicciof.,On;

1.17 Apprvnl by the AAomcy Cm/el (Torre. Substance and Eiaution} f7/eppflce6/cj

i.ll .Apprbv|lbyilKCo*omore^Eaoeuiivc<: Council

OaBr.

rege I of 4
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rOftMr<UM8CRFO}(miien&t/I5)

Sutjccc Wenh Coiimrv Commiieliv CellfthOfUlten lo SitfeihtA A ftturve fimiliti fSS-2PI9 DPHS-3A NQRTHI

Noiter. This isrctmcni end ell efiu inechmcAii ihillbccemc public upon lubmitsionioCovcmef end
Exccuiivc Council for ippievil. AnyinfofAtiioeihsrij pnvaic. cenridcniislot proprietiry iriusi
be clcoiy'idcntificd le (he l|cncy tnd lyrced (O«» wriitng pno^ lo lining ihe contract.

ACfitCMCKT

The Steic oTNev HempiUrc end iheContuiet hc'cby muiudlyi|rce »s follows:

CCNCftAU rSOViSIONS

I.I Sine Agency Himc
NH Dcptftmcni of Huhh ind Human ScfVico .

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Sircci

ConcerO.NH 0)>0I )I37

Ij Ceniraetof Name

Nonhcm Mynun Services
1.4 CoAtrtciOr AddrCM

17 WashingiOA SircTi
Conway.NHOllia

1.) Coairacior Phone
Number

6O)-9li'0K

1.6 Accoum Number

0}.95'0«2-42)OIO-29]UO-

304191 -

1.7 CompleiionOatc

func}0.20]l

li Price Limitation

S 100,000

1.9 Comracting OfTiccr for SiBic Agency
Nathin 0. White. CSrccior'

I.IO State AgeneyTclephone Number
60)-2JI-96)l .

l.ll Con)rici0^i|nsiyy 1.12 Name and Title.of ContrKtor Signatory -

Erie Jobnson, CEO

1.1} Acknowledgement; Siiicor NH .Countyof Carroll

On Juno 7. 2019 , before the undenlgncd officer, pcrtotullyeppCBrcd the pcrson-ldeniiricdiri biKk {.i2.ors»<sfocior\ly
prev^^ObHTRKPCrton whose name is signed <n block l.l 1. and acknowledged that s/he eiccutcd this document in the capacity

Kuary Pvbltc or iusiice of the Pocc

7or^f Notary or fuaicc of |^<(f<xc

i.l4'"Sunaib]|i1)eyS<|nMurc

Oait;

1.15 Name and Title Of Siaie Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval bythc N.H. Ocpinmcniof Adminisiniion. Oivisionof PersoAAcI fi/ep/><''cuMe,;

By; Oirccior.On:

1.17 Approvilby the AiiomeyCcrtcral (form, Subwance and EiecinioA)fi/r>pp/rcn6/e;

By: Oa:

1.18 Approval by ihcCovctnor and CxMutivT Council fi/eppl>ca6'e.i

By: 9"=

Pogc I of 4
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DocuSlgnCrwciepe l0;4E3Md4F.1AC7-46A£-e)0M»0l02EUEBF

i. eMPU>yMeraoFC07<TRACT0R>seRvictsTO
BEFRRFOBMCU T>k Sutee7Ncw Htptpfh^/iciine
PwM|6'ih< eitncy i4iniifirtf in block I.I I'Suic").
iMirutor ̂ OcAiilVd in block 1.3 rCef(>mior) is pc/roim.
•a6 the COAifiaof ihjU pcrConiv (he work of hU of goedt. or
both. Muiined as6 more penicultiiy dcic/(bcd ia the enehcd
EXHI BIT A which is intarpoaied-herciA by rtfcrcnee
("Jervieo"!. •

J. SffBCnYKOATE/COMftmOK OUtAViCKS.
).l Neiw{irHSAA4<M| wiy uf(hi.« Acce/neni le ihc
(Offlftiy, ind lubieeito i>w ipproMl of the Governor tAd
OcCU(l«e Cowncti of ihc S«w« of Nt* MemptMrc, if
epptkibtc. ikli AcrwMAi. ind tii oNituions of l^e penla
hercuAtfcr. iWl Oee«mc cffcnivc en the Cut the Governor
•r^ Eftceuiivc CowKil ipprowc this Aptcffleni u tndicued in
biKk l.lt.unloi noneh approval ii roqvircd, m wtikhcve
ihc Aireciivm Shall become cfTectivc on the date the
Aifo^ni iieiptcd by (he Sure Afcncy u shown in Week
l.ia ("Cnetilve Oau'l.

3.2 If (he Coftiractor cemmcnetiihe Servica pHor leihe
Effeeiivt Due. all Serv<tn perfenncd by (he Cnremior prior
10 (he EITmiIvc Date ihsil be pcrfonncd it ihc sole risk of the
CMraeier. irtd In (he event ihsi (hii Ac/ccmcm deo net
become eneeijvc. ihc'Sutc'thall have nu lisbiiiry to (he
Conovtor, inehtding wiikowt limitation, any oWiiaiion to pay
4he Coflirtctor for any cr«ts ineurfed or Scrvtca polhimcO.
'.Cortrroctrv mus compleie ell Stjvicc* by (he Cornpletion Osie
lpeeir>ed in block 1.7.

4. CONDmOh'AL MATURE or ACREtMEKT.

Hotwitkmnaiei my provision Of this Asrcemcai lo (he
contrary, allobltKiiloru of the Stite he/tunder, ihclvdins.
wiinotii lifflitoiion: theconiinoincvof paymcrtL* hcrcwnda; ire
venitngeni upon ihe evtlUbiUiy end cominoed eppiopnttion-
ef funds, and tn no c*eiii shall the State be Itabk for any
poymcnii hatunde/ in ceccas of suth available ipftroprined
furd). inthecvcniofarcdtxiiepeetcfinirutioAor
eppropilitcd (Wtdi, (he State tksil ha«t the right to vHthheld
paytnem until Atdt funds become available; If c««;, and ihatl
have (he rigM lo isrmirQic this Aipeemem imotcdiitcly upott
living the ComrDciornmicc of such terminal ton. The State
shill not be required to transftrfunds from eny other accarni
(Oihc AacOuai identifiedia bkxk I.din ihcc<iTttl fundsinlhat
Aceovni-are reduced or unavalliblc.

S.COffTRACTPRlCC/PRiCELIMITAnOW •

FAYMCfO".

3.1 The coMroo price, mediod of psymcnL and icml of
piymou arc identif<d and monc particularly dnoibed in
C;04lBrr 8 which is incorporticd herein by reretcnee.
3.2 TVc psymni by the Slate of the cortvaet price shall be the
only am) Ihc complete laimbwracmen] ib (he Coanaeipr for all
cipcAto; of whitevc/ nsure tncwrrrd by the Cosiracior in the
pciformircc hca-of. end shall be the mly and the complete
corepcnsarion (o the Contneror for the ScVvircs. The State
shall hive ho liibilify to the ComrKior'other than the comrDci
priet

Page 2 of4

i J The Stale ntcrva (he right ie offset from any imouhtj
gtherwae'payibtc lo the Controcior under ihiy Agretmeni
those liguidSJcd emounis rtqglred or pemiiicd by H.H. PSA
60:7 ihrough RS A I0:7< or eny ether proviiien nf law.
3.4 HeluhihAanding any provision in ikli Agrarrcm to the
contra^, aad ne<withstand<Rt uncipccted circtimuaneo, in
no event shall the total of all paymehu luthon'ted^ or iciually
made hccunOcr, cacccd the frkc Umiiaiion ta forth >a blerk
1.1. '

6. COMFLUKCF. ftV COWfftACTOR WJTX LAWS

ahb RF.cuiATiorfs/ bqual CMrLOY<^ier<T
OFrORTUKTTV.

6.1 In cenneeiien will) the performance uf ihc Servieo. the
Contraaer shall comply with all Mwuia, iaw«. rcgwtaiioris;
and om<n of federal, pare. eewMy or municipal auihortiica
whiehimpojc any oblipiion or duty upon the Ceaiticter,
including, but not limited to. ciw'l righu and cgual oppnngnity
Uwk This may iiKlwlc iheicquiirmtnttoutilittawiiliary
tids and tcrviecs to cnsurt thai pcrwtu vrith eornmwnfeaion
disibiihicn, inclvding *liio\ hearing and iprocb. can
communicate with, receive infennsiiofl fiem, and con<ty
informdion lu the CortDxnor. (n addiiioA the Contractor
sKsti cornply with ail applicable cnpyrigh) lawn.
63 Durtrt; the wrm of (his Agrttmcru. lU Comreeior shall
r«s discriminate agsltvs cmployoca or epplicsAu for
cmpbymotr because of rotz, color, ncligion. caxtl, ago tea.
handicap, icatul oriertieiion, or ictional origin ond will uke
afftimativc eeiion to prevent such di.tcriminaiioN
6.) If this Agreement! i furaJod in any pan by tnonlca of the
Oniied Stao. the Comroctor shell comply with all the ■
prorisiouof Eaeeuiivi'Order No. 1 )2id ('Cguid
Employsacni Oppbnwiiily''l, as svppUmcAtid by the
regutations efthc'Uniicd Suics Department of tabor (a i
CF.R. Fart 40). and with any riika, rcggiitloni end guidclinci
as the ̂ teofNcw Hampthireer tkc United Staiu issue to
impleraeni these rrgubtiohr. ThcComracJO' further agrmto
pcnnii the Suit ot United Stato tcceu to any of the
Contnetor*! bocks, rtto/di and Kcounti for fhc purpose of
asccRainingeomplisnee with ell rulet. rrguhtinns and orders,
and the coveftantx, icrms and ccndiiioru of iMs Agrtemcni.

7. FERSONNIL.

7.l-'nKCoiMraeibr«hsil.Bt its own cApense provide |U
pc/ioanel neecsiary to p^orm the Sertiees. The Coniracior
wtnanu thai all personnel engaged In the Services ihill be
qualified to perfprm the Services, and than be. properly
licensed araj oiherwiec authorised lo do so urtdrr ill apptieebfe
laws.

7.2 UaIos cthervk-Ue atohorised in writing, during the tern of
(his Agioemrnt, and for a period of S'l (6) months after the
Complaion Dale in bkxk 1.7, the Comrtxior shsU nru hire,
and (kali not permit any subeoitiraciof oi other peno^ firm or
eerporaiioA with whom «i is engaged in a combined effort lo
perform the Scvicev to hire, any peneo who .is a State
employee or oflieiol, who is mucrially imolvcd in the
procwroncni. admiriniaiion ot srcrformanecof this

Ccnuocior lAsiiets V
.Date U
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A|recmsAJ. 7Kl provttlon IhiH ivryin lamiuiinn of ihii
Atrcemeu.
-).) The CoAtmtiftt OfTioer ipatficd in block i.9. or bit O'
her wccct^, the!! be (he Suu'i rcpfoenntlve. U Ihr cvini
ofeAjr diipuie cuacemini the inlio^ivuijon of ibii A(ree/TKni,
0« Ceni/tciiai Offico't ikcuion thell be Rft«l for i>< Suk.

•. tVtffT OF DEFAULT^MIATIU.
1.1 Anyeiveer«nertefth<rettewiA(ieisoreQiiu^a>erihe '
Corrector iMll (Onsiiivic »a evcm of defieti horundcr
('£rcAt of OebuSi'i:
l.l.t fiilvrecopcKoraitheSovkacaiuficierilyoiOA
ethedvic;
1.1.2 fiilt/e (otubmltenx fcpen rcowlied hotwndcr, tnihr
1.1.3 fiilm 10 (Krfom vty oiher eovcneni, (crm or cundinon
of ih'il AdfcemcM.

U Upon (be occirfTcmc of my Evcm ofDcfevd.ihe Siotf
mey iBke iny one, or n^. or ell. of (&c.feUo«iet Kiioflt;
1.2.1 five (he CoAineior i Mluen noiicc fpocifrni'ihe Evcnr
ofDtfuli endrtquirinf ii lebe remeOioI.wlikirviAthe
tbKrvc of I pcAcr or kuer ipcelfieaiion of limc. ihiny (30)
dayi froffl (he Ale of (he noiiee; Md if the Evcai of Oeftel.i it
net tirscly lemcdicd. lerminve ih<i Aptcmeai. effocrive rwo
(3>diy« eher ̂ vlAf (he CoAiroctor notkc of (crrnlniiion;
I J.2 five (Ik Conveciry • wrinm nonce ipccify{n| (he Evcni
vf Oefbvlr eurpcndinf ill ptytncnii to he rnxle imder
Aftecmeet end ordinni (hii ihe portion of (he conireci price
wOtich would oihoviii eecAto to the Cenruier during the
period ncm the dtie of (ueh noiioe uruil lueh lime u ihe $(ite
dttcrminet (hii (he Conmeior hu cured ihe Even of Oeftvii
tholl rsvei be peid lb the Conimior.
8.3.3 K> off •f(ir<s my o(hcr obli|i(ioni the Suic moydwe to
lY* Cenrrector my driruf u (he Sole wfTot by 'tuen of my
CwAi of Oefsul]; eed'or
1.2.4 (mt (be AfruroeN u breeched md purtuc my of iu
rcmodio el Uw or in eqviiy. or both.

9, OATA/ACCESSrCOPfFlOEfmALITY/
preservation.

9.1 At vscd lA (hit A^cmcrtt. the word "due" tbetl mem ill
iAfoimultm md ihirvei developed or obitiAed dsriAf ihc
perfomuACC of. or tcourcd ix developed by rcmon of. (h>>
ApCKmenl. indwdinp, but net limited (O. til nudiei, rvporu.
fiia. formuiu. urveyt, nupt, cherts, eeund reeordiAfS, video
rccordinp, pictoriel rtpreduetioni. drtwiAfS, CAeiyx%
f/Bphic rtprocAliltoro. computer profniiu. computer
prinioun, nctet. letters. mcmomndK papcn. and documenii.
ill whether TinitKed nr unfiniihcd.
9J AU detotfld myprcpcAy wbieh hu been received from
Ihe Sine or pvreheted with funds provided for ihei purpose
vAdtr ihii A^rccmem. theil be ihc prtpeny of (he Sieie. end
ih»!) be ie(vmed to (he Siiic vpoA demmd or upOA
icfminsiion of this Airtcmcni fnr my rebion.
9.3 Cottfidcniieliiy of deii shell be |ovemcd by RH. R$A
Chjpier 91-A or other etiuing lew. DItclocurcofdeii
reQuiiet prior wrlaen epprovsl of the Stce.

P$l<

10. TERMINATION, tn the c««m of an early (crminaiinn of
(hit Agrceuneni fc my roion other ihen (he ccmplciidn ofthe
Service, (be Cortnwtor ri«U'deliver le the Coniruii'ng
OfTicCT, nut tucT than fifteen< 13) days after the due nf
terminetiOA. a rcpon ('TcrmiAuien Repnrt**) detcriblng ip
detail all ScTvioea performed, and the eomrsei price ciiTRd, to
md includiat the date of termlAaiion. the form, aibjcci
imnv, conicni. and awmbcr of copies of the Terminal too
Rcpon tball bo idemlul to ihe*« of my rmalJUpon
dercribcd in the tflmhcd EXHfBIT A.

I i. CONTRaCFOA'5 halation to TRC STAVi*. U

Ihe performncc of this AglvmcAt ihc Conimtor «t in all
ropccti m indepcndcm eontioctor. tnO is neither an agerw oer
meAployci ofibe Sitic NeJihc/the ConcrBcior nor my of iU
offiecn. employoet, agcnu or members shsll have ewihoriiy lo
bind the Soie'or receive toy betefio. wprticrv' compenssiiOA.
ut oihcr cmolumenu provided by (he State (o its cmploycci.

12. AS$ICNMCN-r/DEL£CATlON/SU8CONTRACTS. .
The CnAirseior iXall not tulgn. or othcrwiic Utnsfcr my
intertji In (bit Agrccincnt wliheui the'prior written notice and

'eonscAi of the Sutc. None efihc Sovitcs shall be
Mbcontraeicd by (Ik Conirmnor wiiKogi the prior wriitca
neeice and contmi of the Slue.

13. INDEM.^lFiCATinN.TbeContrBCtO' ihsll defend.
'  indemnify and Md birmlesi ihe SlUc. iu'ofncen arid

envployees, from and agdnp my and all lessei suffered by ihc
Suie, Iu oniccn end cmpl^oyea, and any and all claims,
litbilitin ur penihics tescncd agalnsi the State; iu ofncm
and cmployeu. by or on behalf of any persOA. on aecouai of,
based or rcsutiing r«orn. ari.rini out of fer which may bo

. claimed lo ariic out of) the acts or emlBlims of the
' Conirsaor. Notwiiaumdlng the foregoing, noihini herein

coniiiacd shall be deemed to conflituie a waiver of the
sovereign immimlty uf the Sute. which Immuniiy is hereby
reserved loihe Siue. Thlscovcruni inparajpaph 1.3 thiU
survive the icmlnition of this A^emeni.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 Thc.Contrttlor shall, at in sole cspcase. nbuln and'
miimun in force, and shall require any svbcorvroctor O'
asalgnoe (O obuiA and Ruinioio in force, (he foliuwlni
intunhcr:

14.1.1 comprchcrisive lencral liabiliiy imurmce agiins all
'  eliims nf bodily injvry. doih w property damogC. in imovnu

of not leas than I l.OOO.OOOper oeourrencc ond 82.000.000
attrepic;and '
14.1.2 spaitJeavse'oflosj corcrotc form covcrlAgal)
prepory subjeci (O sibparsgrsph 92 hacirt. In an alaovni npt .
lOLS (hm SOH of (he whole rcplaccmeni vtJue of the propeny.
14.2'I've polieia described in subpangrtph 14.1 herein shall
be en policy forms and otdorsemcnis approved for u.ie in the
Stale of Hew Hampshire by the NX. Ocpsnmcni of
Jniunnec, and isntd by insurers liccrtsod in the Siltc of New
Hampshire.

Cortisaciof biitiols ^
Dalc_Epp
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I4J-TV Comrvtar thiJi fumUh lo the Conincmt OfTica
1-9,or hiiorhntuc«csoi.«ccrtiric«ic(i>

oriscurMcc fortll irvwnnce.tqwirctf under Ihii A|recmeni.
Corumior tfuli ilto Wraith to (he Cavoalni OITkc/
iPcfuilM in Week 1.9. or hit or her Mcoiier. ccrTtAuic(<} of
intunrec («ill fencw»t(0 of imw/tace required uodci (hit
AtrecirtcAi no liicr ihu ihi Ay ()0)diy> r^or <o ih« upiniion
^tc ofoch ofihc iaiufencc polieiei. Tte eertilkiieff) of
iruurMce end any renov^t ihcreef thill be euochcd and ̂
ineorpomed herein by i«rc»e«c;fc Eaeh e«nir»«««(f) gf
imgrBacoehaU eonuin a eturtc'reqwirfnt the irourcr (O
prtvidt "the Conirtoinj Officer idcnuficd in Woch -l .9, or hit
or ncf lucocaor, no loi ihan ihlrry ()0) Oayi ptiot wiUicn -
AakcofcAnecllaiionormediriceiionefihc pelky.

Jl. WOftK£WCOM9Eh*SAT(ON.

i S.l By ligpint (hit ig/ecircnt.ehe Contricior
ccnifkt trtf Mmnii (hit ihe Contreeiur it irt eom^iinu «4(h
or eicmpi froig.ihcrvqvlamcAiiorH.H. RSAohspur 211 ̂A
('f^o^Un' rofffpcAtorii*'/-
/ J.2 To the ciioR iheConiraoor it uib)co 10 (he
requirtmoiu of.H.H. RSA chapio 2*1 \ Ccnnciii
mtiniaia md nqvire tny lubconi/ictor or litipnce toMcure
■■4 miihcain. poyrhtni of Woftm'CoBtptritulon In
emnecoort with Kilviiicj which (he pc/iort propota lu
wndp*thf puriuaht 10 ihit Afrocmem. Coninctor ihitl
furAith'lheCo«irKiin|Orr»ttrideniirin}inblock 19. or hit
or her Mtccuer.prooforwortcn' CompeAtoiiort in (he
riMnna dcscnbed in N.K-UA chapter 2BI -A and my
applicabti rtniwil(f) thereof, whkh ihill be •nached and ire
ineorporeicdhcrcinbyrcrcrencc. Hte SiCBcihalinoibe
ropentibic for ptyACAl of my Wortert' Compottafipo
premiumi cr.fv my other cilim or bcncfii for Comractor. or
any eubcent/ecior er'empleyce ofComraciw, which might
iriae ttflda ipplicibk Suic orNc>v Hampthirc Worhcn'
Compmtuien laws in connection with the performance of the
Scrvkct under (his AtroemceL

Id. WAIVER OF BREACR. No failure by the Sure lo
enforce my proyiaioni hereof iflo any Event of OcflvrtI aluU
bcdmcd a wviwn of iu nghtt with regard to that Event of ■
Ocfaiiii.or arrytwbioquent Event of Oefruti. Noctprces
fiilwre 10 enforce my Event of Default thai! be deemed a
wtivet of right of the Suie 10 enforce exh md all vf the
piovition} hoeof upon any funho or oihcr Event of OtfcuU
OA the pan of the Centraetor.

I2.'H0TTCL Any notice by e parry h^o loihe eihcr party
ihall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given •) the
time of mailing by ccnified mail, povegc prepaid, in a Uniud'
Stales Fob OfTtcc eddrcua) to the panics at the tddrosn
given ID btocki t .2 and 1.4. bffcin.

ja. AMENDhtEKT. This AgrcemoM raay be amendedi.
wBvtd or discharged only by m intnvneN in writing ngned
byilw portia hereto «nd only afia ipptovil ofiuch
ifrcndment. waiver or diuha/ge by the Covcmor md
Ejteeviivt C.ourteil of the Sute of New Hampshire orvleii no

tuch approval is required under the eiicu/itQincea pumoni lo
Siectiw.ruUorpuliey.

19. CONSlVUCnOK OF ACRCtMEKT AND TERMS.
This AgrccmcM shall be oenprued in ueordanu with the
laws of the Sipe cfNcwHampAiie,and Is binding upm awl
inuies to the benefit of the paniu and their (cxpectivc ' •
AKoeuonaadasiifM. The werdinguscdinthia^reemerti
ta (he wwrdlftg chosen by ike panics (o express (heir mutwal
iMCBi. trvd no nilc efcendttKiloa ihsii be applied agsantt or
in fevorofmyparry.

30. THiAO faRTIU. The pnivs hcrrto 00 net Intend to
bcikfa my third pania end this A^rcemcM ehall not bt
eotutrued to confer cny ruchbeexrii.

2.1. nCADINCS. Thchudingithrbughouithe Agrretncre
' are Km rtfcrertec pvrpeacs only, end ihe words contained
(herein ihall in so vay be held to CAplaia. modify, emplify or
aid in the incrprcuiion, const/woiun or mtaning of the
pioviriou of this Airccmcm.

21. SFEClA&i PROVISIONS. Additionol ptovisiorts act
(ortft in ihe anKhcd liXNfBfT C tn iacvperaicd Kcrein by
ft/ncrKc.

23. SEVERASILrTV. In the event my of the proviiioni of
this A|rutn«iii are held by a court of competent jurttdictiori lo
be cotunry'to lay atate o« federal law. the rcmiiitlng
pierit'iorDOf this Agreement will remain in full foroc and
effoci.

34. ENTIRE aCREEMCNT. This Agitcirictti. which miy
bc caccuicd in a nwrnbcr of coumerpariA each of which ihill
be deemed an oripMl. conpituip the entire A|reemmi md '
wndcnaanding bowcen the pirtiu'. end.tvycracdct all prior
Agreeetmts And underAandihp reining hereto.

J^flgCdofd.
CoQirbt:tof loiUbU X/''^

P»'c U|n)li
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Eihibti A

. Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

v.1. The Contractor &hall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
sennces they will provide to persons with limited English profidency to ensure
meaningful access ic their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2.The-Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Coun or federal or state court orders'may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the Stale Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under (his Agreement so as to achieve
compliance (herewith.

1.3.Notwithstanding any other provision of (he Contract to (he contrary, no services
shaU continue after June 30. 2019. and the Department shall not be liable for eny
payments for services provided after June 30, 2019. unless .and until en
appropriation for these services has been received from (he state legislature and
funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 biennla.

1.4. The Contractor shell ensure Ueintngs are available to providers in Coos end
Norlher Grafton Counties who provide services to the target populations.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Coniractor shall ensure trainings and curricula focus on target populations
(hat Include, but are not (imhed to:

2.1.1. Overburdened families.

2.1.2.'Caregivers struggling with substance abuse.

,2.1.3. Young families with children less than 8 years of age. who are at hsK for
child abuse and neglect, and other adverse childhood experiences..

2.2. The Coniractor shall conduct trainings and coaching sessions In order to increase
home visiting services to the target population, The Contractor shall:

2.2.1.Provide two (2)t/ainlngs (hat include tuition; a trainer; travel, hotel, and
meal costs associated with trainer; cost of the venue; malerials; training
supplies; associated shipping; and a minimum of twenty (20) hours of
coaching per paniclpant, as follows:

2.2.1.1. Growing Great Kids 0-36 months Tier 1 Cenlfication Seminar by
Great Kids Inc. over lour (4) days, end

2.2.1.2. Growing Groat Kids 3-5 years Training by Greal Kids Inc.. over
four (4) days.

2.2.2.Provide a Motivational Intervidwing Training by North Counlry Health
Consortium over two (2) days (hat includes tuiiion; maieridi and training

Northern HumeftSc«vic£j EaOAA- iiVdib
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gihibit A

supplies: oosl of the venue; and o minimum of five (5) hours of coaching
per perticipant;

2.3. The Contractor Shall ensure all trainings are available to a minimum of Iwenly-four
(24) home visitors from the following organiiations:
2.3.1.The Family Resource Center.

2.3.2.Noilheff* Human Services' Infant Menial Health • Early Supports and
Services programs.

2.3.3.HeadStflrt. . .

2.3.4.Response: Domestic and Sexual Violence Support Center

2 4 The Coniraclof shall provide Motivational tnterviewing and The Bourwjary
'  Spanning Leadership (B5L) Training, and follow-up .coaching activliies. bycounting pertntfships with partners that include, but are fXJUimlted to:

2.4.1.North Country Health Consortium.

2.4.2.Pobtlc Healih" Networtt.

2.4.3. Response: Domestic and Sexual Violence Support Center to Domestic
Violence and Sexual Abuse Coalition.

2:4.4.Other Contractor network organlialior^s as deemed appropriate and
agreed upon by Ihe Deparfmeni

2.5. The Contractor shali conduct Boundary Spanning Leadership (BSL) irainirtg and
Bctlviiies including, but not limited to:

2.S.V Fadiiiation of BSL tools, exercises and activilies

2.5.2. Facilitation of assessment of team readiness jn BSL toolkit and activities
In BSL toolkit, to Include a" network partners.

2 5.3. Facilitation of Ih? use of the BSL Toolkit activilies. and coordinate
network dermiiions used in BSL Toolkit to span boundaries.

2.5.4. Support, creation and operationaliitng of transformation across thenetwork to arrive at shared improved outcomes for eSl Nehvoik team.

2.5.5. Support and participate In evaluating the outcomes of BSL training andsubmit needed data and actions to the Unrvcfsity of New Hampshire
Institute on Disability.

2 6 The Contractor shall support the evaluation of the BSL Model completed by the
University of New Hampshire (UNH) In Sludy 1 of the Cross Site-Evaluation within
the Community Collaboration to Strengthen and Preserve Families Project.

2 7 The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to learn about and engage
in oaliooa) promising praciices of evidenced-based or evidence-informed
preveniion of child abuse and neglect.

2 8 The Coniracior shall provide evidence-based, culturally and lingui^^y
NonKemHinnDnScrvicw •
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EihihitA

competeM. prevefttion-focused parenial assistance programs to the comniunity.
designed to:

2.6.1. Reduce child maltreatment.

2.8.2. ifftpfove parent-chad interactions.

2.0.3. Improve ahillfi for regulating bchaviof and coptng adaptively.

2 8.e.. Improve coordlrialion of services and rcfcrreis for young families.
2.0. The Contrectbr shail provide a variety- of prevention services to parertts of

chUdron up to eight (8) years of ago. including but not limliad to:

2.9.1. HomeViiling

2.9.2. Parent education.

2.9.3. Family support services, induding respite or crisis care.
2.9.4. Activities that pmmote P/otecliye Factors, that Include, but ere not

limited to Increasing parental resilience through parenialeducation. that
show evidence of:

2.9.4.1. Promoting social connection.

2.9.4.2. Increasing access to. or provide, concrete support systems.

2.9.4.3. increasing knowtedge of parental development.

2.9.4.4. Increasing knowledge, awareness or skills thai promote
rc^lience and Increase the social and emotional competence of
children. ' •*

2.10. The Contractor Shall lead program-planning efforts, be present at. and
participate in Community Collaboration statewide meetings.

2.11. The Contractor shall lead facilitation development of a. Practice Profile as
defined by the OHHS and the Community Collaborations evaluation Contractor,
-the Lfniverslty of New Hampshire. Institute on Oisabilily.

2.12. Th<) Contractor shall facilitate and lead a Community Implementation Team as
.  defined by the DHHS and the Community CoDaboraiions Evaluation Contractor,

the University of,New Hampshire. Institute on Disability. This learh can be made
up of (he 6SL training participants.

2.13. The Contractor shall draft, and ftnaliie a Community Implementation Team (CIT)
project work plan, timeline, and logic model Team as defined by the DHHS and
the Communiiy Collaboraiions Evaluation Contractor, the University of New '
Haimpshire. Institute on Disability.

2.14. The Coniraclbr shall poordinale network /CIT data definition establishment and
data collection according to nelwork-deierminM definitions as defined by the
DHHS and the Community Collaborations Evaluation Contractor, the University
of New Hampshire, Institute on Disability. ■ ^

NorthernHumMSwicw ' W .
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Exhibit A

3. Reporting

3.1.7ne Conlrdctor. wiili the CIT, shall submit a Pfactice Profile.
3.2.The Contractor shall submit annual and Interim reports on process and outoorne

measures for each erea of study in order to deiermlrte quality Improvement and
recommendai].Qr\s upon Oepartmerit request.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall minimally achieve the following outcomes by the end of 12
months after contract implementation (only relates to agencies that participate in
Ml and E6P training. Outcomes Indude but ere not limited to:

4.1.1. Increase the number of horrie visitors who are trained and implementing
evidence-based parenting educalion into their worV by ten (10) frorri 42 to
52.

4.1.2. Increase the number of children actively receiving home visits by 47. from
303.10 350.

4.1.3. Increase Ihe.niimber of caregivers actively receiving home visits by
twenty (20) from 1S4 to 1S4..

4.1.4. Improve on average parenting skills by 25V«upfrom 2010 average of
18%. ••• '■

NorthernMvmsAStMcw EiKma CwvK»inmi »>^ i

SS WOOPHSIWrOflTH '



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3B7E4D67-4FAA^7ED-A2B2-D928FA8F5C64

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 662BD7F4-7584-411C-A455-D05F1CO57331

OocuSIgn Envelope ID: ie8ieA8E>ACA2-4AAD-fiCSO-9D7F7AlSAF09

Ooo/Slgn Envelope 10; 4E39884F-TAC7.4M.e30^06010?EU£e^

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sorvtces
North Country Community Collaboration to Slrangthen & Preserve FamlMea

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedertt to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.6. ^
Pnce Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This agreement Is funded with lOOVe Gensfol Fund

3. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Coniracior's future
funding.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as foltows:

4.1.Upon Governor end Executive Coundl approval the Contractor shall submit en
invoice to the OepartmenI in the amount of $100,000 for payment of services
outlined in Exhibit A. .

4.2.The Conlractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, sighed, dated and retumed
to the Department in order to initiate payment.

4.3. tn lieu of hard copieS; all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and .
emailed to OPHScontractbitlinQ@dhhs.nh.Qov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Healih and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive
Concord. NH 03301

4.4.The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each {nvoice. subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and If sufficient funds
ere available.

5. The Corttractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as
requested.

6. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor aqrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole of in part. In' the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided,- or if the said services or products 'have not been saiisfadoniy compteied in
accordance with |he terms and conditions of this agreement.

NoiViemKvmanSo'vtcm CtftitAO Cewxtw iaMbu
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POQtflStQNS

Cohtrocloft O&UQBtlonj; Th« Coftt'OCW-COvcnanli on<J Oflrcii #1 received 6y
Conwci theii be u»ed oniy oi peymeni to Wo Corofocior for eorvtcej provided to diQ.Wejn tSUercnce oUno o)olx«id ccvoneni.. ine Connector hereby cover^enis end ■

ogrees OS foflows:

_i.i. etAtft Lm»e- If «he Conirocier H permitted to determine the cllpibtfity

sieie lews, regwiettons. oraers, guJOeitno*. po«eit» end proceou'©#.

2  Time end Monnor of Deurmlnotlon: ESfliMity deiermtneOonj shell«« "W" <>"
■  JlToeporimJnt for thel P«rpo»e end eheO bo m.ae ond remede ei sich Cmes o. ore pre^rtbed by
(he OepartmeriL

} Oocumonlollon: In wXrilion to Ihe Ml.nrtn.lion lorm. .«q^
d.tli n.«lnuiln « a«l« ne on eoen rocipieni ol Knfcoj hc.evn«., wi^ ,S ,m
ut^miAiiAnWesiarv to suooort eo oEoWSly determlftebon end such olher mformoiiori es the
Departmeftt requests. The Coniractof Shan furnish the Oepartmcnt wtih eii forms em) documontaiiof*
rogerdiftQ eViQlbDliy delorminDliortj (hot the Oepenment may request or requ'ie.

4  Foir Meennoe: The Conwc«o/ uhdentonds thai oD eppT^^fUs for servtees herevmder. os «n es
WtJividoels doderod InSrigiWe heve e right to e fiir.heoring r^srd.ng -
rxAifAriar herebv covtfsims end oprees that eiteppl«enti lor services shell bo permined to fill oirt
en eopiicouon torm ertd thai each opprtcom or rbeppiicant shei) bo inlormed ol hisAior righi to ofotf .
fearing in eceordinto wtih Oepatmeni reguUiions.

4 Gratuities or Kichboclio: The Coniracior ogroes that li's a breich 61 this Conlroct to wepi V
make e DDvmeni oroluily or oHer Of emptoymeni on behotf of the Ccntreclor. Ofty Sub-C^lWtor or
the State In order to Innuenco the performpnco o» the Scope ol Work daioilBd In E*hibll A of thisTfi aeto may terminate this Conlroct orwf any sut^ontraclor sub-opreem.nt .1 it ̂SrnodWaTSaymJu,gr>tuiiitiorD«ersolernptoymeritblenyi.W
ony offiClols. officers, cmdoyoes or egents ol Ih# Contnwtor or Sub-Controctor.

6 Roiroectlvo Poymonls: Noh^ihsiandlng anything to Iho contrary cwta^ in
other document controd v understanding, it is eapresify understood end agreed by the porbes
hereto tool no payments win be made hcreumJer to reimbuno tng Qonimtpr (« ooiO
•Au Aiimnte at lor anv services provided lo enylndMdusl prior to too Effeclrvo Oote ot the Cortrod
Z  I=. ..p.n,«?ic«r„a by tb,. C^bbcn, <o' bJZ
prior to too doco on whkh the individoo! appliss (or services or {escept as other^se provided by the
federel regufotfons) priof le o deicrmiAetion thoi the individoei ts eiig'ble lor such services.

7  CondlUona of Purthese; NofwithslwdiAg onylhlng lotoe conlreryconUlnedln toa Conmtnothing
■  herein contained iheii be deemed lo oWigpie or require toe Oopanmoni to

hereundcf ot e rete which reimburses the Coninctor in escessof toe Contractors cosu. oi o rote
S! oucods the amounts roasoneW. and necessary to cssure toe quafiiy ot ®
rate which e«c<eds the rote charged by toe Conlrcctor to inoBgiblo indiwduals or ot^r
runderi lor auch service, if at any time during Ihe term of this Conlroct or eher «ce^t of IhO F.nal
espondiiure ficporl hereondar. toe Oepertmeni shall doiemune that toe Conoactor has
pSIs hSr 10 reimburse items ol eipensa otoe; than su^ costs ®'
to excess ol such costs or in ©scess of such rates charged by the Coniracior to .nd.g.t^o indMduDis
or Other iWrd porty funders. too Oepertmeni msy elect to:

Renegotiiie the rates (or payment hereundcr. in which event rww
Deduct from ony future payment to the ContfKtor the omount d eny poor rcimbursemen^
excess of costs: . 'L'jEmWC-SpKbiPmrtilftu Conir»ciortnlW>_^^

PtpvlolS ^

7.1.

7.2.

nnyii
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Now Hampshire Dtpeitmeni of Hoalih ond Human Services
EihbiiC

7.1 Oemand ropaymeni of ihe o*c«$» paymem ty d>o Cofttroctof in vmieh event failure lo meke
eucfi repoynerM eheD con^iitute en Event of Oefeun heieundev. When the Cont^tv Is
permlROd le deiennlne the cngibilily of Indrv^els for tennces. (he CorUroclor ogrees (0
relmOuae (he Deporvnom for en funds paid by (he Department to the ContrKtor lor services
provided (0 eny Individual who It found by the Oepanmeni to be-irttrigiWe tof such tervicet oi
eny lime durirtg the period d rdteniiort Ot records atteblbhod horeirt.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFlOENTlAtlTy:

6. Meimenanee of Reco^i; in eddinon letne «t>pbt>iy reMros specified obovo. iheConi/actor
eovenanli end ogreea to melniefn iha followfr\g records during the Contrecl Period:

6.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, docurrtanb end other data evfdeneing and renactfnQ en costs
end other eipensos Incurfod by (he Coniraclor lr\ (he performance of (he Conbeci, end oO
VKome-recelved or coOectcd by the ConuKior during the Conlroci Period, sold records (o be
malr\teined in occordarKO with occouniing procedures end practices which suffoenOy and
(uopedy reOecl 60 euch costs end cipenset. end vmich are occepteblo to (he Depenmoni. end
10 indude. wiPvMl limUedon. ell ledgers. Dooks. records, ond original evidence of costs such es
purchose'requisltionsend orders, vovchen. reouisiiions for metoriats. Inventoiies. voiuoilons of
in-hind contiibuliona. (abpr time cords, peyefls. end omer recprds regueitod or roquired by the
Oepenment.

6.3. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroiiffleni. enendance or visii records for each/ecfpieni of .
sennas during tte Con(rod Period. wNcti records shall incfudo ell records of oppticaiionand
diglbiSiy (inctudng oO foms required (o determine eligibility lor each such recipient), records
iegeiding the pro^ston of services and eilinvoices aubmtned to (he Oeperbneni to obtain
paymenl lor such services.

18. Madleal Raooids: Where appropriate ond es prescribed by'the Depervnam regulations, (ho
Coniroclor shell retain medical records on each patieni/roclpierti of senricei.'

e. Audit: Contractor shell lubmii en annual audit to the Depervnenl within 60 doys efter the close of the
agency fiscal y«or. it Is rocemmended thai the report be propa/od in accordance with the provision of -
Oftice of Menegement and Budget Circular A-133. 'Audiis ol Slelev Local Govemmants. ond Non
Profit OrganitaUons* and the provisions of Standards for Audit ol Governmental Orgaruzaions,
■Programs. Actrvities end Functions. Issued by the US General Aaounting Offce (CAO standards) os
they pertain to financial cornpliance audits.

g.s.' Audit ortd Review: Ourirtg the term of this Contracl and the period for rolention hfreundor. the
Dopartmeni, (hp United StalesOepartme^ of Health end Human Sorviees. ond onyd their
desigrtoied reprosontaiives shall have access to all reports end records maintained pursuantio
the Contract for purposes of oudit. ekiminaiion, eicerpis ervf ironscripis.

6.2. Audit Liatalilies: In oddilion lo and r>ot In any way in limiiaiion of obligations of (he Contract, it is
understood ond egreod by the ContrKior (hot the Ccntrocior shaii-bo held fiebie for eny state
or federal eudii eicepiions .end shall return to fhe Department. pS paymenta'mode ur^'ar the
Coniraci to wtuch excoption has been taken or which hove been d'Seiiow«d because of such eri
exception.

10. Ccnfldentiatlty of Records: AO informaiion. reports. and records maintained hereunder or coOKted
in connection with the portormanco 6t the services cr>d the Contract shai) be cbnfideniial er>d shaiinot
be disclosed by the CcnUeclor. provided however, that pursuant to state iaws end (he regulations of
ilv Oeponmenl regarding (ha use end disclosure oi luch information, disclosure may bo made to
public offci&ls.requiHng such informelion In connectipn wiih (heir oHicial duties ond for purposes
directly connocled to iho administration of the services end the Oonirecl: or>d provided further, thai.
the use ^ d'rsdosure by eny party of ony information cohceming o redpiont for any purpose rtot
direcOy connected with the odmirtistretion of (ha Ocpanmeni or (he Contractor's responsibilities with -
respect to purchesod services hercurKlcr is prohibited except on written consent of the redolent, his
ottomey or guardian. ^/f .

£<rtS!iC-Spact»iPw«4tto»»» Car.u>ew tutUKi O •
C».y,| PX0H«f» *>«• iPll'l
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N«w Mctmpshlfo Ooporimoftl of Moaiih enfl

NoMilutending mvWiflg lo i»» conv.ry coni.in«) h.,ein ifte co««nti >"f
■ tfie Patogroph *hau eurviveihe terminoiion ol ih# Conlwi fw any rgawn wftouoovof.

11. Roportti FlKAl tft6 StflliJticot The Conuociof 09'«w lo wbmlj (he loOov^ng (tpciu el lheiolto**ng
■  iT.V " fteptte: wnnen inierirr fv«ncial «p^> conjoWng o

oil coels end non-eUp*abie eipentet Incurred by Pio ConUflClor 10 Iho dele of Iho roport and
ecwiulnino *uch other InformBiion oa iM"i be ooemeo Mtoiaciory by me Oeperwent io
iusUfy me rate of payment herounde/. Such Finoi^i Raporw enoo bo lubmined on ma form ■aejlonatadbytho Deponmeni or deemiOiaflata^ory by moOflporvneni. . . • .

11 2 final Report: A ftnol report ehaD bo iub«me(3 wiihln thirty (JO) dayi Dfter me end
of mii Conueci, The Fmai Report eneil do In o form eoiiilotiory lo me Oeportrnent end eho»

■  contain a tummwy etflwment of pfogto» lo*ord goele and obiectrvoj elaied In maPropoaoi
and omer WormaUon foqutred by.mo Oepanmanl.

12 Complotlon of Servtcea: DisoOowaiKC of Coju: Upon me pi/rcMw by (he o*
■  number of uniii provided for In the Ccntt.cl and upon pa^enl of ^
hereurtSer. (he Contract end an me obiigaiionj d the paites hereunder (ei«^ wch ott^ebons ea.
by the lerma of me Contract ere to be peiformod after me end of the lerm of m>s Cont/ect opd/or

■  iJrvlvo the ter^ninetJeft of the Contract) shcn lermlnate.-.proWJed hcruo«r
Final Eapendilure Repbn mc Oepartmtnl chef disellovr pny e*pen$ee dair^ by mo Cont/oc or. as
coats herem^der me Oepartmeni shall reiein the righi. ot its discreion. to deduci me omoont of such
enpenj«i as ore oisellowed or to recover such uims from the Conl/actor.

13 Cradtlo: AD documents, notices, press releases, reseorch reports end other moi^eriots pra^red
or rtuSnVfrorn the performance of ma services of the Controcf shafl Indude mafotlowtng

smieme^^ pfopamiron of this (report, documanl etc.) was financed under o J'® ®*®'®
■ ■ ^ New Hampshire. Deportment olMeaim end Human Servfces.vnm funds pro^^ed In pert .

by the State of New Hampshiio and/or such clhor funding sources as wve evailoblo or
requrtd. e.g.. (he United Sieios Oepartmeni ol HeeBh end Human Services.

14 Prtor Approval bnd Copyright Ownerahlp: AOmolertals (written, vtdoo. oudio) produ^ w
ouTChased under mc conUacl shaU have prior opprovel from OHHS bttore prtnong. producilw,
distribution or use. The OHHS wfli reiafn copyrij^t ownership for any end ell onginat moicrtais
produced IrKtuding. but not fimiiad to. brochures, resource directories, protects <x
posters. V reports. Controclor shall noi reproduce any malertali proArced uf*der mo coniroctwlihout
priy ««ritien approval from OHHS.

15 OpertJllon of FatlUlloa: Compllanca with Uws and RoguloHorvs: In meoperaiion ol ""y^ciaiies
for providing services', ma Contractor ihaD comply with oD laws, orders o^^letons^ fedeml.
state county and mvnidpel wthoritias and with ony direction of any Pubfic (W.cer or otftcert
oursuanl lo laws wrtch shaD impose en order or duty upon me controclor wim respect to the
S^tion of the lecaily or the provision el me services ei such foclBTy. II any govcr^aniat '<^" 0/
oermti shall bo required for the operation of me sold laciCry or me performance ef s»dthe Cohiroctor wii) procure said license or permit, and wfli at oil limes cwpfy with ihe t^s end
Dondillons ol each such Pctnsa or permit In connection v*m me loregoing requirements, me
Controclor hereby covenants and ogrces mat. during the term of this Conuaci the foo^^iiio.s ih^
comply wim en rvies orders, regulnlions. and requirements of me Stole Office of F»a Ma^lend
me local fire protection egancy. and aheu be in conlormence wdh local boiidmg ond.zon.ng codes, by
laws end regulations.

16. Employmoot Opportunll, Pl.n (EEOP); T>,.
DMortuniiv Plan (EEOP) to me Office lor CMi Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR). If «l .
JSived B single award ol 1500.000 ot mote. M the rocipieni receives $25,000 or more end has 50 or

EJ^iC-SHcwPnMtiw CWtrarirvUHi Jf:
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Now HompthlfO Dopertmcnl of end K«m*n SorvlcQ*
EshtpK C

mofo empioyoM. H wOi melniein e current EEOPon (iloond wbmil en eEOP^irceUon Form to the
OCR certSKo Otoi Itt eSOP U on fte. For redpienis receWng tett than $25,000, or pubfic gtenteee

» er^pUei. reo^Jiew ci the emount of the e«nJ. the redplen. tMO provWe on
E60P Cortifcelion Form to Ote OCR eeniVAfl >1 ®
oroni ofoaniiationi. fnOle'n TriOei. end medcei mo *<Jucettor»«i instttuUonj er* eiempt^ the .
leOP rSquiiemeni. but or* roowred to tirtunli e certtfiMiion fom to the OCR to dau^lho ciemploo.
EEOP CenJficeiiOr^ Forma ere cveDebie el: httpJfw^ne.oip.utdoiifBbouVoc/rpdJi/Cpert.po'.

17 LIffltted EneHeh Proficiency (LEP): Ai cie'Wws by E**cuii^ Orde'13i06. irnpro^ng
■ S«rvle«e (or p«f»en» wtth Limited Grtgnih Profidoncy. ono reiuiU^ ^
OHcrlminclton Inetudei dlKdmlr^tion on iTw heiia of limited E/yliSh ^
comdJerKe with the OmrtbueCrtmo Control end Selo Streets Act o( 19« oMJUle vi
flijtS Act Of 1M4. CoAtrociore must telie leeimobie Hep* to enmre vhat LEP per»or\i hevo
meertir^hrl ecceet to Its proQrems.

te PHol Progrem for enheneomont of Contrettor Employee Whtetiobtower ProiocUene: Ttw
ftftowtrtg ahen eppty to oil cortrocl* thst CKCOed the SimpJified AcquiJilAin Threshold os defined m 46
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

cirrTftACTOP BmPlOtEE WH.jriEBt.aweA RCHTS ahO R£OUtR€H«»n To IhFOAm EmPlO*€6S Of
WkistcebiowcaRiokts (SEP 2013)

(B) Thte ccnooci end emptoyeo* woriir^ on this conueci be subject to (he wWifleWower ̂ ws
er^ remedies in the pilot progrem on Controcior employco vrfMjfltWowOr i ,
41 u.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the Netionei Oelense AuthoriuHon Act (or Fiscel Ycer 2013 (Pub. L.
112.239) end far 3.908.

(bl The Conlrbctor shell inform Its employoes In wdling. In the predomlwi leriguoge of the vwrtc/orte.
of employee whlstiebiowti rights end protccUons under 41 KI.S.C. 47i 2. et described «> eoctJon
3.906 of the Fcdcroi AcQUfsiiion RegvAeiion.

|c) The Conireciof sheD inter* trw substance of ihli tUuse. mcMding this pe/egreph (c). in oil
Su.bconlrocli over tho-simpCfied ecouls»l>on ihteihoid.

10 Subcontractore:OHHSfOCOOf^estha!lheConlroctormaycftooietoirsosubcomreciof5WIh
' ' oreolr etfiwrtise lo perform ccrioin health cere services or functions (or effciency or wnvc^ence.

but ihe Contmctor Shell retoin the roiponsibiTiy end occouniabDity tv the funcironis)^Prio^
subcontrecflno. ihe Contractor shell evalgele the subconiractoCt abriity to perforrn the ddegoled
loncUonft). This U oaompllshcd through o vmlien egreemeni IMI specliies ectivtue* er^d rcpo^g
responsibilities of the subconbocuy end providci (or revoiiino the ddcgoHon or Imposing senct^s .If
the subcomroctor's performBrKO Is not edequois. Subcontrectors ore sobjeci lo the some conuoctuoi
condlions e> the Conlreetor end Ihe Coninxlo. is responsible to ensure subcontrectoi eompliBnce
wiih those cor*dibons. '

When the Controcior ddcgolcs o (unciion (o a sybcontractor. the Conuocior shall do tho lonowtng;

■  19.1. Evoiuet* Ihe prospective subcontrecior*! oblilry to perform the ocdvliiet. beloro delogaling

19 2 MaJeewltien egroemont with the lubconirocfor that specifies att'rviiies ondreponing
responilbnitiei ond how MncUons/revecalion will be managed il the Bubconlroctor t
performertce Is noi odequate

.  19.3. MoniyihesubConirBctor'Bporfonnenceononongotngbosfs

wnyil-

£i#4e!lC«S*«lllPi»4»to*» CttWectorlraWl

ptaHoTS 0*1* V)n|ii
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N«w Hempshiro Otpanniont of and HumoA Sarvlcos
EihtOII C

19 4 Provide 10 OHHS on ennufll Kheduio awiiVng en suOeomrocioro. delejalod funciioniandrosponsiOffiUot. and wt>on the eubeeniictJo^o pcrformonto be reviewed
t9.B. OMHS tficii. at ill tfjcretion. review end approve o8 ♦ubccntmeie.

(f IftO Conlractor Boniifdl defc«encle» or arou «or improvement ore ideniiriea. ihe Cor^trector enot)
take eorrecbve eciion.

20. Contract Oeflnltlone:

201 COSTS- ShoO mean those "direct and injir act liente of eipense doiermlftod by the Oepertmervito be oOowobto end fcimbureoWe ir» occarOor^ce vHih eo«i end »ccour>tfnQ prtncj;4e» e«iabi»»hed
in eecordenee v«1th ataie ertd lederei lew*, reguiattone. rviee end order*.

20.2. OEPAPTMEnT; KM Oepenmer»i of Hedih end Homen Services.

20 3- PROPOSAL: If eppiicebie. shaDmeon the document submitted by the Corurectpr OA e
form or forms requirod by tho Ooparvnenl and conuinlno o description of the ttfv4ccs end/or

• goods to be j*ov1ded by iho Contrector h accordance with the terms end ecridiiions of the
Conlrect ervd seRirtg forth the totst coji ind iou'rces ol revenue for OKh sendee to be provided
under (he Contract..

20 4 UNIT- For each service ihat ^ Convsciof is to provide to clQible Indrviduais herewnder. shall
mean thai period of time or Uwl spocir«d OCtMty deiarmlncd by the Oeppttmani «r*d specified
V) Eihlbli B of the Contract.

20.5. FeO£RAiy$TATELAW:Whefeverfedei»loritaie(ow»,reguloUons. rulai. ordars. and •
polities, etc. era rofened to in c>e Conirsci. the stid referanca shall bo deemed lo mean
ell Such laws. rcgulolipftS. eic. at ihaymoy be emended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTlNG.OTHEf^ FEDERAL FUNDS; Funds prowtded lo the Cemracior under this
Contract wlli f>oi tupplani any esistir^ federal funds available lor (hose terwcas.

i iMte C - SmW P«wh»oft» Co»w«iBf inidalj

PaQ»SofS yt.
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pcVlSlONS TO STAWDAWO CONTRACT LANGUAGE
>

1. ftevlAtene to Fom* P.37. Ovrtoni Pro*telon»

1.1. SectlDn 4. ̂^ondiiioneUjfTv^n A^fetwncm. h •opiecoP ei tono^:
4. pOWDlTIQNAj ftgpEEMENT.

NoMinjientSng orty p/ovhion oi ffii* egreemeni to ine cowery. e'o
hefownocr. licArdinQ wimoot limlunloe. tf»o coebnuenco o1 penmonie; m
under ihU A^eemcnl ere conlMgew wpoo coniirtuod opproprteuon or ovjda^firy ol
■ndvtfng ony icbWeni chonge* » e>e cpprpprtalion or avtiiobn.ry of hrftdJ
ony iiaie oi fader®! legltlalrve or eiociftive erton (Ml reduce*. cKminates. or ^horWso
m^r>e« Ihe opproprtaOort or oyallatffity of fundirtg for thla Agroemeol orid of
Services provided lr> £*hJbi! A. Scope ol Servtces. in vAote or lr» perl. Ir> no ^
Stale tt e licwo for orty peymonU hewrvJer in eicess of epproprietod or
tne event of e reduction, termlneiion or modifxaUon of oppro^aied or

■  Stole ihea ho^ iho rfeW to »<iihnold payment urMii sutfi fwrvds become ovoUoWo. I) over. The
State Dholl hovo the rfghi to. reduce, lormineie or modify sorvtees under this ^reernem
immediaiely upon giving ihe Conlrocior notico of *uch reduction, lormlneion or
The Su«e ihaU not bo required to tronsler funds from any cff»er aourco or a^nl 'h'oAcoountts) idenlir«d m block V6 0( Ifio Coneral Provislorts. Account Number, or ony other
eocouni in the event funds are reduced or unovoaobla.

I,J. Section 10. Tftnninalion. i» emended by cdding the fotow^nglanguage.
101 The State may lerminaie the Agraemani el any iVne for ony reason, at the sole disctaiion of

the Siaio. 30 day*' cfier giving the Conpaclor *nH«n notico that the State n o*erd*lng ns
option to terminate the Agreement.

10 2 In Iho event of-oody lerminilion. Ihe ConUxlor ^oB. wtlhln IS doys of^llco of certy.tiZtZ develop end- submit to the State e Transition P'®;vf^ »er>^s under theAofeemeni btdudlng but not limited to. idaniifying the present ond fuiuro needs el diants
wMng servfce* under the Agreement estaMshei o process to meet those needs.

10 3 The contractor snaO futly cooperoia v^^ the State end shall prompPy provide detail^Inlortnaiion to support the TfoniHion Plan ineludng. bui not Itmlied to. any Inlormailon or daU
requested by the State related to the termination ofC^II provide ongoing communlcoiion and loviirons of the Tronjiuon Plan to the State 09
requested.

10.4 In the cvtjr^t that iervlcos under the Agreement. IncArding bul
services under the Agreement e'e trensiiionod to havmg services deI>vor«d by enolher enbly
tncfuding contracted provider* or the Stote. the Conlrocior shell pmvide o process foiunlntamrpled delivery 0l son4cei "in Pw TronsJtlon Plan.

105 The Comroctor shefl eslablilh o method of nolltying cllenli oftd'olhat
cboui the irensllton. Tne Conuactor iheO indude the proposed communicetiens m its
Tronstiion Plan submlnad to the Smta os described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Dtpartmcnl reserves the right to eiiend this ogreemerj l^ up to oMiUonolcpniingcnl upon.soilslociory dettvtry of service*, ova.lablo funding, vmlten ogreemeni of the
partiei end opprovet of theCovcrnor ono CKScutivo Council.

041*

EjU4ailC-t-fi44i»mVEiwpto«»toSur«in)C4WWUnOV»e4 Cwuncu* mtdiU
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New Hempthlre Oopeitment of Health arid Human Servicee
EihlbiiO

CERTIFICATION PEQARDING DRUQfREE WORK*H.AC'e REQUIREMENTS

ThbVondvMenlifted In Section t.Sol the General Pro»is«oni egrm to comply wJlh Iho provitionaof
SeclbAS 5151.5180olihe D/tio-Free Wortiploce.Adol l980(P*rb.1.10W30. Tele V. SubiilleO: *1
U.S.C. 701 e! oeq.). ond ̂ rthef agreoa lo have the Comredoi'a fepftaenlailve. as ideNifirt in Seciionj
1.11 orvd 1.12 oJ the General P'OviiJoni etecutc iheloDowlfio Certrficalion;

ALTERNATIVE 1- FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INOIVIOUAUS

U8 OEFARTMEMT of health and human SERVfCeS . CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AORICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Tha cerirficalion Is rcRutred try the regidelions Implemeflling Secltor^a 515VSl60 ol iKo OAiig.Pree
Wornplace Acl of 1M8 (Pub. L. 10^690, THle V. Subtide D; 41 U.S.C. 701 el aeq ). The Jwuery 31.
1989 regulelloni were emended artd puWia^ed es Pa/t II of Ihe May 2$. 1990 Federal Register (peges
2t68l-2l69t). and rediAre certifitalion by granieei land by inferenca, tub^ranlees and eub*
tpntractori). prior 10 oword; Ihal they wtJl mdinlain o drug.free workplace. Sodiorr 3017.630(c) of the
fcfluletion provides thai o grettiee (and by inforonco, aub.flr8nlees and tutHcoclrocton) thai is 0 Slate
moy Bled to mehe one certifcaiion to the Oopenmeni in each federal 8ice» year tr> Ueu of certificates for •
each grani during the federal fiscal year covered by ihe certrfcailon. The ceiirfcole aei out betow.li a
matcrtel repreienlalion of fact upon which reKante H placed when ihe agency ewarda ihe granl. Febe
certificolon or vWalion of the tertrfrcalron <hell ba g/oundi for tuiponslon of poymer\U. luspenilon or
terminslon of grants, or govemmertl undo suspension or debarmenl. Conlractore using this form should
send It lo:

Commissioner
NH OepDrtment of Health and Human Sorvieei
129 Pleasant Street.

Concord. NH 033014505

1  The grantee cortifies thsl il wiD or wiH continue to provide 0 drvg-free worttplace by.
l.t. Pubbshing eslatemerrt notifying ermployeesihaitheunlavrtvl manufacture, dblribulion.

dispensing, possession or use of o controlled substance b prohibited In the grantee'e
workplace artd tpeclfymg the Kt'ons thai win te taken againsi employees for violation of auch
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an or^golng drug-free oworenoiB program to Worm employees abotrl
1.2.1. Thedangersofdrugebuseinlheworkptace;
t.2.2. The grantoo's policy of moinlolnlng o d'u^free workplace:
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling. rchobBiieiion. ersd omployoo DStbicnce programs: and
1.2.4. The penallieslhai may be Impoitd upon employees for drug abuse violations

occirrrtng In lha workplace;
1.3. Making rt o reguiremenl thel eech employee lo be engaged in the pertormanco of the grortt be

given o copy of Ihe siatement raqvirod by paragraph (a);
1.4. Nolitying tha employee in the siatement required by paragraph (a) ihei. es o cor^diiion of

employmeni under Ihe grahl. Ihe employso will
1.4.1. Abide by ihe terms of (he ilatemeni; end
1.4.2. • Notify the employer in writing olhit or her conviclion lor evblslionol a criminal drug

siaiute occurring ir> the workplace no laloi lhan fivo calenda' days-altar such
•eonviciioh;

1.5. Nolifyihg Ihfl agency in writing, wilhin len calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagreph 1.4.2 from an employee or oirierwise receiving actual nolice of such conviclion.
Employers of conykled employees musi provide nolicc. induding posliion tiile. to every grant
ofr<er on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, urxloss iho Federal agency

E^NSbO-C«nlk4Coni<piiOtneDruBFrw VtnOoi InUtli
Workpsei RM<irtmtnls

.  . 0.1.
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kew Mampihirt Depertmeni of Health end Human Servicca
Eahlbit D

has detisnaied o cenii.B} poinl (or iho loeeipi ol euch noi'rcet. Noiico ehal) include the'
idenlificollon numb«r(s) of eech effected Q/ent;

t.6. TehinQ one of iKe (00^09 adions. wrlhin 30 celcndar days of raceMno notice under
aubparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6. t. TikiAQ appropriate perscr^^el acion against such an employee, up to and Including

. lormtnation, cortsbteni wUh tho roqulrcmcnis of the RcheOHitaiion Act of 197). os
emended; or'

t .6.2. Reouirlng aueh employee lo part elpole seijslodoHly In a drug ebuse osiiiionco or
rehabtilteiior\ proe'am oppioved to* auch purposes by a Foderei. Stole, or locel heoAh.
lew enlorc'crr>enl. or other appropdaie agency;

1.7. Meklngo good loUh etfon tocenllnue lemolniein-o drvQ-free werliplace mroupr«
tmpicmeniaiionof pamgrophs VI. 1.2. t.S. 1.4. vS. and 1.6.

2. The greniee moy Inaeri In the space provided odo# the siiefs) for the peifomnence o> done in
oonnedion vriih the specific grant.

Place of Performoxe (alroel eddresi. clfy. county, siaie, tip code) (ihi eoch bcaiion)

Ooclt O if thdre are workplaces on nio that ore not deniiried hero.

Vendor Name; Northern Human Services

(n hll 1 ^
Dole ' ' ' . Nerftr Eric

Tile: ce
nson
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New Hompthire Depetment ot Heehh and Humin Servicea
EihlbllE

ceaTlPICATlQH RgGARDlHG LOBBYING

Tho Vondw idonUTtod Section 1.3 of iho Cencnl Provisioni agreei (o compTy with (he provisioni of
Section 319 ol PubGc low 101021. Gbvernmem «viOe Cuidenee for New Restrtcilona on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 13S3. end (udhei egreet to have the Conuacic'a ropresontstive. os (deniified in Sectiona 1.11
erid 1.12 of (he Genore) P^ovidbns eiecuie the foiiowjng Ce/tiriceiion:

us DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SEAV/lCES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EOUCATlON • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Progroma (in^cate applicable piogrom covered):
•Tenvo^ory AuHlance' 10 Needy FomSPei under Title (V-A
*CniU Support Enforcomeni Program under Ttile IV>D
'Social Servicee Gtodi Grant Program under Tlila XX
'Medlcaid Progmm under rille XIX
'Communly Services Block Grant under Tbla V{
'CNid Core Davelapmeni Blocx Grant under Title IV

The uhdorsignad certlftes. to the best ol his or her knowtedge artd beliol. that:

1. No Foderoloppropriaied ivndi have beanpiMor wiUbe paid by or on behalf ol ttte undoriignoo. to
any person for Inftuencing or onemptcng (0 influence en tifiur or emptoyoe of any agency, o Member
of Congress, an ofTicer or employte of Congress, 0/ an employee ol a Mmber of Congress in
connection wiih the owerding ol any Federel coNreci. cortlinueiion. rental, smendmoni. or .
modifcalion of ony Foderol conlrad, grant, loan, or cooperatrvo ogroamant (orsd by epacite monlion
sub-grantee or tub<cntrac(or).

3. If ony funds Other lhan Foderal appropriated fundthava bean paid or wiD be poid to any person for
influencing or pnompting lo infUorxe on officer or emptoyce of any agency, 0 Member of Congress,
an officer or employae of Congress, or an empbyea of a Member of Cortgrosi in conneciton wtlh (Ms
Fedenii contract, grant, loan, or coopereiive agreement (ond by epecifc mentbn sub-gra^ee or sub
contractor), the ur^onigrted ih^i complete and lubmii Standard Form ILL. (OisOosure Form to
Report Lobbying. In accordance with Us inslArciCM. attached afldidentdiod as Standard E^xhibtt E-i.)

3. The undersigned lhati taquird thai the language of Ih'a centficaicn be ixluded in the award
doeumeni for subHiWards at all tiers (including subconUocts, sub-grants, ond contracts under grants.
toar\s. ond cooperaiivo agrcamanis) ond that ao sub-rocipionis ihail certify ond disctoso accordingly.-

This cortificaiion Is a material represeni»iior> 0' fact woo which reliance wos placed whan this iroosaction
was made or oniored into. Submission ol (his carttTcoron Is a preiaquisUo for making o' entcrir^ iniothls
iransocibn imposed by Section 13S2. Tkla 3l. U.S. Code. Any person who laib to fila Ihe required
ccrtifreaziori iT^bo aubject to ocrvO penally ol not loss lhan St 0.000 ond not more lhanSiOO.OOO for
each auch failure.

Vendor Name; Noflhern Human Services

fpNn .
Dale

4
Nome: EncJoMnson
Tiito: CEO

EtftfSb E - C«ruaay> Rcb*4ino Loenrine vtneorMOM

wu^un.s Pie«»en Out
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New Himpehl'o DepPrtmgiu of Heetih and Hymen Senrlces
ElMbU r

CgRTIflCATIOH fl^fiAROINC DEBARMgNT, SUyfiHWN
fMD OTHER RP.fPOHSIBlLlTt WAnE&S

The VtniJor idoftUDed In Sociion i. J ol iKe Gencrel Provisions agreos lo comply whh iho ̂ iion> of
Or«- .2M9 end 45 CfR P.d 76 Drt,,™.!.

Susoension and Other ReiponiJOWy Meneri, end hjrthor ogree» to hove Ihe ContrBcior'e
repwemeiiU. oi identified in Sectioft* vii end i.i2 ol the General Pfovsloni aiaeuta the foUmvinfl
CertlFceiiori:

{corMradK the proipecUve primary portlelpom b provWIng the
eertircaiionuiotnbeiow. ■

2  Tha' InablJry of« person to provide the certtfcalien required below wW'noicovered wrtsaction. 11 necessary, the proipacUve pwtlclpont shcj submit an
r^UmalLbf wrry i. connol provide the certiTcaliort. Tha certlfrcatKin " ^
considered incowicdioft wilh the NH Oepartmeni of MeaUh end Mumsrv Seryicei (O^HS)

enter Into this imniactioh. Mowovtrr. failure of the p-ospocUva pnmory
pafticlpBnt 10 furnish o cettircalion Of an oiplartatron shtH diiqualrfy avch pttw from pertlcipallon in
thb transaction.

A The certificaltofl In thb clause Is a matoriei repreioniaiion of laci upon-which reliafKe was pla^
when OHHS delcfin^ad to.cnier into Ilw lrBmocUon. II it o later
phmary participant knowingly tendered an orronaous cartifceuon. «n oddfinw to other
ovBilobte to the Federal Oovernment. OHHS rney terminata iha irensatuin for cause or delouH.

4  The prospective ptimaiy peiticipent ihon provide Immediate wrinen notice (o Ihe OHHS 09««^ •»
whom this proposal (conl/OCt) is aubmtlted W el any lime the prospedivo pryne^ ptiteiponl 'e«^» •
lhal.ili certifcelbn was erroneous when lutimined or has become erronoous by fCMOn o! changed
drcumsiancas. , . -

5  Tho terms -covered ironsaction.* •debarred.' -.suipended.- 'ineliglbie.; 'lower liefiransoctbn;-parttclperti;'-perion.'-primarycovered tronse^too.
•wlunlarfly escUided.* as used m this cUuta. have ihe '"•"'"J'«'P"' ™
Coveroge seclions of Iho rules implementuig Esecoiwe Order t2S49.4S CFR Port 76. Sqo Ihe
enached deflnHtons.

6  The pmspeeiivo primery partbipafti agrees by submitii^ thb proposal (conirad) ihot. should thopr^rJJJve^ed irani^ion bo antered Wo. K ihetl nbl knowingly enter wo any l<n«r •'tr covered
imnsacfiort with o person who is debarred, euipendod. declared melrg^bio. or voluntarily eicKided
from participation m this covered transaction, unicis aulhortied by OHMS.

■  7 The ofosoeciive primery participant further agrees by eubmitling thii propoiet that It wftj t^udo^a
clause lilted Xertificaion Regarding Dabarmani, Suspension. Ineligrbility end Voluntary Eectuslon •

.  uS:^?lie1Wod Tr^.a^oru by OHHS. wilhou. mod-^«lion. in all lower lie. coveredtrnnsacttenj and in on Mlicltfllions for lower tier covered Uensacttens.

6 A bertlciparil in a covered transacHon moy tdyopon a ccrtifMlton o*®
Ipwer tier covered Irensaciion that it is nol debarred, suspended, rr^el.glble. or
from the covered iransacilon. unless il knows thai tho cerlifMlion .| errowui; A f^hclpanl may
decide the meihod and frequency by whtch i dtierminos ihe eiigibifly of na pri^pois Eoch
pertlcipani.may. bul b nol required to. chock tho Nonpwuromani U$l fol exciudad parties).

9  Nothing eonislnett In Ihe (orcgoiAO shall be construed lo requlro oslaWi^mervl of ja system of records
In order to render in good faUli the certrficelion required by th.s clause. The knowledge ^

Y ̂
tffti* f • CfrtlteOBA Rcgi/Cme Ocboimsm. SuspenPrn W

Orhw Rfipon»»i«r Minin
f>j«tert 0«»

Cuo*07iie)>>
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New Hempihire Depenment of Heelth end Hufnan Services
Eihlbitf

Infonnpi'on of b pa/llclpinf is not foqutfod lo eiceetf ihsf which is no/nyiUy possessed by s pjudenl
person irt (he ordinary course ot bvtness dealings.

10. Eicept for trentodioni eulhorised under parsgriph 6 d Iheso intUMdioni. if d particlpefU in e
coveted (/ensadion knowingly emcrs inio e tower lier covered trsnseciion wiih e person who b
suspended, debsrred. IrvDoBila. or voiuruarily etcJuded (rctm patdcipatlon in (hit transec^n. in
eddkion 10 other remedies evoilebie to the Federal povemmenl. DMHS may terminate Ihb Irenud'on
for cause or derauri.

primary covered TRiANSACTlONS
Vl. ThO prospective primery panicipe'^i cortlflos lo the Best ol Ds kr^owtedge end bouef.'thai It or>d Us

prtndpeli: , r •
111. ere not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for deborment. declared .(rvefigibie. 0/ .

voiuntortly eieluded from covered troneodtons by any Federal dopoitmom or ogancy:
1 S.2. hove not within e three-year period precedtng this proposal (conlroci) been convicted of or. had.

e C^i! judgrrteril renderi^ ogoinsl (rtem fo< corrvnlsiion ol fraud or-o criminal offense in
corvnoetiofi wilfi obtaining. ottempUng to obtain, or ̂ rformlng a pubk (Federal. Sloie'or leeol)
irinsKlion or o contract ut^der e public transaction; wfoiailon pt Federal v State antilrusl
statutes or commission of embcutomeni. (heft, forgery, bribery, feisificeicn or desinicvon of
records, malting fobe italemenii. or rocoM^ stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for Otherwise cmunaOy or civilly chorged by 0 govommenial orttily
(Federal. State or local) with commiiston ol any ol the offenses enumerated in paragroph (i)(b)
olthis cediflcation; end

11.4. have no! wllhln a Ihree-ye^ period preceding this epplicalron/propeoat had one or more pubCc
.transaciicns (Foder8i. Staio or loca^ lerminBted for uusp or default.

12. Where iho prospectwe primary participant Is vrubla lo certify loony ol ihe slolementsin this
certification, sucft prospective partieipsni shot! oitoeh on eKpisnstion to (his proposal (conirect).

lower tier covereo transactions
-13. By eigning one submitting (his lower (ler propoiet (controci). (hs prospective lower t'«r participant, os

dofir^ed in 45 CFR Port 76. certifies to ihe besi of in itnowiedge and belief tho( it ono its principals:
13.1. ere noi preionity debarred, suspended, proposed for deborment. ddciared ineligible, or

voiuniartfy excluded from participation in this irsnsaciior) by ony todcrol department or ogexy.
13.2. where ihe prospective lower lier porticipam Is unabte to certify to ̂ y of (he-above, such

prospeclivt participant shall oQacn pn expiarioiidn to this proposal (coninici).

14. The prospective tower tier participant further agrees by subrniVng (his proposal (contract) (hat it wftl
Include this clause enlHIod XeniTcaiian Rogardlrvg Oebermeni. Suspension, ineiigibtiity. end
Voiunlery Exclusion • lower tier Covered Treniactions.' without modifoetion in eti lower tier covered
transoctions end in oil soUcHeiiorts for tower Her covered transactions.

: Morthem Human Services

g./i/n
oai? ' Name: Eric Johnson

TliJs: c£o

Vendor

Cuowviieri}

C-f
CihiU F - C«ntSckiiwiAsi vdlrig Ocbkimer*. SvDpcmtwi venooi Miiiti ^

ArdOth(iRiiperaJc(a>kUtieit ,
P4g»a»>2 PMC
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New HontpiMfc-Depflrtmen! of■Hefilt^ end Humen Services
Exhibit 0

CFRTIFlCATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAININQ TO
ccnCQAl gnMaiSCRIMtWATIOH. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAlTM»eAS6D ORGANIZATIONS ANQ

.  WNISTLEBLOWSR PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identited hi Section 1.3 oi ihe Ccneni Provisions esrees by signeiure oi me Cbntrocieri
reprcseniaiive oi rdenlifieO In Sections l.ll end VUeUhe Cenerel Provblons. to execute the lolto-InQ
cetiflcoilon;

Veedtf wai comply, end will roQuhe eny twborenlees or sgbconlrecio^ to comply, with ony applicoWe
rederel nondiKrtmlneilen requlromenis. which may include.' _
• Ihe Omnibui Crtme Conuol end Sele Streets Act d i »a («2 U.S.C. Secicn 37aM) wWch prohibits
reelpienls ol lederel funding undei ihb eieiwte from <ft»crlmJr\etins. either In employmenl preclices or in
the deJrvery of servfees or beneftc. on the basis ol race, coiof. ie6gior>. nsfcnai origin, and les.' The Act
requires certtw recipicnls to produce en Equal Emptoymeni Opportunity Plan;
• the Jwertile Justieo Oelir^or>cy Prowentor* Act ol 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section S672(b)) which edopll by
reference the civil rights otBgalions Of the Safe Sireeu Ad. ftectpionli of federal funding urtdar Ihb
sloluto ere prohlbitod froin discrimirtelirtg. ellher In employmenl practices or if> the delivery of services or
berwnii. on the basis ol race. cdof. religion, naiionil origin, and $e«. The Act ir<ludei equal
employment Opponufthy Plan requirements;

. the CW RigMs Act ol 1884 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohtolls roclplenU of federal fmartcial
essbtshca from discrinlnalinQ.on the basis of race, color, or noltonal origin in any pregrcm or octiwity):
. the RoheWitatiori Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits rtcipierMs ol Federal financial
essistance from disciimtAating on the basis of disabHty. In regard to.employmeni and ihe dalrvcry of
eervtes or benefits, in any program or octWfy:
• the Americans with Disabilities Ad of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sodcru 12l3l.34).wtuchpfOhibHs
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for peaons with disobii'iiai in emplO)^enl. State end tocel
government services, public accommodations, commercial facifitics. end iransportation:
. the Eflwceiion Amondmonts of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1663. ie8S-86). which prohibiis

! discrimination on the basis of sex In federally Bsibiod-educaiion programs:
. the Age Obcrimlnalion Ad of 197S (<2 U.S.C. SecOons 610W7). wtiich prohibits dbcrWnalion on the
basis ol age in programs or otiiviiies receWng Federal financial assblance. li docs noi include
ennpioymenl discrimination:

• 28 C F R pi 31 (U.S. Oeparimenl of Jusiice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
fU S beoartmeni ol Justice Rogulalions - Nondbcriminolion: Equal Employenani Opportunity: PoDcies
and Prot^orei)- Execuliva Order No. 13279 (equal protection ol the laws for fabh^sed end community
organUelioni); Executive Order Np. 13559. »ihrch provkJa fundarrvcnial principlai and poliCy-maJnng

■ criieria for portneri.hipt with lalih-based and neighborhood organaafons:

■ 2fiCFR pi 38(US OepartmenlolJuiliceReg«lations-equalTreotmentforFo8h.0ased
OrflortbationiV end Whisiicblower protections 41 U.S.C. ^4712 end The Neitonal Delenso AdhortioUon
Ad (NOAA) for Fbcol Tear 201) (Pub. L. 112-239. enected January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancemenl of Coniroci Employee Whlsdcbiowcr Protections, which proieds emptoyeesegamsi
reprisol for cortotn wlusiki bto^ ectivilies in cor»r«lion wiih tederoi grants end con,tracts.
The ceriificoio set oul below is o material representalion of lad upon which leliarice Is placed when the
agerrcy awards the gram Fohe cerlificalion or wiolalion ol the certlfealion shall be grounds lor
lusperiston ol payments, suspension or terminailon of grants, or government wide nuspension or
debarment.

««««(•
tmn*

P«M.i eirmwi*

EitfbliO
vmew WiUi>.
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New HemosNre Department of Health end Human Servieei
Ethlbii G

In the ovenl d Fedetel w Stale court 6f Fede/si.o/ State odminiiitaiive agencr moUe* o findine of
dtjcrfminattefi efle/ o due process hearinfl on the flfOuftdJ of »ec6. color; religion, national origin, or set
against o reclpleiM of fondi. the recipleni wiO forward e copy cl the finding to Ihe Office fo? CM! Right*, to
the oppUceble controciing ogarwy or dW»lon whhin iha Oepartmeni of Health and Human Service*, end10 the OoAartment of Health ond Human Service* Office Of the Omoudimari.

The Ver^» Idontifiod In Section l.J otthe Ceneral Provijlon* egr*«i by iJgnolufe of the Controcto''*
repreunietive ot Idenilfiod in Sectfeo* 1.11 ond i.l2 of the General PrpvHions. to otocuie the fottowing,

. certificeiion:

I. By *ionin9 end iubrr^tting iMs pfopoiol (conlraci) the Vendor egree* to comply with the provliion*
indiceted above.

Vendor Namo;- Northern Human Services

Nome; Enc Johnson
Tflla; C60

Cihcric

MrvMr«»r«v<
vendor Wtini.

f  v>rW>«MW OwntWDM

Mirw

tonui'
Pae»3oi7 Due
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OocuSIyi Envelope ID: t6ei8A8E.ACA2-4AAO-9C5O-9O7F7Al5AF09

OocuSIgn Envetope (0:4£3Me4f-1AC7-4M£'&30^0ID2E38EeF

New Hefflpehlrc DepertmeM of Heellh end Humifl Services
Exhibit H

.. - CEftTtPICATlON flEGAROlNG EWVIRQNMEMTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

PubOc 103-237. Pert C • Envlronmenlol Tpbacco Smoke, abo kftd*n oi the Pro-Children Act pi 1994
(Aet). requires ihel eMohlng r*©! be permited In any portion of any indoor ladfily owned or leeied or
contrected for by 8n eniiiy end wed rouiineiy w rogufarty for ihe pfovbion of. hoauh. day care, cflueeilor).
Of library lorvcoi to cMMren under the oge of 18. H Ihe services ore funded by Fodorel pregromj edher
eifocUy o» inrouBfi Sroie or toeei govemmeAU. by Foderil Qierv. ecntreci. loen. or loan guamfMee. Tne
law does noi oppV lo chSdien's services provided in private icddences.-lecaities ̂ nded soleV by
Modiearo or Medeoid funds, end portkins el fociBliii. used for inpoHeni drug or olcohol irootrnent. Folfgro
to cOlnply wimihe provblons of tne law may result in the imposition or o cM moneiary penotty of up to
S1000 per dey end/or the ifl*osUion of on odminisiretfve compEance order on the responslNo entity.

The Vendor Identified in Soctl^ 1.3 of the Cenerel Provlsior\s agrees, by slgnoiuro of the Controctofa
represeniofrve as idenlified in Seciron 1.11 and 1.13 of iho General Proviitorvs. lo oiecuta ihe Iqnowing
cortifcotion:

1  By argning end swbmiiiing thh controci. iho Vendor agrees to moke roosonable efforts to compfy wtihol) BpplicaWc provisions ol Public LOW 103-227. Port C. known as the PrchChWren Atl of 1994.

Vet^ofiooe: Northern>4umari Services

6,'l^lis- . . , —
Oate ' Name: tnc Johnson

Tins: C60

EiTM H - Ceni-'csOo" Btpinjvp Ventfai iriSUi
EnArer«m/v»iT0O<eeoSmoie /'I'll, a

n»8<lort ' P«e b| Ijn
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Now Mompohlfo OopirtfTonl of HtaHh end Humen Service*

WEALTH INSUf^ANCE PQRTABLITY ACT
pUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Gentrei P/ovlilons of the Aflreeinent BQfeesto
comply with the Health Insurence Portability and Accouniebility Ad. Pubfic Law 104-101 end
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually IdentWaWe Health information, 45
CFR Parts tW and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. *8usiness
Auociate' Shan mean the vendor ano subcontraciors end apem* of the vendor that recoivo.
use or have access-to protected hcallh Information undcr ihls Apieemeni end 'Cov.ered Entity*
Choi) mean the State of New Hampshire. Oepanment of Heatth and Human Services.' .

(1 DofinltlofW.

a. 'Breach' ehall havc Iho same moarting as (he term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Tide 45.
Code of Federal Reguialions.

'Business Acsoeiete' has Ihe'meaning prven such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covefftd Entity' has the meaning givon such term in section 160.i6'3of Title 45..
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Df^stanated Rflcord Set" shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record ser
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

0. 'patfl AooreBBtioo* shell have ihe seme meaning as the teim 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.50I.'

f. '^eahh Care Operations' shall have the same meaning es the term 'health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.S01.

g  -hiTECH Act* means the Health Information Technology for ■Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TiiJexm. Subtiile D. Part 1 A 2 of the American Recovery end Reinvestment Act of
2009."

h. 'HlPAA' moans the Health Insurance Portability and Accounlabilily Act of 1998. Public Law
104-101 and the Standards for Privacy end Security oMndivldually Ideniiflablo Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160. 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I  'Individual* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Individuai* in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a persortal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(9)-

j  'Privaev Rule' shall mean Ihe Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Heallh
Information at 45 CFR Pans 1.60 and 164, promulgated under HlPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

'Protected HeaUh lnformatipn' shall have the same meaning as iheierm 'proicclod hcallh
Information* In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited lo Ihe Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behail of Covered Entity.

EtfiUl Vt/UaflrtUUi \y
-tiuma Pi
lAlMdlU
Pigc 1 »l a

MeikMrowwMPwuWhr**' . i
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New Hgmpthlfe Depo't/neni of Heitih'end HuniA Service*

EiM&lil

I. 'RgQuired bv Law* ghjll hove the some meerwng es the iernf> 'required by law* in <5 CFR
Section 1&4.103.

m. 'Secretary' shall mean the Secretary of the Qepartment o< Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgrvee.

n. •S«>curitv Rule' snail mean (he Security StandarO* for (ha Pr6iec(icn of Eloc(roAic Protected
Health InformDlion el 45 CPS Pen 1&4. Sutpon C. aryj amertdmonuihorclo!

0. •Unteeured Protected Healih Information' mean* protected heellh Information thai is rwi
secured by a tschnotogy slenderd thai renders protected heoHh Inlbrmoiion unusable,
umeadabie. or indecipherable to unauthorized indivMudtt and is developed or endorsed by
e-standards developing organization that rs accredited by (he Amerlcart National Standards
Institute.

p. Other DefinHiens • All lerms not olhorwise defused herein shall have the moaning
established under 45 C.P.R. Pans 160. 162 and l&4. as amended from time to lime, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Asseclate Use end Disclosure of Protectad Haatth Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Inlormation (PHt) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services ouMined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate. Including but not limited (o eti
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or (rensmif
PHI in any mianner that would constiiuta a violation of (he Privacy and Security Rulo.

b.' eusinessAsiociatemayuseordisclosePHi:
I. For the proper management end administration of the Business Associate;

.  I). Asrequiredbylaw. pursuant (0 the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; Of
ill. For date aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Enliry.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreomenl to disclose PHI to a
'  third party. Business Assgciale must obtain, prior to malting any such diidbsure. (i)

reasonable pssurances from (he third party that such PH) will be held confidentiaOy and'
used or further disclosed only as required by law or (or the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (11) an agreement from such third party to notify Business-
Associate. in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Sacurtty. end Breach NoUlicotion
Rules of any broaches of the conftdentialify of the.PHI. to (he extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shaD not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disdoso any PHI in response to a .
request (o> disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entify so that Covered Entity has an opporiuniry to oblect to (he disclosure and -
to sock appropriate roCcf. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, (he Busineu

iO
Vendtt IffCoti y

Kiifth iAi«nnee PonibSfy AcJ
8uiirv)> AiMdiU Agrttmen)

P«9i 1 el S Duf.
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Eihlbttl

Associete efiaU fofreio fiOTi disclosing the PHI unlll Covered Entity hoi oxhousled all •
renrwdies.

c. If itio Covered Entity octif«cs the Business Assoaate that Covered Entity has agreed to
bo bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses oi disclosures or security
eefoguards of PHI pursuant to (he Prrvaey and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such oddHionai resihetions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shaD abide by any additional security safeguards.

(}) Obllanlloni onfl Activities gf Bunlneis Assoctatg.

a.' The Business Associate shall notify iha Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immedlatety
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of pro.tected
health rnlorrflaiioh not provided for by the AgreemeniTncluding breaches ol unsecured
protected health information and/or any'security incident (hat may have an impact or> the
proteeted'heatth information of the Covered Enlity.

b. The Business Associate shbii Immediately perform a risk assossment when it becomes
aware of ony of the above situations. Ttie risk assessment shall inctude. but not be'
limited to:

0 The nature and eiteni of the prelected haafih informalior) Involved. includinQ the
types of Identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health Informaiion or to whom the
.disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was eciualty acquired or .viewed ■
o The eirtent to which the risk to the protected heaiih information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and Immc'diaiety report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply wlih all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Noiincdtion Rule. ^

d. Buslnpss A'ssodole shall make available all of its intemaf policies and procedures, books
end records relating to the use end disclosure of phi received from, or created or
received by the 6usir>e$$ Associate on behalf of Covered Entify to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entit/s compliance with HIPAA end the Privacy end
Security Rule.

e. Business Assodaie shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity,
shall be considered a dirckl third parly beneficiary of the Coniractor's business associate
agreements wilh.Contractor's inlended business associates, who will be recelvirtg^l.

etfVcru Vtrdot Inhliti^ i2_.
K»»»ilwinne4Pon»U3flf Aq
ewjVn>»A4i»ditiAg«i«n*w ^uAV *
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Eihlblii

. pursuflni W tftis Apreemenl. wilh rIgWi ol enforcement end IndcmnifiMt'On from such
liusinBss ossocietes who shall bo govcfned by standard Paragraph 013 of the slar^ard
contract provisions (P-3T) of this AflreemeM for the purpose of use end disctosoro of
protected heelih Information.

f  Within five (5) business deys of receipt of e wrfnen reqwesi from Covered enilh^
Busirwss Associate shall make oveaabie during normal ousineis hours ai Us otftces oil
records books ogreomcms. poDcios and procedures roioiing to the use or^.diseiosure
of PHI to Iho Covered emity. for purposes of enebling Covered Entity lo dolormino j

■ Buclncao Assoddto's cwpllartco wilh the ternis of the Agreement.

q  Within ter^ (10) business doys of rcceMng a written roQuest from Covered Entity.
Business Assecieic shell provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to en.lndividyai »n order lo micet Ihe •
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h  Within ten (10) business days of lece'iving a written request from Covered Entity for en
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record .
Set, the Business Aesocietc shall make such PHI avaiiatsle lo Covered Gntity for
amendment and. incorporate ony such amendment lo enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CPR Section 1S4.526.

i . Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI end information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Enliry lo respond to a request ̂  en
individual for en occounilng of disclosures of PHI in eccordencc with 45 CPR Section
iw.52e.

i  ' Within ten (tO) business doys of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for e
•  request for ar> occouniing of disclosures of PHI. Busir>ess Associete shall make pvaiiable

to Covered Emity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligaiions
lo provide en accounting of disdosu'es wiih respect id PHI In occordance wilh 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event arty Individual requests access id. amendment ol. oraccouniing of PHI
dirccliy from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to covered Entity. Covered Eniliy shall have the
responsibiliiy of responding to forwarded requests. However, if fonvarding the
indfviduaVs request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Enlity or Ihe Business
Associate lo violate HIPAA end the Privacy end-^curity Ru'o. Ihe Business Associate
shall insicad respond to the Individual's request es required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon .88 precticabie.

I  Wilhih ten (10) business days of torminslion of the Agrccmeni. for ony reason, Ihe
Business Associate shall reiurn or destroy, es specified by Covered Eniity. ell PHI
received from, or created or received by the Bus'mess Associate In connection wilh the
Agreement, end shall net retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. II relum or
desUuclion is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been olherwiso agreed to in
the Aoreemenl. Business Associate shall continue to extend'the protections of the

yjou

Agreement, lo such PHi and limit further uses end disclosures of such PHI to Ihos^purposes that make the return or.destructign Infeasiblo, lo^ so long es Busines^^
gjffdil VtntferMUlU.

Mtcnn tniurifc* Penitrxy Ac
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EiNbIt I

Associate maintains such PHI. If Coverid Enliry. in its sole disc/etion. requires that the
Business Associate desifoy eny or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Cowered Entity that the PHI has been tJesUoyed.

{4) ObllQallons o1 Cowered Erttm

8. Cowered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any chenges or limlietion(5) in its
Notice of Privacy Prectleos provided to indiwiduois In accordance whh 4S CFR Section
164.920, to the eirtent that such change or limitation may ofTecl Business Assoeiete's
use or disdosuro of PHI.

b. Cowered Entlry shall prompdy notify Business Associate of eny chengee in. or revocetion
of permission prowided to Cowered Entity by indiviOuals whose PHI may be used or
disctosed.by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CPR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c." Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agr^ to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may alfecl Business AsMCiatc's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination forCeuso

In addition to Peragreph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P*37) of (his
Agreement the Covered Entity niay immediatety terminate the Agreement upon Cowered
Entity's knovdedge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein os Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
torminato the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure ttie
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. .1! Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shal) report the
violation to the Secretary.

t$) Miscellaneous

e. Oflfinitions and Reoutatorv Raferences. All terms used, but not qthenvise defined herein,
Shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from lime to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect.or as
emended.

b. • /Amendment. Covered Eritity and Business Associaie agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from lime to time as is necessary for.Covcred
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law,

c. paia Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership fights
■  with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interoreteiion. The parties agree that arty ambiguity In the Agrocmeni shall be resolved
to permit Covered Enlily to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule. ̂  X

yjou Vcnaatnnwi
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Eihibli I

Sgoreofliioft. If any (arm pf condition el this ExMOii I oi the appticaUon then*of 10 any
invalid, auch invarrt% ahsll not affect olhor.terms or

conditions vvTtipn can pe Qlven effect t^ftnout the invalid term or condition: to utis end'the
terms and cor^ilions of (his Eihibil I are declared seversblo.

fiurv>val. Provisions In this ExhlOh I reovding (he use and disclosuro of PHI. return or
destiutlion otPHi, evtepsions of \tk pioiecDons of the Agreement tn eccdon (3) t, tno
defense and tndemnfflcaUon provisions of section (3) o end Persgraph 13 of (he
etondord terms er>d condiliona (P«37). shall surviva the (erminalion of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the paftios fioreio havo duly executed this Erdiiblt \.

Oepaivrent or Heaicn end Kurron Servtcos Nodhem Human Sefvices

7
endorale

21
RepiesemaweSionahjre of Aut

LlS»
Nemo of Auihofbed RopresaniatlvQ

^kc\fi i7PH'?
Title of Authdrtz^ Roprosomaiivc

Odte

Sig'ndiufe oMuthorired Ropresentabve

Eric Johnson

Namo of AumorUcd Ropreseniaiive

CEO
Title of AuihorUed Reprosentallve

5^/^/4
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SeofeQation. If any term or condition of (his Eihibii I or (he application thereof to any
persoflfs) or circumstance is held invafid, suc^ invaEdity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and coryfitions of this Exhibit I are declared saverable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions' of (he protections of the Aereemeni in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e end Paragraph -13 of tho
standard terms end conditions (P-37). shall survive ine termineiion of mo Agreement.

IN yyiTNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duty executed this Exhibrt 1.

Oepertment of Health artd Kumon Services

Tho State

Northern Human Services

e of thafVendor

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature onCulhorized Representative
Eric Johnson

Name of Authorized Representativ.e Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date.

CEO

Title of Authorized Representative

sSW-
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CERTIFICATION RECAftOWQ THE FEPEftAL FUNOINQ ACCOUNTABIllTY AND TRANSPAWCNCY
ACT IPFATA^COMPUANCE

The Fpdeial Funding AccdvAiebiliiy end Trenipsfency Acl {FFATA) lequires prime dwardeei ol individuei
Fedo/ei grenii equal le or greeter ihan I2&.000 end swarded on or sfter Oaober i. 2010. (orepon on
data releied to eiecuiNe compeneetron end oesocisted r<rii-iier lub-gronu of }2S,000 or more, ir mo
Intii'al owsrd b below S2S.OdO but eubiequeni greni modirceiione reeuli in a total award eouoi lo or over
SSS.OOO. lha award U eubject to the FFATA rooonine reQutrementi. e» ol the dole of the award.
' In oceoid3r>ee wiih 2 CFR Port 170 (Reportinp Swbtward end Eveeuiive Componsotion Intormaiian). the
Ocpirtmerti of HeeHh end Hvrrtert Servicce (OHhS) musi rcpon the lottowing info.tmaiior^ for eny
•wbawvid or conlrad oward tubject to ine FFATA reponlng roquiremonis;
1. Nome of entity
2. ArriOynl of award
s. Fundlngogexy
4. -NAlCiS code lorconlrecisfCFOA program number for grants
5. Progrom eource
g. Award title doteriptlvo of the purpose of the funding eclon
7. Location of the onlily
8. Prindpio piaco of perfonnence
9. Unique identifier of the entity (OUNS0)
10. Tciel oompensotlon ond namoe of (he top five eiecuilves it:

10.1. More then 60H of annual gross revcnires ore from the Federal goveinmervi. artd those
revertuce ore greelor thon I2SM oni>oaily ond

10.2. Compertseliorv informotion Is t>ol elreedy ovoiloble tnrough reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant rectplertts mutl. submK FFATA req\^edd0U) by Iht end of the month, plus 3CI doye. in which
(he oword or owerd amendment is rrude.

The Vendor Identified in Sociion 1.3 of the General Prcvisioni agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accouniability.end Tremperency Act. Public Lew 109>362 ervd Public Low 110>2S2.
and 2 CFR Port 170 (Reporting Subaword and ExecuUve Compensation Information), and further ogrocs
to have the Conlroctcir'e repretenlelive.'os Identrfiedln Sections i.li end t.l2ol ihe CcnerelProvisions
eseeule the following Certificelion:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed inlormalion as outlined above to the nh Oepertmerd
of Heafth end Huntan Services attd to comply wilh eO oppticebte provisions of the Federal Financial
AcoounlobiEry ervd Transparency Act.

verdorNeme: Northern Humdn Services

Nemo: gnc Johnson
Tide:

Eir«isQ J ' Ccninutten R«^>f^Vp i>e F(e««M Funding vcaoo' Miit»,J  Aeuunttasfy And T»in«)Ktncy Aa(FFATA) CompSjnce jl'j
CUO*bnte'>> P*e8iOlJ Otis.
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AS tfie Vendor tdeniiriod In Seciion 1.1 of the Conoral Provisions. I certify thsl the reiponMi to Iho
below lined queslioni ere trvo OAd eccurete.

\. The OUNS number for your entity b:

2  In vour business or oroenlsslion's preceding completed fitcsl yeer. did your busineis or wganlteiron
receive (1)80 percem ormoroofyour snnusigrpss revenue in U.S. ledefoieontroctf. tubeoni/ecis,
losns Q/enn eub-grenls. end/oreooperdtivoeQfeemenis:ond(2)J25.000.000ot more lnoitngel
gross revenue* from U.S. fedwel ccnlrecli. subeonirocti. leans, grants, lubgronis. enofor
cooperoiivo ogresmentsT

MO YES

II (he onswet to 02 fibove is NO. slop here

If the enswer lo « obovo Is YES. please ansvier itte foOowing:

3. Does the pubfic have eccoss lo Worm.stion obout ifie componsolien of the osoculnros m ywr
business Of otgantfclion through period< reports fitod under setlion lJ(o) or iS(d)of Ihe Securtlios
Eicher^s Act ol 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(o). 7fto(8)) w section 6104 of tlw Inlomsl Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

II the enswer lo 03 above Is YES. stop here

if the onswer lo 03 eb^ is NO. please enswo' the (otiovring:

«. The nemos arvl compensslion of the f<vo mo*t highly compensaied officers In your business or,
drgonUobon ore as folios:

Name:,

Name:.

Name:

Noma:

Nsrne:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

CUO«0'<>|1|>

Edv"W J-CcrUleiDonWrgirfflngOwFeeerstFimdSic Verdo
AecomutUiy nrd Tfsnpimney AO (Tf ATA) Cempflrnci
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OHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Oofinllions

The folloNwtnQ lermx may bo rofloctod end hpve the described meerunig In (hb documeni:

1. *6reach' means the loss of control, compromise. unauthorUed disclosure,
uneuthoriied o,cqubU'Of>. uneulhorized eccess.' or orty similar lerm -reterrlnj to
situations where persorts other then authorized users end for en other then
outhorlzod purpose hove eccess or pciontiei eccess to persorully Idenliriabto
jr\formation. whether physical or electronic. With repard to. Protected Healih
information. * Breach' shall have the same meaninQ as the term 'Breech' in section
164.402 of TtiiQ 45. Code of Federal Reouiations.

2. •Computer Security Incideni* shafl have the seme meaning 'Computer Security
Incident' In section two (2) of NiST Publicailon 606^1, Computer Security Incident

- Handling Guide. National institute of Standards end Technoi^y. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Conridentiat information* or 'Confideniiai Data* means ai) conndeniiai Information
disclosed by one party to.the other such as eti medical, heailh. financial, public
assistance benefits ertd personal information Including without (imitelton, Substence
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Heailh inlormaiiOn and
Personally Identifiable infoimainn.

Confidential Wormatlon also includss any artd all Information own^ or managed by
the Slete of NH • c/eated. received.from or on benaif of the Department of Health and
Human Services (OHHS) or eCMSsad In the course of parleying connected
services • of which coOecllon. disclosuro, protection, and disposition is governed by

- stele or federal lew or regulation. This Inforrnation includes, but Is not lirriited to
Proiecled Hoahh information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFl). Federal Tax Information (FTl). Social Security N.umbers (SSN).

. Payment Card Industry (PCI), end or other sensitive and confidcnlial informoiion.

4. 'End user* means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) ihai receives
OHHS data or derivative data in accordance wllh the terms of (his-Contract.

5. 'HtPAA* means iheTteallh Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
rogulatians prorhulgaied thereunder. * /

6. 'Incideni* means en ect ihat poteriiieiiy violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either faiiad or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or <ia date, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data: and changes to system- hardware,
firmware, or software characterts.lics without the owner's knowtedge. instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss ol data through theft or device misplacomoni. loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, arxl ^^lsrouting of physical or electronic

p
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men aD of which may have.the potential to put the data at risk c( uneuthoriied
■  access, use. disclosure, modincelion or destfuciicn.

7  'Ooon V^rele»» NeN^rV* moon» eny neNvortt or segmont of o net^rh that I*
■  tvoi deoionoiod by the Stale of Now Hampshire's Department of Inforrnation

Tecr^nolopy or delegate as a protected neMortt (designed, wsted. end
approved, tjy means of the Slaie. to trantmli) will be considered on open

■  nelUdt and not adequateV secure for the iran.smlsslort of unencrypted PI. PF».
PHI or confidential OHHS data.

e  'Personal intormation' (or -Pi*) means informalion which can bo used tp
or trace en IndivWuors KJcnliry. such as their name, sooal security number, ̂rsonel
Inlofmallon as defined In New Hampshire
elone Of when combined with other personal or Wenlifymg Wormelion wh«h is Imked
or linkable to a specific individual, luch es date end place of birth, mother's madert
name. etc.

9  'Privocy Rule' shall mean ihe Standards for Privacy of individuaDy.ideniiriable Health
■ miornwtion at« C.F.R, Parts 160 end IW. promuigBtcd under HIPAA by the Untied

Steles Department of HeaUh and Human Services.

10: •Pfolecled Hes«h Infomalion- (or •PHl") Ms Ihe same meaning as
definition of 'Protected Health Information' In ihe HIPAA Pnvacy Rulo at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

It 'Security Rule* Shan mean the Security Standards for the Proteclion of Electronic
■ Protected Heatih Informaiibn-at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

15 'Unsecured Protected Health Information* means Protected Health information that is
not secured by o technology standard thai renders Protected Health informat^
unusable . unreadable, or mdedpherebie to unauthorized individuels ervj .8
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accrodiied by
the American National Standaidc Insiiiuie.

- RESPONSIBILITIES OF DMHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use end Olsclosuro of Confideniiat information.

1  The Coniractoi must nol use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidenliannformatlon
exMpt as roasonaWy necessery at outlined under.this Conimct. Further. Contractor,
inciudino but nol limited to an Ht dkeclora. officers, employees and eganis. must not
usa. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any rnenner that vrtuKJ constaule a viotetion
of the Privacy end Security Rule.

2  The Conlfactor musi nol disclose eny Confideniial Informelion m response to a

/s
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request for Oisctosure on the beiis mat ll is required by law.. Irt respome 10 e
subpoena, etc.. without riral noiifying OHHS ao (hat OHMS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. ir OHHS notiries the Contractor that OHHS jhes agiaod to bo bour>d by oddiiiona)
restdciions over and above ihoso usee or disclosures or eocurfty eafeguards of PHI
purauoni (o (he Privacy and Security Pule, iha Contractor rnusi bo bout^d by such
additional restrictions end must not dlsdOM PHi in violation ol such addilionat
resihciions artd-musi abide by any addiitonai socurity aefogu'ards.

4. The. Contractor agrees thai OHKS Oaia or dedvalive there from disclosed to en End!
User must only be used pursuant (o iha lerms ol this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees OHHS Oala obtained under this Contract may noi be used for
any other purposes (hat are not indicaiod In this Contract.

' 6. The Contractor agrees to gram access to the date to the authorlted repfasanletlvea
of OHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Cohlract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA-

1. ApplicaUon Ertcrypb'on. If End User is transmittihg DHHS data containing
ConRdenOai Oala between applications, the Cortiractor attests the' applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security.and that sold'
application's encryption capabilities ensure.aecure transmission via the intarrteL

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storago devices, such-as a thumb drivo, es.a method of transmitting OHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Enna3. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential pata if
•email is enervoied and being sem to and beirig received by email addresses of
persons aulhohzad.lo receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site, if End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosllr>g services, such as Qropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
ConfidenlidI Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confideniifii Data via cedr/ied ground
' mall wilhln the continental U.S. end when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing poriabia devices to irer^smlt
Confidenb'ai Data said devices must be encrypt^ and password-protected.

8. Oper> VMreiess Networks. Erid User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

VS uuvptfsu lOObie EtfilKlK CM»*ct»inUsh.
OKMS NormiOort

rUQvV*me«u

Pteaiors 0)1*



DocuSign Envelope ID; 3B7E4D67-4FAA-47ED-A2B2-D928FA8F5C64

bocuSign Envelope ID; 662BD7F4-7S84-411C-A455-O05F1C0S733I

DocuSign Envelope ID; lftBl8AaE-ACA2-4AAb-9C&O-9D7F7AlSAF09

OecwSlgA Envelope 10:4E3«aa4F-l AC7-46A£e30»060l02EMEBF

New Hempshlre Deperlment of Health end Human Services

Exhibil K

- OHMS Information Security Requirements

wireless netwooi. End user musi employ t vinuoi private r^otwor* (VPN) wncn
remotely iransmining via an open wiroioss netwon*.

9. Remote User CommurticaHon. if 6^ User is employing remote communication to
access or (ransmll ConMcnOal Osta. a virtual private nelwor* (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile dev<ee(6) or laptop from which information win be

. irensrNttod or occossed.

10. SSH File Tronsfer Protocol (SPTP). el«o known os Secure File Tronsfor Protocol. If
End User "is employing en SFTP to transmit ConfldenUal Data, End User wUI
structure (he Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP (ciders end sub-lolders used (or Irensmilting Conridentlal Data wiD
bo coded (or 24-hour auio-doieUpn cycte (I.e. ConOdeniiai Data wtli be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. K End User Is trensmitiing Conf^enlisl Oaia via wireless devices, all
date must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

HI. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIASLE RECORDS

The Contractor win only retain (ho data and any derivative of the data tor Ihe duration of this
Coni/act. After such time. Ihe Contractor will havo 30 days to destroy the data and eny
derivative in whatever form il may eilsi. unless, otherwise roquiicd by law or pormifled
under this Contract. To this end, (he parties must:

A. ftotontlon

1. Tho Conlracior ogroes il wiO not store, transler or process dole collected In
connection with (he services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location reeulrement shall eiso apply In the Implementation ol
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capablUiies. and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Coni/acior agrees to ensure proper security monltdring capabilities ere in
piece to delect potential security evenis that can Impact Stale of NH systems
end/or Oepariment confidential informallon for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees lo provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Oepsrtmeni confideniial informalion.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain at) electronic end hard copies of Conrrdeniial Date
In a secure location eryf ideniifisd <n section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Conndenlial Date stored in e Cloud must be in e
FedRAMP/HlTECH compliant solution end comply with el) eppticabio statutes er\d
regulations regarding the privac]r end security! All servers and devices must hove
currently-supported end hardened operating systems, iho latest anii-vlrgi, ami-
hacker, onti-spam. antlrspyware. end enli-malwdre utilities. The onvironmenl, as a

vj. iMi vpoM I0W1I Cort»#etoi lAKih .
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detoction end firewall proiectJon.

6. Tho Contractor agfeot to and ensures Hs comptole cooperation Mth the Slate's.
• Chiol Informelior) OfTtcor in the detection of ony securtry vulnerqbiilly of the hosting
inlrestmcfura.

B. Dispoellion

t. llthB Conirectof wii) maintain any Confidenilal Informatloft on Its systems (or Us
sutKontrector systems), the Cont/acter vAl.maintaIn o documented process for
eecurefy disposirtg of such .data upon request or contract terminelioA; and wto
oPiofn wrlnan coftificatloh for erty Stale PI New Hampshire dele destroyed try the
Cpnlrector or eny subcontnicton as a pad of ongoing, emergency, and or disasler
recovery opereUons. Whon no tongar In use. electronic media containing State of

'  New Hompshire data shall bo rendered unrocoverebio vie a secure wipe program
in Bccordence with induslry eaepled stendards for secure deletion end media
semtlxeiibn. or otherwise physicotly destroyir>g the media (for. exampie.
deg'aussingl es described in NiST Sp^t PubBcatiort 600-66. Rev 1. GuldeDnes
for Madia Sanitizatlon. Notions) institute of Standards end Technology. U. S!
Department of Commarce. The Contmdor wtu document end cedify In wdiing et
timo of the data destruction, end provide wrftton codification to the Depedment
upon roquost. The written cedificotion will include 'ell details' necessery to
domonslreie data Has been propedy dasiroyed end vatidaied. Where epplicebla.
reguiaiory end prolesslondi standards (or ratomion requifements wtD be jointly
evaluated by the State end Conirecior prior to doslnrdion.

2. Ur^less otherwise specified. V^hln thirty (30) days of t?\e termlneilon of this
Conued/ Conlrador egreos to destroy eti hard copies ol Confidential Data using e
secure method auch OS shredding.

3. Unless otherwise apedried, wDhin ttiidy (30) days ol the terrriinalion of this
Contract. Controdor ogroos to completely destroy ell electronic Confdentia) Date
by means ol data erasuie. elso hnown as secure dale, wiping.

rv. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contrador agrees to saioguard the OHMS Data received under this Contract, ortd any
dedvat'rvo deio or files, as loDows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to proioct Oepariment
corHfldentlei Information coliecied. processed, managed, end/or stored In the delivery
of contreded services.

\

2. The 'Contreclor will mainis'm policies, end procedures to protect Department
confidential informallon throughout the information lifecyde. whoro applicable, (from
creation, irensfonmdtion. use. siorege and secure dasirudiofl) regardless of (he
media used to store the data (i.e.. tepe. disk, paper, eic.).

OxM$h(om*0an
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3. The Contractor will maintain eppropnale euthonticeiio.n and access corUrols to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Oepanrnent connoonUal Informaiionl
whore pppiicebie.

4. The Controeter will en»w/e proper security monitoring capabiities ere in piece to
detect potential security events that can Imped Staio of NM systems entVor
Oopartment conridenliol information (or contractor provided systems.

5. The Conuoctof will provide regular secunTy ewarcrwss end educatior^ for Its End
Users In support of protedir>g Oepsrimeni confidaAtidl infdrmatlort.

6. If the Contractor wil) be su^conlreding any core functions of the engagement
supporting-the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor wQI meinlein e
program of on internal process or processes that dofmes spedHc security
expociallons. ond rhonlioring compEence to security requlreinanta that at a minimum
match those (or tha'Cont/octor. ir^duding breach notiTication raqulremenis.

7. The Conuocior w«l work with the Ooparirneni to sign ahd compty with all epplicabia
• Siaio oi New Hampshire end Oepartmcm system access end ouihoriution policies
and procedures, systems eccess forms. er*d computer -use agreements as pert' of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Oeportnwnl sysiom(s). Agraamenis will be
completed and signed by the Conlredor and any epplicabia cub-contractors prior to
aystom occoss being authorized.

6. (f the Oepartmeni determines Ihs Contractof is e Business Associoto pursuant lo 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor wtn e*ecvfte a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) wlih the Depanmcnt cr^d ts responsible for malntolning compliance with the
agrooment.

9. The Conlredor wib work with (ha Department at its request to complete.a System
Martagemeni Suniey. The purpose of the survey b to enable the Oapartmeni end
Coniraetor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, end vulnerabiillies that may
occur over the We of the Contractor eftgagemeni., The survey wfli .be completed
onnuaOy. or on aiierrvate lime freme at iho Depadmonis discretion with ograemeni by
the Conlredor. or the Department may request the survey be completed when tho
ccopo of the engagement betweon the Department ond the Conuecior chenges...

to. The,Conlredor wll) not clora. knowif>gty or unknowingly. 6ny State of New Hampshlro
or department data offshore or outside the boundaries of (he United Slates unless
prior express written consent e obtained from Iho information Security OKIco
loadership member within tho Dopartmeni.

tt. Data Security Breach liability. In the ovoni of any security broach Contrador chall
make efforts to Invesiigate the causes of tho breach, promptly lake measures to

.  proven} (ulura breach and minimize eny damage or loss resulting from (ho broach.
The Stalo shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response end recovery from

SKUtiyRMwVwntMi ^ ^ \
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me breach, intludlng but not limited to: credit monitoring $eivice». melting coits and
costs olsocieied with website end toiephbhe can center services nc.cessary due to
tho breech.

12. Cer\uaaor musi. comply with oH oppr«oblo eloluloo ond (oguioliona regording the
pdvscy end securtty of ConTidentifil tnformation. end'must in ell other respects
maintetn the p/tvocy end eecuriry oi Pi end PHI et e lavet end scope mei b not lose
then, the level end ecope ot requlremonis eppticeble to federei ogencles. Including,
but nol Umlied to. provisions of tho Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § S52e). OHMS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. $5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rotes (45
C.P.R. Parts 160 end 164) that govern prelections for indivtduaUy idontifiablo hoelth
Informeilon and oi applicable under Siaio law.

15. Contractor agrees to osiabiish end maintain approprioie odmiNslreirve; technical, end
physical salaguotde to protect' mo conridentialliy. of the Conr«denU8l Data ond to
proveni unauihorited use or eccass to it. The safeguards must provida a level end
scope ol security that b rwt less ihen the level end scope of security requlromonts
' established by the State of New Hampshire. Oeportment of information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procuiomeni et httpsy/www.nh.gov/doiVvendorfindex.htm
for the Oeparimeni of information Technology pdticies: guidelines, standards, and

-  procurement informetion rolating to vendors.

14. Corttractor agrees'to maintain a documented breech notification and tncMeni
response process. Tho Contractor wiD notify the Slate's Privacy Officer and the
Stale's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, et the emell addrossos
^ovlded in Section Vl. This incbdos a confideniial information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected dreach which effects or includas any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to (he Stale oi New Hempsh'ire netwOfV..

tS. Controdor must restrict eccess lo the Confidential Dais obtained under this
Contrad to only those oulhorized End Users who need.such OHMS Data to
perform their official duties in conneciion wiih purposes ideniifred in this Conirect.

16. The Contractor must ensure (hei dl End Users;

a. comply , with such safeguards as referenced in Sect'ton IV A. above.
Implemented to protect Confidoniial Information ihei is fumishod by OHHS
under (his Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information an a» llrnes.

c. ensure thai laptops and other electronic devicas/modie containing PHI. P). or
PFl are enciYptod end password-protected.

d. servd ema'ils coniarning Conridenilai -Inlormation only H oncrvoted and being
sent to end being rece'rved by omsU addresses of persons authorized to
receive such informst'ton.

vs.ijti wpdti* iQPVie EiMthK ConUKlarWCUi.
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OocuSign Envelope ID: 3B7E4D67-4FAA-47ED-A2B2-D928FA8F5C64

OocuSIgn Envelope ID: 662B07F4-7584-411C-A455-005F1C057331

OocuSIOfl Envelope tO: ieBifiAeE-ACA2-4AAO-0C$D-9O7F7Al$AF09

OoouSlsn EnWlope 10: 4E3S8e4f-1AC7-4SAE-6)0»^0l02E3tEBF

New Hampshire Ocpartmer^t of Health end Humon Sorvlcee
Exhibil K

OMHS Informetlon Security Requirements

0.. limii disclosure of ihe ConfdeiMlai informaUon to the eirtenl permuted by law.

1. Confidential Information received under (his Contract artd individuaOy
fderiiiriable data de'rfved from DhhS Oota. musi be stored in en eroe (hat is.
physicelly end techr^iogicaBy secure from access by unauihonced persons
during duty hours OS weS es rion-duty hours (e.g.. ooor locks, card keys,
biomotriclderttiftsrs. etc.).

Q. ohiy outhorizod End Uibrs moy irensmii the Confidentiol Ooio. ineluOlr>e ony
derivative rdes oonta'irUng pe/sonePy ideiMiflable information, and in el) cases,
such data must bo cncrypled "at all times when In irortsil. et rest, or when
'elored on portable media as raquired in section IV above.

h. In all other Instances CoAfidonbal pate rnust be mainlair^od. used end
disclosed using appropriate iefegua/ds. as determirtad by a risk>b8sed
ossossment ol the circumslencas involved^

■  I. understand that their user credenilals (user name end password) must not be
shared with enypne. End Users mil keep their aedenlial information secure.
This oppiies to crodentiais usod lo access the site directly or indirectly through
a third parly opplcalion.

Contrector Is responsible for oversight end compriancei of ihelr. End Users. OHHS
reserves the right to cenduci onslia inspections to rnoniior compliance with this
Contract. Indwding the privacy end security requirements provided ir> herein. HIPAA,
end other apphcabta laws end Fodorsi rogutaiions'uniii such time (he Confidential Data
is disposed of in eccordance with (his Contraci.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Stale's Privacy Officer artd Security Otfrcer of any
Security irKldents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI. ■ ■

The Contractor must further hendio and report Incidents end Breaches involving PHI In
occordanca with the agency's documented' Incident Handling and Breech Notification
procedures end In eccordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. in addition to. and
notvriihsiandir>9. Contractor's compiianca with all epptlcabie obiisaiions and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how (ho Conirocipr will:

1. ideniifylncidents;

2. Oatormlne H personally idenlifiabla information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents es required In this Exhibit or P*37;

4. Identify Bf*d convene a core response group to determine lha risk level ol Inddenie
and determine rlsK-basod responses lo irKidenis; ond

V5 UJiuf«Jw»«Ow'u tikW'* CowwiAUm,
OHHS MDnnitiOA
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 3B7E4D67-4FAA-47ED-A2B2-D928FA8F5C64

DocuSIgn Erwetope 10:662B07F4.7584-111 C-A45&-D05P1C057331

OocuSIgn Envelope tO: i6ai8AeE-ACA2-4AAO-OCSO-907F7AiSAFOO

OoouSIgn Envelope 10:46)S4WF-iAC7-«6Ae^J0^0fl0i02eM€eF

New Hampshire Oopartmont ol Health and Human Services
Enhibil K

OHHS Information Security Raqulfomenls

5 -Oeiemiine whether Broach notification is requiiatJ. end. tt so. iOenilfy apfwoprtato
Breach nofificalion methods, timing, source, end contents from omong dWoroni
opuorvs end tieer costs essoclaled with the Breach noiicp as wen es eny miUQBlwn
measures.

Irtddents end/or Breeches that implicate PI musi be addressed end reported, as
applicable, In accordance with NH RSA 3S9 C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS PrWacy Officer:

0KHSPriv8cyOfficar@dhhs.nh.gov

. 0. OHHS Security Officer:

OHH$lnformetior>SecuriryOffice®dhhs.nh.flov
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